
QubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPrivateȱLimitedȱ
ThirtyȱFifthȱAnnualȱReportȱ–ȱ2019Ȭ20ȱ

Directors’ȱReportȱ

YourȱDirectorsȱhaveȱpleasureȱinȱpresentingȱtoȱyouȱtheȱThirtyȱFifthȱAnnualȱReportȱofȱtheȱ
CompanyȱforȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱendedȱMarchȱ31,ȱ2020.ȱ

I. FinancialȱResults

TheȱfinancialȱperformanceȱofȱyourȱCompanyȱforȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱendedȱ31stȱMarchȱ2020ȱisȱas
under:

(Rs.ȱinȱMn)ȱ
YearȱendedȱMarchȱ31ȱ 2020ȱ 2019ȱ
Revenueȱ fromȱ Operationsȱ includingȱ
OtherȱIncomeȱ

3424ȱ 3911ȱ

Profitȱ Beforeȱ Depreciationȱ Interest,ȱ
Exchangeȱ Gain/Loss,ȱ NonȬrecurringȱ
itemsȱandȱTaxȱ(PBDIT)ȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱ457ȱ 638ȱ

ȱProfitȱBeforeȱTaxȱandȱexceptionalȱitemsȱȱ (181)ȱ 70ȱ
Less:ȱExceptionalȱitemsȱ (241)ȱ Ȭȱ
Profitȱ Beforeȱ Taxȱ andȱ afterȱ exceptionalȱ
itemsȱ

(422)ȱ 70ȱ

ProfitȱAfterȱTaxȱ (387)ȱ 41ȱ

II. Businessȱduringȱtheȱyear

Theȱyearȱunderȱreviewȱsawȱaȱ~ȱ12%ȱfallȱ inȱtheȱOverallȱRevenueȱandȱaȱ~ȱ2Ş%ȱdeclineȱ inȱPBDITȱ
beforeȱexceptionalȱitems.ȱDueȱtoȱtheȱslowingȱdownȱofȱtheȱIndianȱeconomy,ȱasȱshownȱbyȱslowingȱ
GDPȱgrowthȱrates,ȱresultingȱinȱaȱshortfallȱinȱcollectionȱofȱtaxes,ȱtheȱCentralȱGovernmentȱcutȱbackȱ
drasticallyȱonȱadvertisingȱthroughȱDAVPȱ&ȱNFDC.ȱȱAdvertisementȱrevenueȱfromȱGovernmentȱ
sectorȱtookȱaȱdeepȱdiveȱandȱYOYȱrevenueȱcameȱdownȱdrasticallyȱbyȱ~ȱINRȱ350ȱMnȱwhichȱseverelyȱ
impactedȱtheȱGrossȱMarginȱ&ȱProfitȱforȱtheȱyear.ȱGrossȱrevenueȱfromȱDomesticȱandȱInternationalȱ
ProductȱSalesȱalsoȱcameȱdownȱbyȱ~ȱINRȱ150ȱMnȱwhichȱtooȱimpactedȱtheȱGrossȱMarginȱandȱProfitȱ
forȱ theȱyear.ȱVirtualȱPrintȱFeeȱrevenueȱhadȱaȱmarginalȱgrowthȱandȱtheȱgrowthȱ isȱattributedȱ toȱ
increaseȱinȱtheȱnumberȱofȱmovieȱreleases.

TheseȱresultedȱinȱaȱfallȱinȱPBDITȱbeforeȱexceptionalȱitemsȱofȱyourȱCompanyȱfromȱRs.638ȱMnȱtoȱ
Rs.ȱ455Mn,ȱaȱfallȱofȱ~ȱ2Ş%.

TheȱCompany’sȱfinancialȱpositionȱcontinuedȱtoȱbeȱcomfortableȱwithȱoverallȱnetȱdebtȱofȱRs.471ȱMnȱ
(FY19:ȱ631Mn)ȱwhileȱtheȱPBDITȱbeforeȱexceptionalȱitemsȱtoȱNetȱDebtȱratioȱincreasedȱtoȱ1.04ȱ(FY19:ȱ
0.99)ȱonȱaccountȱofȱlossȱincurredȱduringȱFY20.



 
 

ROLLOUT:ȱ
ȱ
YourȱCompany’sȱscreenȱbaseȱonȱtheȱrollȬoutȱmodelsȱstoodȱatȱ3694ȱasȱatȱMarchȱ31,ȱ2020,ȱwithȱ3234ȱ
underȱtheȱMediaȱModelȱ[PreviousȱYearȱȬȱ2965]ȱandȱ460ȱunderȱtheȱPayȱPerȱUseȱModelȱ[Previousȱ
YearȱȬȱ441].ȱTheȱCompanyȱalsoȱcontractedȱnonȬdeploymentȱbasedȱand/ȱorȱlimitedȱmediaȱrightsȱ
forȱ177ȱscreens.ȱ
ȱ
Despiteȱirrationalȱcompetitiveȱactivity,ȱyourȱCompanyȱmaintainedȱitsȱoverallȱleadershipȱpositionȱ
inȱtheȱSouthȱandȱcontinuedȱtoȱmakeȱfurtherȱinroadsȱintoȱnewerȱterritories.ȱ
ȱ
Theȱyearȱsawȱanȱincreaseȱofȱaboutȱ3%ȱinȱVPFȱandȱMastering,ȱwhichȱwasȱalongȱexpectedȱlines.ȱAsȱ
inȱ theȱ earlierȱyears,ȱ theȱ trendȱofȱ conversionȱDCIȱ systemsȱ fromȱnonȬDCIȱ continuedȱ andȱyourȱ
Companyȱwasȱwellȱplacedȱtoȱcaterȱtoȱthis.ȱ
ȱ
QCN:ȱ
ȱ
Sluggishnessȱ inȱgrowth,ȱespeciallyȱ inȱ theȱGovernmentȱSector,ȱ ledȱ toȱ fallȱbyȱ~ȱ25%ȱ inȱ revenueȱ
terms.ȱWhileȱtheȱadvertisementȱrevenueȱfromȱGovernmentȱSectorȱdroppedȱdrasticallyȱfromȱ~ȱINRȱ
550ȱMnȱinȱFY19ȱtoȱ~ȱINRȱ200ȱMnȱinȱFY20ȱ(ȱdeclineȱinȱrevenueȱbyȱ~ȱ36%),ȱCorporateȱdemandȱfromȱ
nationalȱadvertisersȱandȱretailȱmarketsȱpickedȱupȱveryȱwellȱandȱcontributedȱaȱstrongȱ80%ȱofȱtheȱ
overallȱadvertisementȱrevenues.ȱDuringȱtheȱyearȱyourȱCompanyȱwasȱalsoȱsuccessfulȱinȱclosingȱ
quiteȱaȱfewȱannualȱdealsȱwithȱkeyȱadvertisers.ȱ
ȱ
COVIDȱ19:ȱ
ȱ
Asȱyouȱareȱwellȱaware,ȱWHOȱhadȱdeclaredȱCOVIDȬ`19ȱasȱaȱpandemicȱandȱtheȱGovernmentȱofȱ
IndiaȱandȱStateȱGovernmentsȱareȱtakingȱvariousȱmeasuresȱtoȱcurtailȱtheȱspread.ȱToȱavoidȱmassȱ
gatherings,ȱ everyȱ Stateȱ Governmentȱ hadȱ orderedȱ theȱ shutdownȱ ofȱmalls,ȱ cinemaȱ hallsȱ andȱ
multiplexesȱbeginningȱtheȱmiddleȱofȱMarchȱ2020ȱandȱconsequentlyȱthereȱwereȱnoȱfilmȱreleasesȱ
sinceȱthen.ȱTheȱGovernmentȱofȱIndiaȱhadȱdirectedȱaȱnationwideȱlockdownȱfromȱ24thȱMarchȱ2020ȱ
resultingȱinȱclosingȱofȱtheatresȱacrossȱallȱofȱIndia.ȱFurther,ȱasȱtheȱlockdownȱcontinues,ȱtheȱtheatresȱ
andȱmultiplexȱscreensȱacrossȱtheȱcountryȱareȱclosedȱandȱshallȱremainȱclosedȱuntilȱfurtherȱordersȱ
fromȱtheȱCentralȱ&ȱindividualȱStateȱGovernments.ȱThisȱhasȱbroughtȱyourȱCompany’sȱbusinessȱtoȱ
aȱcompleteȱhalt,ȱwithȱnoȱrevenuesȱ fromȱendȬMarchȱ2020ȱonwardsȱandȱweȱexpectȱ theȱ trendȱ toȱ
continueȱtillȱMidȱQ3ȱofȱFY21.ȱȱ
ȱ
Givenȱ theȱ currentȱ situation,ȱYourȱCompany’sȱprimaryȱ objectiveȱ isȱ toȱ getȱ throughȱ thisȱ toughȱ
periodȱandȱprepareȱtoȱbounceȱbackȱasȱtheȱsituationȱimproves.ȱYourȱCompanyȱhadȱtakenȱseveralȱ
initiativesȱandȱmeasuresȱtoȱreduceȱandȱoptimizeȱcost,ȱhadȱagreedȱonȱcertainȱdeferredȱpaymentȱ
scheduleȱwithȱkeyȱvendorsȱ/ȱsuppliersȱandȱhasȱtakenȱseveralȱstepsȱtoȱconserveȱcashȱtoȱsustainȱthisȱ
phaseȱuntilȱcinemasȱreȱopenȱandȱweȱareȱconfidentȱthatȱyourȱCompanyȱwillȱgetȱthroughȱthisȱtoughȱ
phaseȱandȱsubsequentlyȱbeginȱtheȱprocessȱofȱrebuildingȱbusinessȱtoȱpreȬCOVIDȱlevels.ȱȱ



 
 

Basedȱonȱcurrentȱindicatorsȱofȱfutureȱeconomicȱconditions,ȱyourȱCompanyȱexpectsȱtoȱrecoverȱtheȱ
carryingȱamountȱofȱallȱitsȱassetsȱandȱrevenueȱrecognized.ȱ
ȱ
Subsidiaryȱ&ȱAssociateȱCompanyȱ
ȱ
QubeȱCinemaȱInc.,ȱUSA.ȱ
ȱ
Duringȱtheȱyearȱunderȱreview,ȱyourȱCompany’sȱwhollyȱownedȱsubsidiary,ȱQubeȱCinemaȱInc.,ȱ
USA,ȱhadȱearnedȱrevenueȱofȱUSDȱ3.48ȱMnȱ(FYȱ19:ȱ2.48ȱMn)ȱandȱincurredȱaȱnetȱlossȱofȱUSDȱ0.66Mn.ȱ
(FY19ȱProfitȱofȱ0.06Mn).ȱQubeȱWireȱhasȱgainedȱmomentumȱsinceȱitsȱcommercialȱlaunchȱinȱAprilȱ
2018ȱandȱhasȱbecomeȱtheȱmajorȱrevenueȱsourceȱforȱtheȱsubsidiary.ȱ
ȱ
YourȱCompanyȱhadȱaȱsteadyȱgrowthȱinȱQubeȱWireȱrevenues.ȱNumberȱofȱdeliveriesȱthroughȱQubeȱ
Wireȱ increasedȱ byȱ ~ȱ 40%ȱ YOYȱ andȱ weȱ hadȱ successfullyȱ carriedȱ outȱ aroundȱ 300ȱWireTapȱ
installationsȱglobally,ȱresultingȱinȱaȱproportionateȱgrowthȱinȱRevenueȱbyȱ~ȱ43%.ȱ
ȱ
WithȱQubeȱWire’sȱwideȱacceptanceȱinȱtheȱoverseasȱmarket,ȱrevenueȱgrewȱbyȱ~ȱ43%ȱfromȱ~INRȱ
150ȱMnȱinȱFY19ȱtoȱ~ȱINRȱ215ȱMnȱinȱFY20.ȱTheȱnumberȱofȱoverseasȱcontentȱdeliveriesȱincreasedȱ
fromȱnearlyȱ30,000ȱdeliveriesȱ inȱFY19ȱ toȱnearlyȱ42,000ȱdeliveriesȱ inȱFY20.ȱYourȱCompanyȱhadȱ
successfullyȱinstalledȱnearlyȱ300ȱWireTapsȱinȱvariousȱgeographiesȱasȱatȱendȱMar’20ȱtoȱfacilitateȱ
theȱelectronicȱdeliveryȱofȱmovieȱcontentȱforȱtheatricalȱrelease.ȱYourȱCompanyȱhadȱalsoȱsignedȱupȱ
withȱsomeȱHollywoodȱStudiosȱforȱdeliveryȱofȱtheirȱmovieȱcontentȱthroughȱQubeȱWire.ȱȱ
ȱ
JusticketsȱPrivateȱLimitedȱ(Justickets),ȱanȱAssociateȱofȱyourȱCompanyȱeffectiveȱ29thȱMarchȱ2019ȱȱ
ȱ
Duringȱtheȱyearȱunderȱreview,ȱJusticketsȱPvtȱLtd.,ȱhadȱearnedȱrevenueȱofȱ~ȱINRȱ67ȱMnȱ(FY19:ȱ~ȱ
INRȱ80Mn).ȱConsequentȱtoȱvariousȱcostȱreductionȱandȱrationalizationȱinitiativesȱtakenȱduringȱtheȱ
yearȱunderȱreview,ȱoverallȱlossȱhasȱcomeȱdownȱfromȱ~ȱINRȱ55MnȱinȱFY19ȱtoȱ~ȱINRȱ49ȱMnȱinȱFY20.ȱ
ȱ
DetailsȱofȱtheȱSubsidiaryȱCompanyȱandȱAssociateȱCompanyȱinȱformȱAOCȱ1ȱisȱannexedȱherewithȱ
markedȱasȱAnnexureȱAȱandȱformsȱpartȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

III. NamesȱofȱCompaniesȱwhichȱhaveȱbecomeȱorȱceasedȱtoȱbeȱitsȱsubsidiaryȱ(ies),ȱJointȱVenturesȱorȱ
AssociateȱCompaniesȱduringȱtheȱyear:ȱNilȱ
ȱ

IV. Materialȱ changesȱandȱ commitments,ȱ ifȱany,ȱaffectingȱ theȱ financialȱpositionȱofȱ theȱCompanyȱ
whichȱhasȱoccurredȱsinceȱ31stȱMarchȱ2020ȱtillȱtheȱdateȱofȱreportȱȱ
ȱ
ThereȱareȱnoȱmaterialȱchangesȱandȱcommitmentsȱaffectingȱtheȱfinancialȱpositionȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱ
whichȱhasȱoccurredȱsinceȱ31stȱMarchȱ2020ȱtillȱtheȱdateȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

V. Changeȱinȱtheȱnatureȱofȱbusinessȱifȱanyȱȱ
ȱThereȱwasȱnoȱchangeȱinȱtheȱnatureȱofȱtheȱbusinessȱduringȱtheȱyearȱunderȱreview.ȱ



 
 

VI. TransferȱtoȱReservesȱ–ȱNILȱ
ȱ

VII. DeclarationȱofȱDividendȱ–ȱNILȱ
ȱ

VIII. Depositsȱ
ȱ
YourȱCompanyȱhasȱnotȱacceptedȱanyȱdepositsȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱnorȱhasȱanyȱoutstandingȱ
unclaimedȱorȱunpaidȱpublicȱdepositsȱasȱonȱ31stȱMarchȱ2020.ȱ
ȱ

IX. DetailsȱofȱDirectorsȱorȱKeyȱManagerialȱPersonnelȱwhoȱwereȱappointedȱorȱhaveȱresignedȱduringȱ
theȱyearȱȱȱ
ȱ
a. CompanyȱSecretaryȱ
ȱ
Duringȱtheȱyear,ȱMr.ȱP.ȱMuraliȱKrishnaȱwasȱappointedȱasȱCompanyȱSecretaryȱofȱQubeȱCinemaȱ
Technologiesȱ Pvt.ȱLtd.ȱ (QCT)ȱwithȱ effectȱ fromȱ 10thȱ Juneȱ 2019ȱ andȱ ceasedȱ toȱ beȱ asȱCompanyȱ
SecretaryȱofȱQCTȱwithȱeffectȱfromȱ24thȱOctoberȱ2019.ȱ
ȱ
Ms.ȱS.ȱSriȱVarshiniȱwasȱappointedȱasȱCompanyȱSecretaryȱofȱQubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvtȱLtd.ȱ
withȱeffectȱfromȱ24thȱOctoberȱ2019.ȱȱ
ȱ
b. ChiefȱExecutiveȱOfficerȱ(CEO)ȱ
ȱ
Mr.ȱArvindȱRanganathanȱceasedȱ toȱbeȱ theȱCEOȱofȱQubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱLtdȱ (QCT)ȱ
withȱeffectȱfromȱ31stȱMayȱ2019ȱandȱMr.ȱHarshȱKrishnaȱRohatgiȱwasȱappointedȱasȱtheȱCEOȱofȱQCTȱ
withȱeffectȱ04thȱJuneȱ2019.ȱȱ
ȱ
c. ChiefȱFinancialȱOfficerȱ(CFO)ȱ
ȱ
Mr.ȱP.ȱRaghunathȱwasȱappointedȱasȱtheȱChiefȱFinancialȱOfficerȱofȱQubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvtȱ
Ltdȱwithȱeffectȱfromȱ03rdȱFebruaryȱ2020.ȱȱ
ȱ
d. Directorsȱ
ȱ
Ms.ȱ Louiseȱ JaneȱMoatȱ wasȱ appointedȱ asȱ theȱ Nomineeȱ Directorȱ representingȱ Nomuraȱ Asiaȱ
Investmentȱ(MB)ȱPte.ȱLtd.ȱinȱtheȱBoardȱofȱQCTȱwithȱeffectȱfromȱ10thȱAprilȱ2019.ȱȱ
ȱ

X. Particularsȱofȱloans,ȱguaranteesȱorȱinvestmentsȱunderȱSectionȱ186ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013ȱ
ȱ
Thereȱareȱnoȱloans,ȱguaranteesȱorȱinvestmentsȱexceedingȱtheȱlimitsȱprescribedȱunderȱSectionȱ186ȱ
ofȱtheȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013.ȱȱ
ȱ
ȱ



 
 

XI. NetȱWorthȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ(AmountȱinȱRs.ȱMn)ȱ
ȱ Asȱonȱ31.03.2020ȱ Asȱonȱ31.03.2019ȱ
NetȬworthȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱ 1908.51ȱ 2308.44ȱ
ȱ

XII. ComplianceȱwithȱSecretarialȱStandardsȱ
ȱ
Duringȱ theȱ financialȱ yearȱ underȱ reviewȱ yourȱCompanyȱwasȱ regularȱ inȱ complianceȱwithȱ theȱ
applicableȱSecretarialȱStandards.ȱ
ȱ

XIII. BoardȱMeetingsȱheldȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱȱ
ȱ
5ȱ(Five)ȱBoardȱMeetingsȱwereȱheldȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱonȱ26thȱJune,ȱ2019;ȱ12thȱAugust,ȱ2019;ȱ
24thȱOctober,ȱ2019;ȱ23rdȱJanuaryȱ2020ȱandȱ10thȱMarch,ȱ2020.ȱ

AttendanceȱdetailsȱofȱDirectorsȱ
NameȱofȱDirectorsȱ NumberȱofȱBoardȱMeetingsȱ

entitledȱtoȱattendȱduringȱtheȱ
yearȱ

NumberȱofȱBoardȱMeetingsȱ
attendedȱduringȱtheȱyearȱ

P.ȱJayendraȱȱ 5ȱ 4ȱ
V.ȱSenthilȱKumarȱ 5ȱ 5ȱ
LouiseȱJaneȱMoatȱ 5ȱ 5ȱ
AtsushiȱOkabeȱ 5ȱ 3ȱ
M.G.ȱParameswaranȱ 5ȱ 5ȱ
AnirudhȱRajȱSarathyȱ 5ȱ 4ȱ

ȱ
ȱȱCommitteeȱMeetingȱheldȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȬȱNilȱȱ
ȱ

XIV. DetailsȱofȱPoliciesȱdevelopedȱbyȱtheȱCompany:ȱ
ȱ ȱ
a) CorporateȱSocialȱResponsibilityȱPolicyȱ

ȱ
TheȱBoardȱhas,ȱonȱtheȱrecommendationȱofȱtheȱCSRȱCommittee,ȱapprovedȱtheȱCSRȱPolicy.ȱȱ

ȱ
TheȱCompany’sȱCSRȱPolicyȱisȱavailableȱonȱtheȱCompany’sȱwebsiteȱwww.qubecinema.com.ȱ
Annualȱ Reportȱ onȱ CSRȱ asȱ requiredȱ underȱ Ruleȱ 8ȱ ofȱ theȱ Companiesȱ (Corporateȱ Socialȱ
ResponsibilityȱPolicy)ȱRules,ȱ2014ȱisȱattachedȱherewithȱmarkedȱasȱAnnexureȱBȱandȱformsȱ
partȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ

ȱ
b) RiskȱManagementȱPolicyȱ

ȱ
BusinessȱRiskȱEvaluationȱandȱManagementȱisȱanȱongoingȱprocessȱwithinȱtheȱOrganization.ȱ
PursuantȱtoȱSectionȱ134(3)ȱ(n)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013,ȱtheȱManagementȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱ



 
 

hasȱ framedȱ aȱ RiskȱManagementȱ Policyȱ forȱ theȱ keyȱ elementsȱ ofȱ riskȱ affectingȱ theȱ coreȱ
businessȱofȱyourȱCompany.ȱInȱrespectȱofȱthese,ȱtheȱCompanyȱhasȱinȱplaceȱaȱmechanismȱtoȱ
identify,ȱ assess,ȱ monitorȱ andȱ mitigateȱ withȱ aȱ viewȱ toȱ achievingȱ keyȱ businessȱ
objectives.ȱ ȱMajorȱ risksȱ identifiedȱ byȱ theȱ businessȱ andȱ functionsȱ areȱ systematicallyȱ
addressedȱthroughȱmitigatingȱactionsȱonȱaȱcontinuingȱbasisȱandȱitȱisȱtowardsȱthisȱendȱthatȱ
yourȱCompanyȱhasȱobtainedȱISOȱ22001ȱcertificationȱforȱ itsȱprocessesȱunderlyingȱtheȱcoreȱ
businessesȱofȱdigitalȱcinemaȱmasteringȱandȱcontentȱlicensing.ȱGenerally,ȱandȱasȱpartȱofȱthisȱ
framework,ȱtheȱCompanyȱhasȱnotȱ identifiedȱanyȱelementȱofȱriskȱwhichȱmayȱthreatenȱtheȱ
existenceȱofȱtheȱCompany.ȱ

ȱ
c) VigilȱMechanism/WhistleȱBlowerȱPolicyȱ

ȱ
Yourȱ Companyȱ hasȱ formulatedȱ aȱ Vigilȱ Mechanismȱ Policyȱ withȱ aȱ viewȱ toȱ provideȱ aȱ
mechanismȱ forȱemployeesȱandȱdirectorsȱofȱ theȱCompanyȱ toȱapproachȱ theȱVigilanceȱandȱ
EthicsȱOfficerȱtoȱensureȱadequateȱsafeguardsȱagainstȱvictimization.ȱThisȱpolicyȱwouldȱhelpȱ
createȱanȱenvironmentȱwhereinȱindividualsȱfeelȱfreeȱandȱsecureȱtoȱraiseȱanȱalarm,ȱwheneverȱ
anyȱ fraudulentȱ activityȱ takesȱ placeȱ orȱ isȱ likelyȱ toȱ takeȱ place.ȱ Itȱ willȱ alsoȱ ensureȱ thatȱ
complainant(s)ȱareȱprotectedȱfromȱretribution,ȱwhetherȱwithinȱorȱoutsideȱtheȱorganization.ȱ
TheȱBoardȱhasȱelectedȱMs.ȱS.ȱVȱPrathima,ȱasȱtheȱVigilanceȱandȱEthicsȱOfficerȱunderȱtheȱvigilȱ
mechanismȱpolicy.ȱTheȱdetailsȱofȱestablishmentȱofȱtheȱVigilȱMechanismȱPolicyȱareȱdisplayedȱ
onȱtheȱwebsiteȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱwww.qubecinema.com.ȱ
ȱ
Inȱ termsȱofȱSectionȱ177ȱ (9)ȱofȱ theȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013,ȱyourȱCompanyȱhasȱestablishedȱaȱ
policyȱwithȱregardȱtoȱvigilȱmechanismȱforȱdirectorsȱandȱemployeesȱtoȱreportȱtheirȱgenuineȱ
concernsȱinȱrespectȱtoȱtheȱfollowingȱareas:ȱȬȱ
ȱ

a.ȱ Financialȱirregularities,ȱincludingȱfraudȱorȱsuspectedȱfraud.ȱȱ
b.ȱ Wastageȱorȱmisappropriationȱofȱcompanyȱmoneyȱorȱassetsȱȱ
c.ȱ Abuseȱofȱauthorityȱȱ
d.ȱ Misbehaviorȱ withȱ stakeholdersȱ suchȱ asȱ employees,ȱ lenders,ȱ projectȱ

membersȱ&ȱtheirȱfamilyȱmembers,ȱetc.ȱ
e.ȱ Manipulationȱofȱcompanyȱdata/records/registerȱȱ
f.ȱ Accusedȱorȱconvictedȱinȱanyȱcriminalȱoffenceȱ
g.ȱ NonȬcomplianceȱwithȱ /ȱviolationȱofȱorganizationȱ rulesȱ&ȱ regulationsȱorȱ

statutoryȱrequirementsȱȱ
h.ȱ Anyȱotherȱunethical,ȱdishonestȱorȱbiasedȱhappenings.ȱ
ȱ

XV. Detailsȱpursuantȱtoȱemployeeȱstockȱoptionsȱȱ
ȱ
Issueȱofȱemployeeȱstockȱoptionsȱ
ȱ
PursuantȱtoȱRuleȱ12ȱ(9)ȱofȱCompaniesȱ(ShareȱCapitalȱandȱDebentures)ȱRules,ȱ2014,ȱfollowingȱareȱ
theȱdetailsȱregardingȱEmployeesȱStockȱOptionȱScheme:ȱȬȱ



 
 

TableȱAȱ

OptionsȱGrantedȱȱ 12,14,158ȱ
OptionsȱVestedȱ 12,14,158ȱ
OptionsȱExercisedȱ ȱȱ9,14,158ȱ
TotalȱNumberȱofȱsharesȱarisingȱasȱaȱresultȱofȱexerciseȱofȱOptionsȱȱ ȱ

ȱȱ9,14,158ȱ
Optionsȱlapsedȱ NILȱ
ExerciseȱPriceȱ Rs.10/ȬȱperȱOptionȱ
VariationȱofȱTermsȱofȱOptionsȱ NILȱ
MoneyȱrealizedȱbyȱexerciseȱofȱOptionsȱ NILȱ
TotalȱnumberȱofȱOptionsȱinȱforceȱ 3,00,000ȱ
EmployeeȬwiseȱdetailsȱofȱOptionsȱgrantedȱtoȱȬȱ

i) KeyȱManagerialȱPersonnelȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

ii) Anyȱotherȱemployeeȱwhoȱreceivesȱaȱgrantȱofȱoptionsȱinȱ
anyȱ oneȱyearȱ ofȱ optionȱ amountingȱ toȱ fiveȱpercentȱ orȱ
moreȱofȱoptionsȱgrantedȱduringȱtheȱyearȱ
ȱ

iii) IdentifiedȱemployeesȱwhoȱwereȱgrantedȱOption,ȱduringȱ
anyȱoneȱyear,ȱequalȱtoȱorȱexceedingȱoneȱpercentȱofȱtheȱ
issuedȱ capitalȱ (excludingȱ outstandingȱ warrantsȱ andȱ
conversions)ȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱatȱtheȱtimeȱofȱgrantȱ

ȱ
Mr.ArvindȱRanganathan,ȱȱ
CEOȱ tillȱ 31stȱMayȱ 2020–ȱ
180,000ȱOptionsȱȱ
ȱ
NILȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
NILȱ

ȱ
TableȱBȱ

OptionsȱGrantedȱȱ 75,000ȱ
OptionsȱVestedȱ 75,000ȱ
OptionsȱExercisedȱ Ȭȱ
TotalȱNumberȱofȱsharesȱarisingȱasȱaȱresultȱofȱexerciseȱofȱOptionsȱȱ ȱ

Ȭȱ
Optionsȱlapsedȱ NILȱ
ExerciseȱPriceȱ Rs.130/ȬȱperȱOptionȱ
VariationȱofȱTermsȱofȱOptionsȱ NILȱ
MoneyȱrealizedȱbyȱexerciseȱofȱOptionsȱ NILȱ
TotalȱnumberȱofȱOptionsȱinȱforceȱ 75,000ȱ



 
 

EmployeeȬwiseȱdetailsȱofȱOptionsȱgrantedȱtoȱ–ȱ
ȱ

i) KeyȱManagerialȱPersonnelȱ
ȱ

ii) Anyȱotherȱemployeeȱwhoȱreceivesȱaȱgrantȱofȱoptionsȱ
inȱanyȱoneȱyearȱofȱoptionȱamountingȱtoȱfiveȱpercentȱ
orȱmoreȱofȱoptionsȱgrantedȱduringȱthatȱyearȱ
ȱ

iii) Identifiedȱ employeesȱ whoȱ wereȱ grantedȱ Option,ȱ
duringȱ anyȱ oneȱ year,ȱ equalȱ toȱ orȱ exceedingȱ oneȱ
percentȱofȱ theȱ issuedȱcapitalȱ (excludingȱoutstandingȱ
warrantsȱ andȱ conversions)ȱ ofȱ theȱ Companyȱ atȱ theȱ
timeȱofȱgrantȱ

ȱ
Mr.ȱHarshȱRohatgiȱCEOȱ
w.e.fȱ4thȱJuneȱ2020ȱȬ50,000ȱ
optionsȱȱ
ȱ
Mr.ȱSanjeevȱMehtaȱ
BusinessȱHeadȱ–ȱQCNȱ–ȱ
25,000ȱoptionsȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
NILȱ

ȱ
XVI. ȱParticularsȱofȱEmployeesȱ

ȱ
ParticularsȱofȱemployeesȱasȱrequiredȱunderȱSectionȱ197ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013,ȱreadȱwithȱ
Ruleȱ5(2)ȱofȱ theȱCompaniesȱ (AppointmentȱandȱRemunerationȱofȱManagerialȱPersonnel)ȱRulesȱ
2014ȱareȱannexedȱherewithȱmarkedȱasȱAnnexureȱCȱandȱformsȱpartȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

XVII. ExtractȱofȱtheȱAnnualȱReturnȱ
ȱ
AnȱextractȱofȱtheȱAnnualȱReturnȱasȱrequiredȱunderȱtheȱprovisionsȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013ȱisȱ
beingȱpostedȱonȱyourȱCompany’sȱwebsiteȱ–ȱwww.qubecinema.comȱ ȱandȱ theȱsameȱ isȱannexedȱ
herewithȱmarkedȱasȱAnnexureȱDȱandȱformsȱpartȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

XVIII. AdequacyȱofȱInternalȱFinancialȱControlsȱȱ
ȱ
YourȱCompanyȱhasȱadequateȱinternalȱfinancialȱcontrolsȱwithȱreferenceȱtoȱpreparationȱofȱfinancialȱ
statements,ȱcommensurateȱwithȱtheȱsizeȱofȱoperationsȱofȱtheȱCompany.ȱ
ȱ

XIX. DisclosuresȱasȱperȱtheȱSexualȱHarassmentȱofȱWomenȱatȱWorkȱplaceȱ(Prevention,ȱProhibitionȱandȱ
Redressal)ȱAct,ȱ2013ȱȱ
ȱ
YourȱCompanyȱhasȱzeroȱtoleranceȱforȱsexualȱharassmentȱatȱworkplaceȱandȱhasȱadoptedȱaȱPolicyȱ
onȱ prevention,ȱ prohibitionȱ andȱ redressalȱ ofȱsexualȱharassmentȱ atȱworkplaceȱ inȱ lineȱwithȱ theȱ
provisionsȱ ofȱ theȱSexualȱHarassmentȱ ofȱWomenȱ atȱWorkplaceȱ (Prevention,ȱ Prohibitionȱ andȱ
Redressal)ȱ Act,ȱ 2013ȱ andȱ theȱ Rulesȱ thereunderȱ forȱ preventionȱ andȱ redressalȱ ofȱ complaintsȱ
ofȱsexualȱharassmentȱatȱworkplace.ȱȱ
Also,ȱyourȱCompanyȱhasȱcompliedȱwithȱ theȱprovisionsȱrelatingȱ toȱ theȱconstitutionȱofȱ Internalȱ
Complaintsȱ Committeeȱ underȱ theȱ SexualȱHarassmentȱ ofȱWomenȱ atȱWorkplaceȱ (Prevention,ȱ
ProhibitionȱandȱRedressal)ȱAct,ȱ2013.ȱ



 
 

ȱȱ
YourȱCompanyȱhasȱreceivedȱnoȱcomplaintȱonȱsexualȱharassmentȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱ2019Ȭ
20.ȱȱ
ȱ
VariousȱworkshopsȱwereȱorganizedȱbyȱyourȱCompanyȱtoȱgiveȱawarenessȱtoȱemployeesȱonȱthisȱ
subject.ȱ
ȱ

XX. SignificantȱandȱmaterialȱordersȱpassedȱbyȱtheȱRegulatorsȱorȱCourtsȱorȱTribunalsȱimpactingȱtheȱ
goingȱconcernȱstatusȱandȱCompany’sȱoperationsȱinȱfutureȱ
ȱ
FollowingȱordersȱwereȱreceivedȱbyȱtheȱCompanyȱduringȱtheȱperiodȱunderȱreview:ȱ

a. TheȱHon’bleȱNCLAT,ȱNewȱDelhi,ȱvideȱitsȱOrderȱdatedȱ23rdȱOctoberȱ2019,ȱallowedȱtheȱAppealȱ
filedȱbyȱUFOȱandȱsetȱasideȱ theȱOrderȱofȱ theȱHon’bleȱNCLT,ȱMumbaiȱBench.ȱTheȱHon’bleȱ
NCLATȱOrder,ȱfurtherȱstatesȱthat,ȱifȱtheȱAppellantȱCompaniesȱdesiresȱtoȱproceedȱfurther,ȱtheȱ
procedureȱenshrinedȱunderȱ theȱprovisionsȱofȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱandȱotherȱprovisionsȱunderȱ
variousȱ law,ȱ asȱ mayȱ beȱ applicableȱ toȱ theȱ Companyȱ hasȱ toȱ beȱ followed.ȱ However,ȱ theȱ
CompositeȱMergerȱwasȱnotȱproceededȱfurther,ȱconsideringȱtheȱchangeȱinȱcircumstancesȱpostȱ
theȱOrderȱofȱHon’bleȱNCLT,ȱMumbaiȱBenchȱandȱtheȱCompositeȱMergerȱdidȱnotȱtakeȱplaceȱ
duringȱtheȱyearȱunderȱreview.ȱ

ȱ
b. TheȱHon’bleȱNCLAT,ȱNewȱDelhi,ȱvideȱOrderȱdatedȱ4thȱDecemberȱ2019,ȱrejectedȱtheȱSchemeȱ

ofȱAmalgamationȱbetweenȱRealȱImageȱLLPȱandȱQubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱLtd.ȱandȱtheirȱ
respectiveȱpartnersȱandȱshareholdersȱandȱsetȱasideȱ theȱNCLTȱOrderȱdatedȱ11thȱ Juneȱ2018ȱ
approvingȱtheȱScheme.ȱHence,ȱtheȱSchemeȱofȱAmalgamationȱdidȱnotȱtakeȱplaceȱduringȱtheȱ
yearȱunderȱreview.ȱȱ

ȱ
XXI. ȱParticularsȱofȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementsȱwithȱrelatedȱpartiesȱ

ȱ
TheȱparticularsȱofȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementsȱenteredȱintoȱbyȱtheȱCompanyȱwithȱrelatedȱpartiesȱ
referredȱtoȱinȱsubȬsectionȱ(1)ȱofȱSectionȱ188ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013ȱincludingȱcertainȱarm’sȱ
lengthȱtransactionsȱunderȱthirdȱprovisoȱtheretoȱinȱFormȱNo.ȱAOCȬ2ȱisȱannexedȱherewithȱmarkedȱ
asȱAnnexureȱEȱandȱformsȱpartȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

XXII. StatutoryȱAuditorsȱȬȱBȱSȱRȱ&ȱCo.ȱLLPȱȱ
ȱ
YourȱcompanyȱstatutoryȱauditorsȱBSRȱ&ȱCo.ȱLLP.,ȱCharteredȱAccountants,ȱhavingȱtheirȱofficeȱatȱ
10,ȱ Mahatmaȱ Gandhiȱ Road,ȱ Nungambakkam,ȱ Chennaiȱ 600ȱ 034,ȱ wasȱ appointedȱ byȱ theȱ
shareholdersȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱinȱtheȱThirtyȱSecondȱAnnualȱGeneralȱMeetingȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱheldȱ
onȱ24thȱAugustȱ2017ȱasȱtheȱStatutoryȱauditorsȱofȱyourȱcompanyȱforȱaȱperiodȱofȱ5ȱyearsȱcommencingȱ
fromȱtheȱconclusionȱofȱtheȱThirtyȱSecondȱAnnualȱGeneralȱMeeting.ȱAccordingly,ȱBSRȱ&ȱCo.ȱLLP.,ȱ



 
 

CharteredȱAccountants,ȱholdsȱofficeȱ tillȱ theȱ conclusionȱofȱ theȱThirtyȱSeventhȱAnnualȱGeneralȱ
Meeting.ȱTheȱrequirementȱtoȱplaceȱtheȱmatterȱrelatingȱtoȱappointmentȱofȱauditorsȱforȱratificationȱ
byȱMembersȱatȱeveryȱAGMȱhasȱbeenȱdoneȱawayȱbyȱtheȱCompaniesȱ(Amendment)ȱAct,ȱ2017ȱwithȱ
effectȱfromȱMayȱ7,ȱ2018.ȱAccordingly,ȱtheȱratificationȱofȱappointmentȱofȱstatutoryȱauditorsȱBSRȱ&ȱ
Co.ȱ LLP.,ȱ CharteredȱAccountants,ȱ Chennaiȱ isȱ notȱ proposedȱ atȱ theȱ ensuingȱAnnualȱ Generalȱ
Meeting.ȱȱ
ȱ

XXIII. Qualification(s)ȱofȱAuditorsȱinȱtheirȱReportȱ
ȱ
ThereȱareȱnoȱadverseȱremarksȱorȱobservationsȱinȱtheȱAuditors’ȱReportȱwhichȱrequireȱclarificationȱ
fromȱtheȱBoard.ȱȱ
ȱ

XXIV. DetailsȱofȱfraudsȱreportedȱbyȱAuditorsȱinȱtheirȱReportȱȱ
ȱ
Duringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreview,ȱthereȱwereȱnoȱfraudȱreportedȱbyȱtheȱAuditorsȱinȱtheirȱ
reportȱunderȱsubȬsectionȱ(12)ȱofȱSectionȱ143ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013ȱotherȱthanȱthoseȱwhichȱ
areȱreportableȱtoȱtheȱCentralȱGovernment.ȱȱ
ȱ

XXV. MaintenanceȱofȱCostȱRecordsȱ
ȱ
Maintenanceȱofȱcostȱ recordsȱasȱ specifiedȱbyȱ theȱCentralȱGovernmentȱunderȱ subȬsectionȱ (1)ȱofȱ
Sectionȱ148ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013,ȱisȱnotȱapplicable.ȱ
ȱ

XXVI. ConservationȱofȱEnergy,ȱTechnologyȱAbsorptionȱandȱForeignȱExchangeȱEarningsȱandȱOutgoȱ
ȱ
ParticularsȱasȱrequiredȱunderȱSectionȱ134(3)ȱ(m)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013ȱareȱannexedȱherewithȱ
markedȱasȱAnnexureȱFȱandȱformsȱpartȱofȱthisȱreport.ȱ
ȱ

XXVII. Directors’ȱResponsibilityȱStatementȱ
ȱ
a) inȱ theȱpreparationȱofȱ theȱannualȱaccounts,ȱ theȱapplicableȱaccountingȱ standardsȱhadȱbeenȱ

followedȱalongȱwithȱproperȱexplanationȱrelatingȱtoȱmaterialȱdepartures;ȱ
ȱ
b) theȱdirectorsȱhadȱselectedȱsuchȱaccountingȱpoliciesȱandȱappliedȱthemȱconsistentlyȱandȱmadeȱ

judgmentsȱandȱestimatesȱthatȱareȱreasonableȱandȱprudentȱsoȱasȱtoȱgiveȱaȱtrueȱandȱfairȱviewȱ
ofȱtheȱstateȱofȱaffairsȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱatȱtheȱendȱofȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱandȱofȱtheȱprofitȱandȱ
lossȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱforȱthatȱperiod;ȱ

ȱ
c) theȱ directorsȱ hadȱ takenȱ properȱ andȱ sufficientȱ careȱ forȱ theȱ maintenanceȱ ofȱ adequateȱ

accountingȱrecordsȱinȱaccordanceȱwithȱtheȱprovisionsȱofȱthisȱActȱforȱsafeguardingȱtheȱassetsȱ
ofȱtheȱCompanyȱandȱforȱpreventingȱandȱdetectingȱfraudȱandȱotherȱirregularities;ȱ

ȱ
d) theȱdirectorsȱhadȱpreparedȱtheȱannualȱaccountsȱonȱaȱgoingȱconcernȱbasis;ȱandȱ



 
 

ȱ
e) theȱdirectorsȱhadȱdevisedȱproperȱsystemsȱ toȱensureȱcomplianceȱwithȱ theȱprovisionsȱofȱallȱ

applicableȱlawsȱandȱthatȱsuchȱsystemsȱwereȱadequateȱandȱoperatingȱeffectively.ȱ
ȱ

XXVIII. Acknowledgementȱ
ȱ
YourȱDirectorsȱwishȱ toȱplaceȱonȱ recordȱ theirȱsincereȱ thanksȱandȱappreciationȱ toȱ itsȱCompanyȱ
Investors,ȱshareholders,ȱsuppliers,ȱcustomers,ȱemployees,ȱbankersȱandȱalsoȱtheȱCentralȱandȱStateȱ
governmentsȱforȱtheirȱcontinuedȱcoȬoperationȱandȱsupport.ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
Place:ȱChennaiȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱForȱandȱonȱbehalfȱofȱtheȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱ

ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

P.ȱJayendraȱ
ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱChairmanȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ
ȱ
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AnnexureȱAȱ
FormȱAOCȱȬȱ1ȱ

(PursuantȱtoȱfirstȱprovisoȱtoȱsubȬsectionȱ(3)ȱofȱSectionȱ129ȱreadȱwithȱRuleȱ5ȱofȱCompaniesȱ(Accounts)ȱRules,ȱ2014)ȱ
ȱ

StatementȱcontainingȱsalientȱfeaturesȱofȱtheȱFinancialȱStatementȱofȱSubsidiariesȱ/ȱAssociateȱ
Companiesȱ/ȱJointȱVenturesȱ

Partȱ“A”:ȱSubsidiariesȱ
(InformationȱinȱrespectȱofȱeachȱsubsidiaryȱtoȱbeȱpresentedȱwithȱamountsȱinȱRs.)ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

ȱ
ȱ
Notes:ȱTheȱfollowingȱinformationȱshallȱbeȱfurnishedȱatȱtheȱendȱofȱtheȱstatement:ȱ
ȱ
1.ȱNamesȱofȱsubsidiariesȱwhichȱareȱyetȱtoȱcommenceȱoperationsȱȬȱNILȱ
2.ȱNamesȱofȱsubsidiariesȱwhichȱhaveȱbeenȱliquidatedȱorȱsoldȱduringȱtheȱyearȱȬȱNILȱ
ȱ ȱ

S.ȱNo.ȱ Particularsȱ DetailsȱofȱSubsidiaryȱ
1ȱ Nameȱofȱtheȱsubsidiaryȱ QubeȱCinemaȱInc.ȱUSAȱ
2ȱ Theȱdateȱsinceȱwhenȱsubsidiaryȱwasȱ

acquiredȱ
27/09/2005ȱ

3ȱ Reportingȱ periodȱ forȱ theȱ subsidiaryȱ
concerned,ȱifȱdifferentȱfromȱtheȱholdingȱ
company’sȱreportingȱperiodȱ

NAȱ

4ȱ ReportingȱcurrencyȱandȱExchangeȱrateȱ
asȱ onȱ theȱ lastȱ dateȱ ofȱ theȱ relevantȱ
Financialȱ yearȱ inȱ theȱ caseȱ ofȱ foreignȱ
subsidiaries.ȱ

USD/75.3859ȱ

5ȱ Shareȱcapitalȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ488,123,703ȱȱ
6ȱ Reservesȱ&ȱSurplusȱ ȱȱ(423,182,670)ȱ
7ȱ TotalȱAssetsȱ 117,536,192ȱȱ
8ȱ TotalȱLiabilitiesȱ 117,536,192ȱ
9ȱ Investmentsȱ Nilȱȱ
10ȱ Turnoverȱ 262,601,430ȱȱ
11ȱ Profitȱbeforeȱtaxationȱ (49,685,490)ȱȱ
12ȱ Provisionȱforȱtaxationȱ ȱ120,617ȱȱȱȱ
13ȱ Profitȱafterȱtaxationȱ (49,806,107)ȱȱ
14ȱ ProposedȱDividendȱ Nilȱ
15ȱ %ȱofȱshareholdingȱ 100ȱ
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Partȱ“B”:ȱAssociatesȱCompaniesȱ/ȱJointȱVenturesȱ
ȱ
Statementȱ pursuantȱ toȱ Sectionȱ 129(3)ȱ ofȱ theȱ Companiesȱ Act,ȱ 2013ȱ relatedȱ toȱ Associateȱ
CompaniesȱandȱJointȱVenturesȱ
ȱ

S.ȱNo.ȱ Particularsȱ DetailsȱofȱAssociateȱ
ȱ NameȱofȱAssociates/JointȱVenturesȱ JusticketsȱPvt.ȱLtd.ȱ
1ȱ LatestȱauditedȱBalanceȱSheetȱDateȱ 31.03.2020ȱ
2ȱ Dateȱ onȱ whichȱ theȱ Associateȱ orȱ Jointȱ ventureȱ wasȱ

associatedȱorȱacquiredȱ
29thȱMarchȱ2019ȱ

3ȱ SharesȱofȱAssociateȱ/JointȱVenturesȱheldȱbyȱtheȱcompanyȱ
onȱtheȱyearȱendȱ

ȱ

ȱ No.ȱ 18,551,433ȱ
ȱ AmountȱofȱInvestmentȱinȱAssociatesȱorȱJointȱVentureȱ Rs.116.50ȱLakhsȱ
ȱ ExtentȱofȱHoldingȱ(inȱpercentage)ȱ 43%ȱ
4ȱ Descriptionȱofȱhowȱthereȱisȱsignificantȱinfluenceȱ Companyȱisȱholdingȱ

moreȱthanȱ20%ȱofȱtheȱ
EquityȱSharesȱofȱ
JusticketsȱPvt.ȱLtd.ȱ

5ȱ Reasonȱwhyȱtheȱassociate/jointȱventureȱisȱnotȱconsolidatedȱ Notȱmandatoryȱ
6ȱ NetȬworthȱ attributableȱ toȱ shareholdingȱ asȱ perȱ latestȱ

auditedȱ
BalanceȱSheetȱ

Rs.(369.35ȱLakhs)ȱ

7ȱ ProfitȱorȱLossȱforȱtheȱyearȱ ȱ
ȱ i. ConsideredȱinȱConsolidationȱ Nilȱ
ȱ ii. NotȱConsideredȱinȱConsolidationȱ Rs.ȱ(214.94ȱLakhs)ȱ

ȱ
1.ȱNamesȱofȱassociatesȱorȱjointȱventuresȱwhichȱareȱyetȱtoȱcommenceȱoperations:ȱNILȱ
2.ȱNamesȱofȱassociatesȱorȱjointȱventuresȱwhichȱhaveȱbeenȱliquidatedȱorȱsoldȱduringȱtheȱyear:ȱNILȱ
ȱ
Note:ȱThisȱFormȱisȱtoȱbeȱcertifiedȱinȱtheȱsameȱmannerȱinȱwhichȱtheȱBalanceȱSheetȱisȱtoȱbeȱcertified.ȱ
ȱ
Place:ȱChennaiȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱForȱ&ȱOnȱbehalfȱofȱtheȱBoardȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱ

ȱ
ȱ

ȱȱȱ S.ȱSriȱVarshiniȱ P.ȱJayendraȱ V.ȱSenthilȱKumarȱ
ȱ CompanyȱSecretaryȱ Chairmanȱ WholeȬTimeȱDirectorȱ
ȱ ȱ (DIN:ȱ00320286)ȱȱ (DIN:ȱ00320535)ȱ
ȱ



QUBEȱCINEMAȱTECHNOLOGIESȱPRIVATEȱLIMITEDȱ
ȱ

DIRECTORS’ȱREPORTȱ2019Ȭ20ȱ
 

AnnexureȱBȱ
ȱ

CorporateȱSocialȱResponsibilityȱ(CSR)ȱPolicyȱ
ȱ
Basedȱonȱ theȱ recommendationsȱofȱCSRȱCommittee,ȱyourȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱhasȱapprovedȱaȱCSRȱ
Policyȱ–ȱ
ȱ
Toȱcontributeȱ2%ȱofȱtheȱaverageȱnetȱprofitsȱofȱyourȱCompanyȱforȱtheȱprecedingȱthreeȱyearsȱ(currentlyȱ
inȱvogueȱunderȱtheȱprovisionsȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013)ȱȬȱ
ȱ

A. toȱtheȱinstitutions/organizations/trust(s)ȱwhoȱareȱengagedȱinȱ–ȱ
i) providingȱassistance/financialȱsupport/reliefȱ toȱ theȱpeopleȱwhoȱareȱaffectedȱbyȱhunger,ȱ

poverty,ȱillȬhealth,ȱdisablement;ȱȱ
ii) promotingȱeducationȱincludingȱspecialȱeducation,ȱemploymentȱenhancingȱvocationȱskillsȱ

amongȱchildren,ȱwomen,ȱelderlyȱpersons;ȱ
iii) settingȱupȱhomesȱandȱhostelsȱforȱwomenȱandȱorphans,ȱoldȱageȱhomes,ȱdayȱcareȱcentresȱ

forȱseniorȱcitizens;ȱȱ
iv) takingȱmeasuresȱforȱreducingȱinequalitiesȱfacedȱbyȱsociallyȱandȱeconomicallyȱbackwardȱ

groups;ȱȱ
Andȱȱ

B. forȱ suchȱ otherȱ activitiesȱ asȱ enshrinedȱ inȱ Scheduleȱ VIIȱ toȱ theȱ Companiesȱ Actȱ 2013,ȱ asȱ
modified/ȱamendedȱfromȱtimeȱtoȱtime.ȱȱȱ

ȱ
YourȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱhasȱconstitutedȱaȱCorporateȱSocialȱResponsibilityȱ (CSR)ȱCommitteeȱofȱ theȱ
BoardȱofȱDirectorsȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱwithȱtheȱfollowingȱasȱitsȱMembers:Ȭȱ
ȱ

a) Mr.ȱP.ȱJayendraȱ
b) Mr.ȱV.ȱSenthilȱKumarȱ
c) Dr.ȱM.G.ȱParameswaranȱ

ȱ
TheȱCSRȱCommitteeȱ hasȱ beenȱ constitutedȱ toȱ carryȱ outȱ aȱ transparentȱmonitoringȱmechanismȱ forȱ
implementationȱofȱCSRȱactivitiesȱundertakenȱbyȱtheȱCompany,ȱpursuantȱtoȱtheȱprovisionsȱcontainedȱ
underȱSectionȱ135ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱActȱ2013ȱreadȱwithȱScheduleȱVII.ȱȱ
ȱ
TheȱCSRȱpolicyȱ isȱalsoȱavailableȱ inȱ theȱwebsiteȱofȱ theȱCompanyȱwww.qubecinema.comȱunderȱ theȱ
linkȱhttp://www.qubecinema.com/corporate/corporateȬsocialȬresponsibilityȱȱ
ȱ
TheȱCSRȱCommitteeȱofȱtheȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱherebyȱconfirmȱthatȱtheȱCompanyȱhasȱ implementedȱ
andȱmonitoredȱtheȱCSRȱPolicyȱinȱcomplianceȱwithȱtheȱobjectivesȱandȱPolicyȱofȱtheȱCompany.ȱ
ȱ
Theȱ averageȱ netȱ profitsȱ ofȱ theȱCompanyȱ forȱ lastȱ threeȱ financialȱ years,ȱ detailsȱ ofȱCSRȱ spent,ȱ andȱ
amountȱunȬspent,ȱifȱany,ȱduringȱtheȱyearȱareȱshownȱbelow:ȱ
ȱ
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ProfitȱBeforeȱTaxȱforȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱȱ (Rs.ȱInȱLakhs)ȱ
2016Ȭ17ȱ ȱ 4098ȱ
2017Ȭ18ȱ 2377ȱ
2018Ȭ19ȱ 697ȱ
Totalȱ 7172ȱȱ
Less:ȱ ȱ

1. Profitȱarisingȱoutȱtoȱoverseasȱbranchȱ ȱ
Ȭȱ

2. DividendȱreceivedȱfromȱotherȱcompaniesȱinȱIndiaȱcomplyingȱwithȱ
CSRȱProvisionsȱ

ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
Ȭȱ

TotalȱNetȱProfitȱforȱprecedingȱ3ȱyearsȱȱ 7172ȱ
AverageȱNetȱProfitȱ 2391ȱ
AmountȱtoȱbeȱspentȱonȱCSRȱforȱ2019Ȭ20ȱ@ȱ2%ȱofȱaverageȱNetȱProfitȱ 48ȱ
CSRȱspentȱforȱFYȱ2019Ȭ20ȱȱ 25ȱȱ
CSRȱunȬspentȱforȱtheȱFYȱ2019Ȭ20ȱ 23ȱ

ȱ
Amountȱtoȱbeȱspentȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreview:ȱRs.48ȱLakhsȱ
Amountȱspentȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreview:ȱRs.25ȱLakhsȱ
ȱ
Detailsȱofȱwhichȱareȱasȱshownȱinȱtheȱfollowingȱtable:Ȭȱ
ȱ
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Sl. 
N
o 

CSR 
Project / 
Activity 

identified 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered 

Projects or 
programs  

1. Local area 
or other 

2. Specify the 
state and 

district where 
projects or 

programs was 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 

(budget) 
project or 
program 

wise 
(Rs.) 

Amount 
spent on the 

projects/ 
programs 
Subheads: 
1. Direct 

expenditure 
on Projects 
or programs 
2. Overheads 

(Rs.) 

Cumulativ
e 

expenditur
e upto the 
reporting 

period 
(Rs.) 

Amount 
spent 

Direct / 
through 

implement
ing agency 

1 Bhoomika 
Trust 

Promoting 
Education 

Contribution 
towards 
building of a 
primary school 
forming part of 
Disaster 
Rehabilitation 
project in 
perumbakkam 

25,00,000/- 25,00,000/- 25,00,000/- Implementi
ng Agency 

  
Total amount spent for CSR activity for 
FY-2019-2020 25,00,000 25,00,000 

 
 

25,00,000/- 
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AmountȱunȬspentȱduringȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreview:ȱȱ

TheȱCompanyȱhasȱnotȱspentȱRs.ȱ23ȱ�����ȱtowardsȱCSRȱactivityȱforȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreviewȱ
andȱtheȱreasonsȱforȱtheȱsameȱareȱdetailedȱhereunder:ȱ

ReasonsȱforȱnotȱspendingȱtheȱbalanceȱCSRȱfundsȱforȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱunderȱreview:ȱ

TheȱȱtotalȱȱfundsȱȱliableȱȱtowardsȱȱcontributionȱȱforȱȱCSRȱȱactivitiesȱȱwasȱȱRs.ȱȱ48ȱȱLakhsȱȱandȱȱtheȱȱCSRȱȱ
CommitteeȱhadȱspentȱRs.ȱ25ȱlakhsȱtowardsȱCSRȱactivitiesȱandȱvideȱitsȱeȬmailȱdatedȱ30thȱMarchȱ2020ȱ
decidedȱtoȱretainȱtheȱbalanceȱfundȱofȱRs.ȱ23ȱLakhsȱforȱtheȱoperationsȱofȱtheȱCompany,ȱconsideringȱ
theȱlockdownȱofȱoperationsȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱasȱaȱresultȱofȱCOVIDȬ19.ȱȱ

BasedȱȱonȱȱtheȱȱrecommendationȱȱofȱȱCSRȱȱcommittee,ȱȱtheȱȱBoard,ȱȱinȱȱitsȱȱmeetingȱȱdatedȱȱ14thȱȱMayȱȱ2020ȱȱ
considered,ȱȱrecordedȱȱandȱȱratifiedȱȱtoȱȱutilizeȱȱthatȱȱtheȱȱbalanceȱȱCSRȱȱfundȱȱofȱȱRs.ȱȱ23ȱȱLakhsȱȱunȬspentȱ
duringȱtheȱyearȱforȱtheȱoperationsȱofȱtheȱCompany.ȱ

Place:ȱChennaiȱȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱ

P. Jayendra
ȱȱȱChairmanȱofȱCSRȱCommitteeȱ
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Annexure C 
DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION DETAILS 

 
[Under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of  

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

1. Details of Employee, who if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was 
not less than One Crore and Two Lakhs Rupees per Annum:  

                                                                                                                                                              (All amounts in Rs. Lakhs) 

1 Name of the Employee P. Jayendra V. Senthil Kumar Harsh Rohatgi Sanjeev Anil 
Mehta 

2 Designation of the employee Whole Time 
Director 

Whole Time 
Director 

Chief Executive 
Officer 4th June 2019 

Business Head - 
QCN 

3 Remuneration received 221.02  221.02 172 175.12 

4 Nature of employment, whether 
contractual or otherwise 

Permanent 
employment 

Permanent 
employment 

Permanent 
employment 

Permanent 
employment 

5 Qualification  B.Sc (Chemistry) B.E (Computer 
Science) 

 B.A (Economics), 
PGDM (Marketing) - 

IIM (A)  

B.Com 

6 Experience 32 years 32 years 18 years 23 Years 
7 Date of commencement of employment 28.09.2000 28.09.2000 03.10.2012 01.11.2016 
8 Age of such employee 62 years 57 years 45 years 46 Years 
9 Last employment held by such employee 

before joining the company 
Not applicable Not applicable Turner General 

Entertainment 
Networks 

Red FM 93.5, 
Mumbai 

10 Percentage of equity shares held by the 
employee in the company by himself or 
along with his spouse and dependent 
children, being not less than two percent 
of the equity shares of the company 

3.60 5.56 NIL NIL 

11 Whether any such employee is a relative of 
any director or manager of the company 
and if so, name of such director or 
manager 

No No No No 
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2. Details of Employee, if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in 
the aggregate, was not less than Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand Rupees per Month: NIL 
 

3. Details of Employee, if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the 
aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director 
or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the 
company: NIL 

 
 
Place: Chennai                                                                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Date: 04th August 2020 
 

 
 

P. Jayendra 
                                                                                                                 Chairman 
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AnnexureȱDȱ
EXTRACTȱOFȱANNUALȱRETURNȱ

Asȱonȱtheȱfinancialȱyearȱendedȱonȱ31.03.2020ȱ
ofȱ

QUBEȱCINEMAȱTECHNOLOGIESȱPRIVATEȱLIMITEDȱ
ȱ[PursuantȱtoȱSectionȱ92(3)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013ȱandȱruleȱ12(1)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱ(Managementȱ

andȱAdministration)ȱRules,ȱ2014]ȱ

I. REGISTRATIONȱANDȱOTHERȱDETAILS:ȱ

1ȱ CINȱ U92490TN1986PTC012536ȱȱȱ
2ȱ RegistrationȱDateȱ 01/01/1986ȱ
3ȱ NameȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱ QubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPrivateȱLimitedȱȱ

4ȱ
Categoryȱ /ȱ SubȬCategoryȱ
ofȱtheȱCompanyȱ

Companyȱ Limitedȱ byȱ Sharesȱ /ȱ Indianȱ NonȬGovernmentȱ
Companyȱ

5ȱ
AddressȱofȱtheȱRegisteredȱ
officeȱandȱcontactȱdetailsȱ

No.ȱ42,ȱDr.ȱRangaȱRoad,ȱMylapore,ȱChennaiȱȬȱ600ȱ004.ȱȱ
EȬMailȱId:ȱsrivarshini@qubecinema.comȱȱ
Phone:ȱ+91ȱ(44)ȱ4204Ȭ1505ȱ

6ȱ
Whetherȱ listedȱ companyȱ
(Yesȱ/ȱNo)ȱ

Noȱ

7ȱ

Name,ȱ Addressȱ andȱ
Contactȱ detailsȱ ofȱ
Registrarȱ andȱ Transferȱ
Agent,ȱifȱanyȱ

BTSȱConsultancyȱServicesȱPvtȱLtd.,ȱ1stȱFloor,ȱMSȱComplex,ȱPlotȱ
No.ȱ 8,ȱ Sastriȱ Nagar,ȱ Nearȱ Retteryȱ /ȱ Behindȱ RTOȱ North,ȱ
Kolathur,ȱChennaiȱ–ȱ600ȱ099.ȱȱ
Phone:ȱ044Ȭ2556ȱ5121ȱ/ȱ0142ȱ

II. PRINCIPALȱBUSINESSȱACTIVITIESȱOFȱTHEȱCOMPANY:ȱ

Allȱtheȱbusinessȱactivitiesȱcontributingȱ10%ȱorȱmoreȱofȱtheȱtotalȱturnoverȱofȱtheȱcompanyȱshallȱbeȱ
stated:Ȭȱ

ȱ
Sl.ȱNo.ȱ NameȱandȱDescriptionȱofȱmainȱproductsȱ/ȱ

servicesȱ
NICȱCodeȱofȱtheȱ
Product/ȱserviceȱ

%ȱtoȱtotalȱturnoverȱ
ofȱtheȱcompanyȱ

1ȱ Motionȱ picture,ȱ videoȱ andȱ televisionȱ
programmeȱ postȬproductionȱ activities,ȱ
providingȱ endȱ toȱ endȱ digitalȱ cinemaȱ
solutionsȱincludingȱadvertisementȱservicesȱ

5912ȱ 78%ȱ

2ȱ SaleȱofȱComputerȱBasedȱSystemsȱetc.ȱ 5912ȱ 22%ȱ

III. PARTICULARSȱOFȱHOLDING,ȱSUBSIDIARYȱANDȱASSOCIATEȱCOMPANIESȱ–ȱ

S.ȱNo.ȱ Nameȱandȱaddressȱofȱtheȱ
Companyȱ

CIN/GLNȱ
ȱ

Holding/ȱ
Subsidiary/ȱ
Associateȱ

%ȱofȱ
sharesȱ
heldȱ

Applicableȱ
Sectionȱ

1ȱ QubeȱCinemaȱInc.ȱ
898,ȱ Nȱ Pacificȱ Coast,ȱ
Highway,ȱ Suiteȱ 750,ȱ Elȱ
Segundo,ȱCAȱ90425ȱ
ȱ

NAȱ Whollyȱ
ownedȱ

subsidiaryȱ

100%ȱ 2(87)ȱ(ii)ȱ
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2ȱ JusticketsȱPrivateȱLimitedȱ
No.42,ȱ Dr.ȱ Rangaȱ Road,ȱ
Mylapore,ȱȱ
ChennaiȱȬȱ600004ȱ

U74900TN2013PTC092047ȱ Associateȱ
Companyȱ

43%ȱ 2(6)ȱ

ȱ
IV. SHAREȱHOLDINGȱPATTERNȱ(EquityȱShareȱCapitalȱBreakupȱasȱpercentageȱofȱTotalȱEquity)ȱ

ȱ
i) CategoryȬwiseȱShareȱHoldingȱ

Categoryȱofȱ
Shareholdersȱ

ȱ

No.ȱofȱSharesȱheldȱatȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱ
yearȱ
ȱ

No.ȱofȱSharesȱheldȱatȱtheȱendȱofȱtheȱyearȱ
ȱ

%ȱ
Chan
geȱ
durin
gȱtheȱ
yearȱ

ȱ Dematȱ
ȱ

Physica
lȱ
ȱ

Totalȱ
ȱ

%ȱofȱ
Totalȱ
Sharesȱ

Dematȱ
ȱ

Physicalȱ
ȱ

Totalȱ
ȱ

%ȱofȱ
Totalȱ
Sharesȱ

ȱ

A. PROMOTERSȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(1)ȱIndianȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(a)ȱIndividualȱ/ȱHUFȱ 2,073,400ȱ Ȭȱ 2,073,400ȱ 20.86ȱ 2,073,400ȱ Ȭȱ 2,073,400ȱ 20.86ȱ Ȭȱ
(b)ȱCentralȱGovt.ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(c)ȱStateȱGovt.ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(d)ȱBodiesȱCorp.ȱ 2,462,225ȱ Ȭȱ 2,462,225ȱ 24.77ȱ Ȭȱ 2,462,225ȱ 2,462,225ȱ 24.77ȱ Ȭȱ
(e)ȱBanks/FIȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(f)ȱAnyȱotherȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
Subȱ–totalȱ(A)(1)ȱ 4,535,625ȱ Ȭȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ 2,073,400ȱ 2,462,225ȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ Ȭȱ
(2)ȱForeignȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(a)ȱNRIȱIndividualsȱȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(b)ȱOtherȱIndividualsȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(c)ȱBodiesȱCorp.ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(d)ȱBanks/FIȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(e)ȱAnyȱotherȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
Subȱ–totalȱ(A)(2)ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
TotalȱShareholdingȱ
ofȱPromoterȱȱ
(A)ȱ=ȱ(A)(1)+(A)(2)ȱ

4,535,625ȱ Ȭȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ 2,073,400ȱ 2,462,225ȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ Ȭȱ

B. PUBLICȱ
SHAREHOLDI
NGȱ
ȱ

ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ

(1)ȱInstitutionsȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(a)ȱMutualȱFundsȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(b)ȱBanks/FIȱ 1,240,323ȱ Ȭȱ 1,240,323ȱ 12.48ȱ 1,240,323ȱ Ȭȱ 1,240,323ȱ 12.48ȱ Ȭȱ
(c)ȱCentralȱGovt.ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(d)ȱStateȱGovt.ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
(e)ȱVentureȱCapitalȱ
Fundsȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

(f)ȱInsuranceȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
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Categoryȱofȱ
Shareholdersȱ

ȱ

No.ȱofȱSharesȱheldȱatȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱ
yearȱ
ȱ

No.ȱofȱSharesȱheldȱatȱtheȱendȱofȱtheȱyearȱ
ȱ

%ȱ
Chan
geȱ
durin
gȱtheȱ
yearȱ

ȱ Dematȱ
ȱ

Physica
lȱ
ȱ

Totalȱ
ȱ

%ȱofȱ
Totalȱ
Sharesȱ

Dematȱ
ȱ

Physicalȱ
ȱ

Totalȱ
ȱ

%ȱofȱ
Totalȱ
Sharesȱ

ȱ

Companiesȱ
(g)ȱFIIsȱ 2,225,620ȱ 790ȱ 2,226,410ȱ 22.40ȱ 2,226,410ȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱ 2,226,410ȱ 22.40ȱ Ȭȱ
(h)ȱForeignȱVentureȱ
CapitalȱFundsȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

(i)ȱOthersȱ(specify)ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
Subȱ–totalȱ(B)(1)ȱ 3,465,943ȱ 790ȱ 3,466,733ȱ 34.88ȱ 3,466,733ȱ Ȭȱ 3,466,733ȱ 34.88ȱ Ȭȱ
2.ȱNonȬInstitutionsȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
a)ȱBodiesȱCorp.ȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(i) Indianȱȱ 790ȱ Ȭȱ 790ȱ 0.01ȱ 790ȱ Ȭȱ 790ȱ 0.01ȱ Ȭȱ
(ii) Overseasȱȱ 455,766ȱ Ȭȱ 455,766ȱ 4.58ȱ 455,766ȱ Ȭȱ 455,766ȱ 4.58ȱ Ȭȱ

b)ȱIndividualsȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(i) Individualȱ
shareholdersȱ
holdingȱ nominalȱ
shareȱ capitalȱ uptoȱ
Rs.1ȱlakhȱȱ
ȱ

ȱȱȱȱ36,106ȱ Ȭȱ 36,106ȱ 0.36ȱ 36,106ȱ Ȭȱ 36,106ȱ 0.36ȱ Ȭȱ

(ii) Individualȱ
shareholdersȱ
holdingȱ nominalȱ
shareȱ capitalȱ inȱ
excessȱofȱRs.1ȱlakhȱȱ

637,530ȱ Ȭȱ 637,530ȱ 6.41ȱ 637,530ȱ Ȭȱ 637,530ȱ 6.41ȱ Ȭȱ

c)ȱOthersȱ(specify)ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
(i) RIMTȱ
Employeesȱ
Trust*ȱ

808,308ȱ Ȭȱ 808,308ȱ 8.13ȱ 808,308ȱ Ȭȱ 808,308ȱ 8.13ȱ Ȭȱ

Subȱ–totalȱ(B)(2)ȱ 1,938,500ȱ Ȭȱ 1,938,500ȱ 19.49ȱ 1,938,500ȱ Ȭȱ 1,938,500ȱ 19.49ȱ Ȭȱ
TotalȱPublicȱ
Shareholdingȱȱ
(B)ȱ=ȱ(B)(1)+(B)(2)ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

5,404,443ȱ 790ȱ 5,405,233ȱ 54.37ȱ 5,405,233ȱ Ȭȱ 5,405,233ȱ 54.37ȱ Ȭȱ

C. SHARESȱHELDȱ
BYȱ
CUSTODIANȱ
FORȱGDRSȱ&ȱ
ADRSȱȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

GRANDȱTOTALȱ
(A+B+C)ȱ

9,940,068ȱ 790ȱ 9,940,858ȱ 100.00ȱ 7,478,633ȱ 2,462,225ȱ 9,940,858ȱ 100.00ȱ Ȭȱ

*ȱRIMTȱemployeesȱTrustȱisȱaȱNonȬPromoter,ȱNonȬPublicȱShareholding.ȱȱ
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ii) ȱShareholdingȱofȱPromotersȱ

S.ȱ
N
o.ȱ

Shareholde
r’sȱNameȱ

Shareholdingȱatȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱ
yearȱ

Shareholdingȱatȱtheȱendȱofȱtheȱyearȱ %ȱ
changeȱ
inȱ

sharehol
dingȱ
duringȱ
theȱyearȱ

ȱ ȱ No.ȱofȱ

Sharesȱ

ȱ

%ȱofȱtotalȱ

Sharesȱofȱ

theȱ

companyȱ

%ofȱSharesȱ

Pledgedȱ/ȱ

encumberedȱ

toȱtotalȱsharesȱ

No.ȱofȱ

Sharesȱ

ȱ

%ȱofȱtotalȱ

Sharesȱofȱ

theȱ

companyȱ

%ofȱSharesȱ

Pledgedȱ/ȱ

encumberedȱ

toȱtotalȱ

sharesȱ

1ȱ V.ȱSenthilȱ

Kumarȱ

553,100ȱ 5.56ȱ NILȱ 553,100ȱ 5.56ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

2ȱ Meenaȱ

Veerappanȱ

506,800ȱ 5.10ȱ NILȱ 506,800ȱ 5.10ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

3ȱ Arunȱ

Veerappanȱ

298,000ȱ 3.00ȱ NILȱ 298,000ȱ 3.00ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

4ȱ PȱJayendraȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ NILȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

5ȱ PȱCȱSreeramȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ NILȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

6ȱ RealȱImageȱ

LLPȱ

2,462,225ȱ 24.77ȱ NILȱ 2,462,225ȱ 24.77ȱ NILȱ NILȱ

ȱ Totalȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ Ȭȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

ȱ
iii) ChangeȱinȱPromoters’ȱShareholdingȱ(pleaseȱspecify,ȱifȱthereȱisȱnoȱchange):ȱNILȱ

Sl.ȱ
N
o.ȱ

Particularsȱ

ȱ

Shareholdingȱatȱtheȱbeginningȱ
ofȱtheȱyearȱ

CumulativeȱShareholdingȱ
duringȱtheȱyearȱ

No.ȱofȱsharesȱ %ȱofȱtotalȱ
sharesȱofȱtheȱ
companyȱ

No.ȱofȱsharesȱ %ȱofȱ
totalȱ
sharesȱ
ofȱtheȱ
compa
nyȱ

ȱ Atȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ

ȱ DateȱwiseȱIncreaseȱ/ȱDecreaseȱinȱPromotersȱ
Shareholdingȱ duringȱ theȱ yearȱ specifyingȱ
theȱ reasonsȱ forȱ increaseȱ /ȱ decreaseȱ (e.g.ȱ
allotmentȱ /ȱ transferȱ /ȱbonus/ȱ sweatȱ equityȱ
etc):ȱȱ

NILȱ

ȱ AtȱtheȱEndȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ 4,535,625ȱ 45.63ȱ
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iv) ShareholdingȱPatternȱofȱ topȱ tenȱShareholdersȱ (otherȱ thanȱDirectors,ȱPromotersȱandȱHoldersȱofȱ

GDRsȱandȱADRs):ȱ

Sl.ȱ
No.ȱ

Particularsȱ Shareholdingȱatȱtheȱbeginningȱ
ofȱtheȱyearȱ

CumulativeȱShareholdingȱ
duringȱtheȱyearȱ

ForȱEachȱofȱtheȱTopȱ10ȱShareholdersȱ No.ȱofȱsharesȱ %ȱofȱtotalȱ
sharesȱofȱtheȱ
companyȱ

No.ȱofȱsharesȱ %ȱofȱtotalȱ
sharesȱofȱ
theȱ

companyȱ
ȱ Atȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 5,193,866ȱ 52.25ȱ 5,193,866ȱ 52.25ȱ
ȱ Dateȱ wiseȱ Increaseȱ /ȱ Decreaseȱ inȱ

Promotersȱ Shareholdingȱ duringȱ theȱ
yearȱspecifyingȱtheȱreasonsȱforȱincreaseȱ
/ȱ decreaseȱ (e.g.ȱ allotmentȱ /ȱ transferȱ /ȱ
bonus/ȱsweatȱȱ
equityȱetc):ȱȱ

NILȱ

ȱ AtȱtheȱEndȱofȱtheȱyearȱ(orȱonȱtheȱdateȱofȱ
separation,ȱ ifȱ separatedȱ duringȱ theȱ
year)ȱȱ

5,193,866ȱ 52.25ȱ 5,193,866ȱ 52.25ȱ

v) ShareholdingȱofȱDirectorsȱandȱKeyȱManagerialȱPersonnel:ȱ

Sl.ȱ
No.ȱȱ

Particularsȱ Shareholdingȱ atȱ theȱ beginningȱ
ofȱtheȱyearȱȱ

Cumulativeȱ Shareholdingȱ
duringȱtheȱyearȱȱ

ForȱEachȱofȱtheȱDirectorsȱandȱKMPȱ No.ȱofȱsharesȱȱ %ȱ ofȱ totalȱ
sharesȱ ofȱ theȱ
companyȱȱ

No.ȱofȱsharesȱȱ %ȱ ofȱ totalȱ
sharesȱ ofȱ theȱ
companyȱȱ

(i)ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

Mr.ȱP.ȱJayendraȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
Atȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ
Dateȱ wiseȱ Increaseȱ /ȱ Decreaseȱ inȱ
PromotersȱShareholdingȱduringȱtheȱyearȱ
specifyingȱ theȱ reasonsȱ forȱ increaseȱ /ȱ
decreaseȱ (e.g.ȱ allotmentȱ /ȱ transferȱ /ȱ
bonus/ȱsweatȱequityȱetc):ȱȱ

NOȱ
CHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ

AtȱtheȱEndȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ 357,750ȱ 3.60ȱ
ȱ

(ii)ȱ Mr.ȱV.ȱSenthilȱKumarȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ
Atȱtheȱbeginningȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 5,53,100ȱ 5.56ȱ 5,53,100ȱ 5.56ȱ
Dateȱ wiseȱ Increaseȱ /ȱ Decreaseȱ inȱ
PromotersȱShareholdingȱduringȱtheȱyearȱ
specifyingȱ theȱ reasonsȱ forȱ increaseȱ /ȱ
decreaseȱ (e.g.ȱ allotmentȱ /ȱ transferȱ /ȱ
bonus/ȱsweatȱequityȱetc):ȱȱ

NOȱ
CHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ NOȱCHANGEȱ

AtȱtheȱEndȱofȱtheȱyearȱȱ 5,53,100ȱ 5.56ȱ 5,53,100ȱ 5.56ȱ
ȱ
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V. INDEBTEDNESSȱȱ

IndebtednessȱofȱtheȱCompanyȱincludingȱinterestȱoutstanding/accruedȱbutȱnotȱdueȱforȱpaymentȱ

ȱȱ

Securedȱ
Loansȱ Unsecuredȱ

Depositsȱ
Totalȱ

excludingȱ
depositsȱ Loansȱ Indebtednessȱ

ȱȱ (INRȱinȱLakhs)ȱ
Indebtednessȱ atȱ theȱ
beginningȱ ofȱ theȱ
financialȱyearȱȱ

ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ

i)ȱȱȱȱȱȱPrincipalȱAmountȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ7,805.54ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ911.58ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ8,717.12ȱȱ
ii)ȱȱȱȱȱInterestȱdueȱbutȱnotȱ
paidȱȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ

iii)ȱȱȱȱ Interestȱ accruedȱ
butȱnotȱdueȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ

Totalȱ(i+ii+iii)ȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ7,805.54ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ911.58ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ8,717.12ȱȱ
Changeȱ inȱ
Indebtednessȱ duringȱ
theȱfinancialȱyearȱȱ

ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ

ȉȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱAdditionȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ1,196.01ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ562.71ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ1,758.72ȱȱ

ȉȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱReductionȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ2,504.13ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ366.95ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ2,871.07ȱȱ
NetȱChangeȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬ1,308.12ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ195.76ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬ1,112.35ȱȱ
Indebtednessȱ atȱ theȱ
endȱ ofȱ theȱ financialȱ
yearȱȱ

ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ ȱȱ

i)ȱȱȱȱȱȱPrincipalȱAmountȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ6,497.42ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ1,107.34ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ7,604.76ȱȱ
ii)ȱȱȱȱȱInterestȱdueȱbutȱnotȱ
paidȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ

iii)ȱȱȱȱ Interestȱ accruedȱ
butȱnotȱdueȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱ

Totalȱ(i+ii+iii)ȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ6,497.42ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ1,107.34ȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȬȱȱȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ7,604.76ȱȱ
ȱ

VI. REMUNERATIONȱOFȱDIRECTORSȱANDȱKEYȱMANAGERIALȱPERSONNELȱ

A.ȱRemunerationȱtoȱManagingȱDirector,ȱWholeȬtimeȱDirectorsȱand/orȱManager:ȱ

Sl.ȱ
No.ȱ

ParticularsȱofȱRemunerationȱ
ȱ

NameȱofȱMD/WTD/Managerȱ TotalȱAmountȱ
ȱ

1.ȱ Grossȱsalaryȱȱ
ȱ
(a) Salaryȱ asȱ perȱ provisionsȱ

containedȱinȱsectionȱ17(1)ȱ
ofȱ theȱ IncomeȬtaxȱ Act,ȱ
1961ȱȱ

(b) Valueȱ ofȱ perquisitesȱ u/sȱ
17(2)ȱ IncomeȬtaxȱ Act,ȱ
1961ȱ

VȱSenthilȱKumarȱ
ȱ
ȱ

Rs.ȱ221.02ȱLakhsȱ

PȱJayendraȱ
ȱ
ȱ

Rs.ȱ221.02ȱLakhsȱ

ȱ
ȱ
ȱ

Rs.ȱ442.04ȱLakhsȱ
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(c) Profitsȱ inȱ lieuȱ ofȱ salaryȱ
underȱ sectionȱ 17(3)ȱ
IncomeȬtaxȱAct,ȱ1961ȱȱ

2.ȱ StockȱOptionȱȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
3.ȱ SweatȱEquityȱȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
4.ȱ Commissionȱȱ

o asȱ%ȱofȱprofitȱȱ
o ȱothers,ȱspecifyȱȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

ȱ Totalȱ(A)ȱ Rs.ȱ221.02ȱLakhsȱ Rs.ȱ221.02ȱLakhsȱ Rs.ȱ442.04ȱLakhsȱ
ȱ CeilingȱasȱperȱtheȱActȱȱ NotȱApplicableȱ

ȱ
B.ȱRemunerationȱtoȱotherȱdirectors:ȱ

Sl.ȱ
no.ȱ

ParticularsȱofȱRemunerationȱ
ȱ

NameȱofȱDirectorsȱȱ TotalȱAmountȱ
ȱ

1.ȱ IndependentȱDirectorsȱȱ
x ProfessionalȱFeesȱ
x Commissionȱȱ
x Others,ȱpleaseȱspecifyȱȱ

M.G.ȱParameswaranȱ
(IndependentȱDirector)ȱ

Rs.ȱ3.75ȱLakhsȱ

2.ȱ Totalȱ(1)ȱȱ ȱ Rs.ȱ3.75ȱLakhsȱ
3.ȱ OtherȱNonȬexecutiveȱDirectorsȱȱ

x Feeȱforȱattendingȱboardȱ/ȱcommitteeȱ
meetingsȱȱ

x Commissionȱȱ
x Others,ȱpleaseȱspecifyȱȱ

ȱ Ȭȱ

4.ȱ Totalȱ(2)ȱȱ ȱ Ȭȱ
5.ȱ Totalȱ(B)=(1+2)ȱȱ ȱ Rs.ȱ3.75ȱLakhsȱ
6.ȱ Totalȱ Managerialȱ Remunerationȱ

(A)+(B)ȱ
ȱ Rs.ȱ3.75ȱLakhsȱ

7.ȱ OverallȱCeilingȱasȱperȱtheȱActȱȱ NotȱApplicableȱ
ȱ
C.ȱRemunerationȱtoȱKeyȱManagerialȱPersonnelȱotherȱthanȱMD/Manager/WTDȱȱ

Sl.ȱ
No.ȱ

Particularsȱofȱ
Remunerationȱ

KeyȱManagerialȱPersonnelȱ
ȱ

ȱ

MuraliȱKrishnaȱ
CompanyȱSecretaryȱ
(10thȱJuneȱ2019Ȭ24thȱ
Octoberȱ2019)ȱȱȱ

S.ȱSriȱ
Varshiniȱ
Companyȱ
Secretaryȱ

(24thȱOctoberȱ
2019ȱtoȱ31stȱ
Marchȱ2020)ȱ

Totalȱ
ȱ

1.ȱ Grossȱsalaryȱȱ
a) Salaryȱ asȱ perȱ provisionsȱ

containedȱ inȱ sectionȱ 17(1)ȱ ofȱ theȱ
IncomeȬtaxȱAct,ȱ1961ȱȱ

b) Valueȱ ofȱ perquisitesȱ u/sȱ 17(2)ȱ
IncomeȬtaxȱAct,ȱ1961ȱ

ȱ
ȱ

9.13ȱLakhsȱ

ȱ
ȱ

5.67ȱLakhsȱ

ȱ
ȱ

14.80ȱLakhsȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
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c) Profitsȱ inȱ lieuȱ ofȱ salaryȱ underȱ
sectionȱ 17(3)ȱ IncomeȬtaxȱ Act,ȱ
1961ȱȱ

2.ȱ StockȱOptionȱȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
3.ȱ SweatȱEquityȱȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ
4.ȱ Commissionȱȱ

- asȱ%ȱofȱprofitȱȱ
- others,ȱspecifyȱȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

5.ȱ Others,ȱpleaseȱȱ
specifyȱȱ

Ȭȱ Ȭȱ Ȭȱ

ȱ Totalȱ 9.13ȱLakhsȱ 5.67ȱLakhsȱ 14.80ȱLakhsȱ
ȱ
VII. PENALTIESȱ/ȱPUNISHMENT/ȱCOMPOUNDINGȱOFȱOFFENCES:ȱ

Typeȱ

ȱ

Sectionȱofȱ

theȱ

Companiesȱ

Actȱ

Briefȱ

Descriptionȱ

Detailsȱofȱ

Penaltyȱ/ȱ

Punishment/ȱ

Compoundingȱ

feesȱimposedȱ

Authorityȱ

[RDȱ/ȱNCLTȱ

/ȱCOURT]ȱ

Appealȱ

made,ȱ

ifȱanyȱ

(giveȱ

Details)ȱ

A.ȱCOMPANYȱȱ

Penaltyȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Punishmentȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Compoundingȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

B.ȱDIRECTORSȱ

Penaltyȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Punishmentȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Compoundingȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

C.ȱOTHERȱOFFICERSȱINȱDEFAULTȱ

Penaltyȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Punishmentȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

Compoundingȱȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ NILȱ

ȱ

Place:ȱChennaiȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱForȱandȱonȱbehalfȱofȱtheȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱ

ȱ
ȱ

P.ȱJayendraȱ
ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱChairmanȱ
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AnnexureȱEȱ

FormȱAOCȱ–ȱ2ȱ
(Pursuantȱtoȱclauseȱ(h)ȱofȱsubȬsectionȱ3ȱofȱsectionȱ134ȱofȱtheȱActȱandȱRuleȱ8(2)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱ(Accounts)ȱRules,ȱ2014)ȱ

ȱ
FormȱforȱDisclosureȱofȱParticularsȱofȱContractsȱ/ȱArrangementsȱenteredȱintoȱbyȱtheȱCompanyȱwithȱrelatedȱpartiesȱreferredȱtoȱinȱ

Sectionȱ188(1)ȱofȱtheȱCompaniesȱAct,ȱ2013ȱincludingȱcertainȱarmsȬlengthȱtransactionsȱunderȱthirdȱprovisoȱtheretoȱ
ȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ

1. Detailsȱofȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementsȱorȱtransactionsȱnotȱatȱarm’sȱlengthȱbasis:ȱ
ȱ

a)ȱ Name(s)ȱofȱtheȱrelatedȱpartyȱandȱnatureȱofȱrelationshipȱ Nilȱ
b)ȱ Natureȱofȱcontracts/arrangements/transactionsȱ Nilȱ
c)ȱ Durationȱofȱtheȱcontractsȱ/ȱarrangements/transactionsȱ Nilȱ
d)ȱ Salientȱtermsȱofȱtheȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementsȱorȱtransactionsȱ

includingȱtheȱvalue,ȱifȱanyȱ
Nilȱ

e)ȱ Justificationȱforȱenteringȱintoȱsuchȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementsȱorȱ
transactionsȱ

Nilȱ

f)ȱ Date(s)ȱofȱapprovalȱbyȱtheȱBoardȱ Nilȱ
g)ȱ Amountȱpaidȱasȱadvances,ȱifȱany:ȱ Nilȱ
h)ȱ Dateȱonȱwhichȱtheȱspecialȱresolutionȱwasȱpassedȱinȱgeneralȱ

meetingȱasȱrequiredȱunderȱfirstȱprovisoȱtoȱSectionȱ188ȱ
Nilȱ

ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
ȱ
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ȱ
ȱ
2. Detailsȱofȱmaterialȱcontractsȱorȱarrangementȱorȱtransactionsȱatȱarm’sȱlengthȱbasisȱ
ȱ

S.ȱ
N
o.ȱ

Name(s)ȱofȱtheȱrelatedȱpartyȱ
andȱnatureȱofȱrelationshipȱ

Natureȱofȱcontractsȱ/ȱ
arrangementsȱȱ
/ȱtransactionsȱ

Durationȱofȱtheȱ
contractsȱ/ȱ

arrangementsȱ/ȱ
transactionsȱ

Salientȱtermsȱofȱtheȱ
contractsȱorȱarrangementsȱorȱ
transactionsȱincludingȱtheȱ

value,ȱifȱanyȱ

Date(s)ȱofȱapprovalȱbyȱ
theȱBoardȱ

Amountȱ
paidȱasȱ
advances
,ȱifȱanyȱ

1ȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ Inc.,ȱ USAȱȱ
[aȱ whollyȬownedȱ subsidiaryȱ ofȱ
QubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱ
Ltd.ȱ andȱ aȱ Bodyȱ Corporateȱ
accustomedȱ toȱ actȱ underȱ theȱ
Directionsȱ ofȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ
TechnologiesȱPvt.ȱLtd.]ȱ

Saleȱ ofȱ Digitalȱ Cinemaȱ
Equipmentȱȱ

UntilȱTerminationȱ Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ Transferȱ Pricingȱ
Agreementȱ andȱ theȱ
subsequentȱ Amendmentsȱ
enteredȱ intoȱ betweenȱ theȱ
Parties.ȱȱ
Value:ȱRs.36.30ȱLakhsȱȱ

Notȱ applicableȱ asȱ theȱ
Transferȱ Priceȱ
Agreementȱ andȱ theȱ
subsequentȱ
Amendmentsȱ ȱ wereȱ
enteredȱintoȱpriorȱtoȱtheȱ
commencementȱ ofȱ theȱ
Companiesȱ Actȱ 2013,ȱ
andȱ theȱ applicableȱ
Rulesȱmadeȱthereunderȱ

Nilȱ

2ȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ Inc.,ȱ USAȱȱ
[aȱ whollyȬownedȱ subsidiaryȱ ofȱ
QubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱ
Ltd.ȱ andȱ aȱ Bodyȱ Corporateȱ
accustomedȱ toȱ actȱ underȱ theȱ
Directionsȱ ofȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ
TechnologiesȱPvt.ȱLtd.]ȱ

Reimbursementȱ ofȱ certainȱ
marketingȱ andȱ relatedȱ
expensesȱ

NAȱ Reimbursementȱ ofȱ certainȱ
marketingȱ andȱ relatedȱ
expenses.ȱ
Value:ȱRs.475ȱLakhsȱȱ

Notȱ applicableȱ asȱ theȱ
Transferȱ Priceȱ
Agreementȱ andȱ theȱ
subsequentȱ
Amendmentsȱ ȱ wereȱ
enteredȱintoȱpriorȱtoȱtheȱ
commencementȱ ofȱ theȱ
Companiesȱ Actȱ 2013,ȱ
andȱ theȱ applicableȱ
Rulesȱmadeȱthereunderȱ

Nilȱ

3ȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ Inc.,ȱ USAȱȱ
[aȱ whollyȬownedȱ subsidiaryȱ ofȱ
QubeȱCinemaȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱ
Ltd.ȱ andȱ aȱ Bodyȱ Corporateȱ
accustomedȱ toȱ actȱ underȱ theȱ
Directionsȱ ofȱ Qubeȱ Cinemaȱ
TechnologiesȱPvt.ȱLtd.]ȱ

ProvidingȱLicenseȱtoȱQCIȱtoȱ
deployȱ theȱ Softwareȱ
developedȱbyȱtheȱCompanyȱȱ

3ȱYearsȱ Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ Softwareȱ Licenseȱ
Agreementȱ datedȱ 26thȱ Aprilȱ
2019ȱ beingȱ deemedȱ effectiveȱ
fromȱ01stȱAprilȱ2018.ȱ
Value:ȱ37.35ȱLakhsȱ

26thȱJuneȱ2019ȱ Nilȱ
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4ȱ Justicketsȱ Pvt.ȱ Ltd.ȱȱ

[Anȱ Associateȱ Companyȱ withȱ
DirectorsȱinȱCommon]ȱ

Providingȱ certainȱ backendȱ
supportȱ includingȱ
personnel,ȱ administrative,ȱ
marketing,ȱ softwareȱ
developmentȱandȱanyȱotherȱ
supportȱservicesȱ

ȱ5ȱ Yearsȱ &ȱ
Automaticȱrenewalȱ
forȱ successiveȱ
renewalȱ termsȱofȱ1ȱ
yearȱeachȱ

Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ Sharedȱ Servicesȱ
Agreementȱ datedȱ 7thȱ
Januaryȱ2015ȱandȱAddendumȱ
toȱ Shareȱ Serviceȱ Agreementȱ
datedȱȱ
27thȱMarchȱ2017.ȱ
Value:ȱRs.191.41ȱLakhsȱ

27thȱNovemberȱ2014ȱ Nilȱ

5ȱ Justicketsȱ Pvt.ȱ Ltd.ȱȱ
[Anȱ Associateȱ Companyȱ withȱ
DirectorsȱinȱCommon]ȱ

Reimbursementȱ ofȱ certainȱ
marketingȱ andȱ relatedȱ
expensesȱ

5ȱ Yearsȱ &ȱ
Automaticȱrenewalȱ
forȱ successiveȱ
renewalȱ termsȱofȱ1ȱ
yearȱeachȱ

Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ Sharedȱ Servicesȱ
Agreementȱ datedȱ 7thȱ
Januaryȱ2015ȱandȱAddendumȱ
toȱ Shareȱ Serviceȱ Agreementȱ
datedȱȱ
27thȱMarchȱ2017.ȱ
Value:ȱRs.168.50ȱLakhsȱ

27thȱNovemberȱ2014ȱ Nilȱ

6ȱ Justicketsȱ Pvt.ȱ Ltd.ȱȱ
[Anȱ Associateȱ Companyȱ withȱ
DirectorsȱinȱCommon]ȱ

AssignmentȱofȱTradeȱMarkȱȱ NAȱ Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ Deedȱ ofȱ Assignmentȱ ofȱ
TradeȱMarkȱdatedȱ01.03.2017ȱ

24thȱAugustȱ2017ȱ Nilȱ

7ȱ Digitalȱ Filmȱ Technologiesȱ Pvt.ȱ
Ltd.ȱ
[aȱcompanyȱ inȱwhichȱDirector’sȱ
RelativesȱareȱDirectors]ȱȱ

Renderingȱ ofȱ servicesȱ
relatedȱ toȱ digitalȱ cinemaȱ
businessȱ beingȱ carriedȱ onȱ
byȱtheȱCompanyȱ

5ȱyearsȱ Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱ ȱ Agreementȱ datedȱ 1stȱ
July,ȱ2016,ȱLetterȱofȱExchangeȱ
datedȱ 3rdȱ July,ȱ 2016,ȱ Firstȱ
Amendmentȱ toȱ theȱ
Agreementȱdatedȱȱ
1stȱOctober,ȱ2016ȱandȱSecondȱ
Amendmentȱ toȱ theȱ
Agreementȱ datedȱ 25thȱ June,ȱ
2018ȱ enteredȱ betweenȱ theȱ
partiesȱȱ
Value:ȱ144.70ȱLakhsȱ

08thȱJuneȱ2016ȱ Nilȱ

8ȱ DigitalȱFilmȱTechnologiesȱPvt.ȱ
Ltd.ȱ

[aȱcompanyȱinȱwhichȱDirector’sȱ
RelativesȱareȱDirectors]ȱȱ

AssignmentȱofȱTradeȱMarkȱȱ NAȱ Asȱperȱtheȱtermsȱcontainedȱinȱ
theȱDeedȱofȱAssignmentȱofȱ
TradeȱMarkȱdatedȱ01.03.2017ȱ

24thȱAugustȱ2017ȱ Nilȱ
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9ȱ M. G.ȱParameswaran
(IndependentȱDirector)

ProvidingȱProfessionalȱ
Servicesȱȱ

NAȱ ProfessionalȱFeesȱforȱservicesȱ
renderedȱtoȱtheȱCompanyȱ
duringȱtheȱFinancialȱYearȱ

2019Ȭ20ȱ
Value:ȱRs.3.75ȱLakhsȱ

Approvedȱatȱtheȱ
AnnualȱGeneralȱ

Meetingȱheldȱonȱ14thȱ
Julyȱ2011ȱ

Nilȱ

10ȱ ArunȱVeerappanȱ
(RelativeȱofȱMr.ȱV.ȱSenthilȱ

Kumar,ȱWholeȱTimeȱDirector)ȱ

Remunerationȱȱ NAȱ TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱEmploymentȱAgreement.ȱ

Value:ȱRs.22.25ȱLakhsȱ

19thȱSeptemberȱ2008ȱȱ Nilȱ

11ȱ SudhaȱPanchapakesanȱ
(RelativeȱofȱMr.ȱP.ȱJayendra,ȱ

WholeȱTimeȱDirector)ȱ

Remunerationȱȱ NAȱ TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱEmploymentȱAgreement.ȱ

Value:ȱRs.34.02ȱLakhsȱ

Approvedȱatȱtheȱ
AnnualȱGeneralȱ

Meetingȱheldȱonȱ4thȱ
Julyȱ2001ȱ

Nilȱ

12ȱ V. SenthilȱKumar
(WholeȬTimeȱDirector)ȱ

VehicleȱLeaseȱȱ 1yearȱandȱ
automaticȱrenewalȱ

everyȱyearȱ

TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱVehicleȱLeaseȱ

Agreement.ȱ

12thȱAugustȱ2019ȱ Nilȱ

13ȱ Vee.ȱVijayalakshmiȱ
(RelativeȱofȱMr.ȱV.ȱSenthilȱ

Kumar,ȱWholeȬTimeȱDirector)ȱ

VehicleȱLeaseȱȱ 3ȱyearsȱ TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱVehicleȱLeaseȱ

Agreement.ȱ

26thȱJuneȱ2019ȱ Nilȱ

14ȱ MeenaȱVeerappanȱ
(RelativeȱofȱMr.ȱV.ȱSenthilȱ

Kumar,ȱWholeȬTimeȱDirector)ȱ

VehicleȱLeaseȱȱ 5ȱyearsȱ TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱVehicleȱLeaseȱ

Agreement.ȱ

25thȱAugustȱ2016ȱ Nilȱ

15 P. Jayendra
(WholeȬTimeȱDirector)ȱ

VehicleȱLeaseȱȱ 5ȱyearsȱ TermsȱandȱConditionsȱasȱperȱ
theȱVehicleȱLeaseȱ

Agreement.ȱȱ

01stȱFebruaryȱ2018ȱ Nilȱ

ȱȱȱForȱandȱonȱbehalfȱofȱtheȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱȱ
Place:ȱChennaiȱ

P. Jayendra
Chairman
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AnnexureȱFȱ
ȱ
Conservationȱofȱenergy,ȱtechnologyȱabsorption,ȱforeignȱexchangeȱearningsȱandȱoutgoȱ

ȱ
(A) Conservationȱofȱenergyȱ :ȱNotȱapplicableȱ

ȱ
(B) Technologyȱabsorptionȱȱ :ȱNotȱapplicableȱ
ȱ
(C) ForeignȱexchangeȱearningsȱandȱOutgo:ȱ

ȱ
� Inflows/Earnings:ȱ1051.03ȱLakhsȱbreakȱupȱofȱwhichȱisȱasȱunder:ȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ(AmountȱinȱLakhs)ȱ

EarningsȱȬȱExportȱSalesȱofȱGoodsȱ 685.77ȱ

EarningsȱȬȱExportȱSalesȱofȱServicesȱ 251.83ȱ

CommissionȱonȱSalesȱȱ 110.85ȱ

DigitalȱPrintȱFeeȱȱ 2.07ȱ

MasteringȱRevenueȱȱ 0.50ȱ

TotalȱInflows/Earningsȱ 1051.03ȱ

ȱ
� Expenditure/Outgo:ȱ7135.92ȱLakhsȱbreakȱupȱofȱwhichȱisȱasȱunder:Ȭȱ

ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱ(AmountȱinȱLakhs)ȱ

Purchaseȱofȱgoodsȱ 3354.83ȱ

Purchaseȱofȱcapitalȱgoodsȱ 2836.93ȱ
Consultingȱ/LegalȱFeesȱ 166.84ȱ

Travellingȱexpensesȱ 72.92ȱ
FreightȱandȱClearingȱChargesȱ 0.79ȱ

Interestȱ 34.62ȱ
Repairsȱ 76.66ȱ

OtherȱExpensesȱ 592.33ȱ
TotalȱExpenditure/Outgoȱ 7135.92ȱ

ȱ

Place:ȱChennaiȱȱ ȱ ȱ ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱForȱandȱonȱbehalfȱofȱtheȱBoardȱofȱDirectorsȱ
Date:ȱ04thȱAugustȱ2020ȱ
ȱ

P.ȱJayendraȱ
ȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱȱChairmanȱ























Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 15,353.03 16,180.22 
Capital work-in-progress 5 247.04 149.20 
Right-of-use asset 6 1,584.71 - 
Intangible assets 7 1,325.25 1,739.43 
Intangible asset under development 8 1,051.59 446.96 
Financial assets

Investments 9 1,493.66 2,658.61 
Trade receivables 10 427.13 514.03 
Loans 11 325.73 327.08 
Other financial assets 12 42.00 42.00 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 35 2,256.70 1,815.37 
Income tax assets 13 1,605.01 741.43 
Other assets 14 286.71 288.85 
Total non-current assets 25,998.56 24,903.18 

Current assets
Inventories 15 3,145.05 4,077.29 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 6,248.56 8,867.21 
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,060.50 1,174.46 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,831.58 1,231.58 
Loans 11 59.52 83.34 
Other financial assets 12 552.57 895.12 

Other assets 14 2,313.01 2,442.05 
Total current assets 15,210.79 18,771.05 

Total assets 41,209.35 43,674.23 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 994.09 994.09 
Other equity

Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares classified as equity 18 744.36 744.36 
Others (including items of Other Comprehensive Income) 19 17,355.91 21,345.95 

Total equity 19,094.36 23,084.40 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 20 3,817.15 3,054.40 
Lease liabilities 21 1,356.61 - 
Other financial liabilities 22 1,478.77 1,401.05 

Provisions 24 303.21 286.14 
Other liabilities 23 372.47 311.65 
Total non-current liabilities 7,328.21 5,053.24 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Other bank borrowings 20 2,818.01 3,750.34 
Lease liabilities 21 333.28 - 
Trade payables

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 3,975.51 3,446.42 

22 2,638.38 3,311.80 
24 83.14 13.70 
23 4,938.46 5,014.33 

14,786.78 15,536.59 
22,114.99 20,589.83 
41,209.35 43,674.23 

3

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

P Jayendra V Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Wholetime Director Wholetime Director Company Secretary

Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report attached

for B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: ����������

DIN : 00320286

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

DIN : 00320535

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited 
CIN : U92490TN1986PTC012536



Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue
Revenue from operations 26 33,814.03 39,015.10 
Other income 27 429.76 102.68 
Total revenue 34,243.79 39,117.78 

Expenses
Purchases of stock in trade 28 4,933.07 8,691.46 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 29 932.24 (1,035.42) 
Employee benefits expense 30 7,775.10 7,384.16 
Finance costs 31 1,166.52 766.71 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 5,231.61 4,913.00 
Other expenses 33 16,095.87 17,700.93 
Total expenses 36,134.41 38,420.84 

(Loss) / profit before exceptional items and tax (1,890.62) 696.94 

Exceptional items 34 2,344.59 - 

(Loss) / profit before and tax (4,235.21) 696.94 

Tax expense:
Current tax 16.73 628.50 
Deferred tax benefit (389.08) (342.52) 
Income tax expense 35 (372.35) 285.98 

(3,862.86) 410.96 

(179.43) 29.90 
52.25 (10.45) 

(127.18) 19.45 

(3,990.04) 430.41 

39
(38.86) 4.13 
(38.86) 2.07 

3

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

V Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Wholetime Director Company Secretary

(Loss) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability/ (assets)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (INR)
Diluted earnings per share (INR)

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report attached

for B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: ����������

P Jayendra�
Wholetime Director�
DIN : 00320286

Place: Chennai�
Date:����������

DIN : 00320535

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited 

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
CIN : U92490TN1986PTC012536



Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital
Note Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2018 994.09 
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 18 - 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 994.09
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 18 - 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 994.09 

b. Other equity

Items of OCI Total
Capital 

redemption 
reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Share options 
outstanding 

account

* Equity shares held
by ESOP trust

(including securities 
premium) 

General reserve Retained 
earnings

Remeasurement of 
defined benefit 

liability

Balance at 1 April 2018 744.36 131.19 7,994.89 167.44 (243.07) 14.90 12,843.57 - 20,908.92 
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019
Profit for the year - - - - - 410.96 - 410.96 
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - - - - - 19.45 19.45 
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 410.96 19.45 430.41 
Transferred to retained earnings - - - - - 19.45 (19.45) - 
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions to owners
Share-based options - - - 6.04 - - - - 6.04 
Share options exercised - - 0.39 - - - - - 0.39 
Shares issued by trust - - - - 0.19 - - - 0.19 
Balance at 31 March 2019 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 13,273.98 - 21,345.95 

Balance at 1 April 2019 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 13,273.98 - 21,345.95 
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
Loss for the year - - - - - - (3,862.86) - (3,862.86) 
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - - - - - (127.18) (127.18) 
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (3,862.86) (127.18) (3,990.04)
Transferred to retained earnings - - - - - - (127.18) 127.18 - 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions to owners
Share-based options - - - - - - - - - 
Share options exercised - - - - - - - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2020 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 9,283.94 - 17,355.91 

3

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited 
CIN : U92490TN1986PTC012536

Sri Varshini
Company Secretary

*�During the current year, the Company has changed presentaion for equity shares held by ESOP trust (including securities premium).

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report attached

for  B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: ����������

P Jayendra�
Wholetime Director�
DIN : 00320286

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

V Senthil Kumar�
Wholetime Director�

DIN : 00320535

Place: Chennai
Date:����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Compulsory 
convertible 

cummulative 
preference shares

Attributable to the owners of the Company
Reserves and surplus



Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss) / profit before tax (4,235.21) 696.94
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32 5,231.61 4,913.00
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 27 (121.62) (23.87)
Bad debts written off 33 77.50 38.94
Impairment loss on financial assets 34 1,164.95 -
Allowance for doubtful debt 33 1,598.88 -
Finance costs 31 1,166.52 766.71
Interest income 27 (134.84) (5.19)
Equity-settled shared-based payments 30 - 6.04
Straighlined rent - 33.84
Interest income on security deposit paid 27 (21.59) (24.99)
Notional rental income on security deposit received 27 (144.19) (13.56)
Unrealised loss / (gain)  on foreign exchange (net) 91.26 47.00

4,673.27 6,434.86
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 932.24 (1,035.42)
Decrease in trade receivables 1,060.15 61.58
Decrease / (increase) in loans and other financial assets 380.44 (218.14)
Decrease / (increase)decrease in other assets 151.38 (768.30)
Increase in trade payable and other financial liabilities 770.62 534.85
(Decrease) / increase in provisions and other liabilities (107.97) 1,137.09

Cash generated from operating activities 7,860.13 6,146.52
Income tax paid (net) (880.31) (991.84)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 6,979.82 5,154.68

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 111.12 2.21
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (3,802.64) (3,380.99)
Expenditure on internally generated intangible assets (604.63) (81.25)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 269.85 186.23
Investments in jointly controlled entity - (99.94)
Investments in bank deposits (net) (600.00) (981.96)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (4,626.30) (4,355.71)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,701.72 2,811.96
Repayments of borrowings (1,932.22) (2,882.06)
Payment of transaction cost relating to the borrowings (25.95) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (522.40) -
Interest paid (756.30) (747.10)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1,535.15) (817.20)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 818.37 (18.23)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (75.88) (57.65)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 742.49 (75.88)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Note
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Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprises of the following

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2019 

Cash on hand 1.57 1.18
Bank balances 1,058.93 1,173.28
Bank overdrafts (318.01) (1,250.34)
Balances as per statement of cash flows 742.49 (75.88)

* Also refer note 20 for disclosure on changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Significant accounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements
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1

2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Items

2.4 Current / Non-current classification

2.5

Judgements

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

2.6

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Background

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited (Formerly Real Image Media Technologies Private Limited) (" the Company") was incorporated on 1 January
1986. The Company is domiciled and incorporated in India with its registered address situated at No. 42, Dr. Ranga Road, Mylapore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu
- 600004 . The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service. The Company also provides other services such as
content mastering, managed services and in-theater advertising.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 4 August 2020.

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to
the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note 37 – financial instruments.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained
from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which  the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Measurement basis

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices).

Use of estimates and judgements

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 39 – lease classification

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March
2020 is included in the following notes:
Note 7 & 8 - Impairment test of non-financial assets; key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditure on
internally generated intangible asset.
Note 34 - recognition of deferred tax assets; 
Note 35 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 36 - impairment of financial assets;
Note 6 & 21 -  Measurment of lease liablities and Right of Use Asset
Note 40 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments and share based payments) Fair value
- Net defined benefit assets/(liability) Fair value of plan assets, less present value 

of defined benefit obligations

- Note 36 – fair valuation of financial assets

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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3

3.1 Foreign currency transactions

3.2

i. Recognition and initial measurement

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

- amortised cost;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

Financial assets at FVTPL

Equity investments at FVOCI

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

Significant accounting policies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an
average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except exchange differences arising on qualifying cash
flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to statement of profit and loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
KHOGဩIRUဩWUDGLQJ� or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
í���WKH�DVVHW�LV�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�D�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�ZKRVH�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�KROG�DVVHWV�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�IORZV��DQG
í the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial 
assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised
cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 

í the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.
– how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
– the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

– how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows 
collected; and
– the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 
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3

3.2 Financial instruments (continued)
iii. Derecognition

iv. Offsetting

3.3

3.4

Asset Useful life as per 
Schedule II

Plant and machinery 15 years
Computer Systems 3 - 6 years
Office equipments 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Electrical equipments and installation 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

Leasehold improvements are written off over the period of lease or over a period of 4 years whichever is lower.

3.5

Internally generated: Research and Development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Financial assets

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the  transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i. Recognition and measurement

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling 
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

5 years
3 - 6 years

6 years

5 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and
consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to
use these assets.

Intangible assets

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Management estimate of useful life

3 - 10 Years

6 years
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5 Intangible assets (continued)

Asset
Software (including internally generated software)

3.6

3.7

3.8

iv. Amortization

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Management estimate of useful life

Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Right to use the intellectual property is amortised using unit of production method. (Product of each unit then are transferred to inventory and subsequently 
accounted for under cost of stock-in-trade consumed if the unit is sold or considered as property, plant and equipment if the unit is leased.)

ii. Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible employees of the Company. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent
cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or groups of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

ii. Others

Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial
assets.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For all
other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets.

5 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The net
realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.8 Employee benefits (continued)

3.9

3.10

ii. Contract cost

Advertisement income is recognised in the period during which advertisements are displayed.

Revenue from maintenance service fees is recognised on time proportion basis for the period falling in the reporting period.

The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual
return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Provident fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employees and the
Company make monthly contributions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s
salary. Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The Company has no further
obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

iv. Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit
method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense
on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised is the period in which the absences occur.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

The Company does not incur any cost to obtain or fulfill the contracts with customers.

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the
estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from commission and technical service income is recognised in period in which services are rendered.

Virtual print fees (VPF) received from distributors of the films is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the Company gratuity scheme.

Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period and none of the contracts include a financing element.

v. Share-based compensation

i. Income from services and sale of goods

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in
conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation or transaction price of an
existing obligation could undergo a change.

Royalty income on licenses of IP is recognised when the customer’s subsequent sales or usage occurs.

Lease rental income on equipment is recognised as mentioned in note 3.11 (ii) below

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of control to buyers and when no uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that will
be derived from sale of goods.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, if any. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.
The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers based on nature of services.

Contract assets includes amounts related to Company’s contractual right to consideration for completed performance objectives not yet invoiced. Contract
assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of
invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.11

ii. Company as a lessor

3.12

3.13

Recognition of interest income or expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.  It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Income tax

- the amortized cost of the financial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument 
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an
intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Company
applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

At inception of the contract, the Company determines whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease arrangement. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-ofuse assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The right-ofuse assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of
right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-ofuse
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised
in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed
payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability
is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the remeasurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in standalone statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and 
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1 April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to
its leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1 April, 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been
restated. 

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Leases

i. Company as a lessee
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.13 Income tax (continued)

3.14 Borrowing cost

3.15 Earnings per share

3.16 Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There are no such notifications that are
applicable for the Company from 1 April 2020.

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;
- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax
assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of
an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for treasury shares held.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, using the
treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

ii. Deferred tax
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Leasehold 
improvements 

Plant and 
machinery 

Computer
Systems 

Office 
equipments 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

Electrical 
Equipments & 

Installation 

Vehicles Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 251.64 23,991.41 430.26 315.79 524.23 160.87 92.36 25,766.56
Additions - 3,272.46 97.28 6.24 3.19 1.82 - 3,380.99
Disposals - 734.70 3.32 - - - - 738.02
Balance at 31 March 2019 251.64 26,529.17 524.22 322.03 527.42 162.69 92.36 28,409.53

Balance at 1 April 2019 251.64 26,529.17 524.22 322.03 527.42 162.69 92.36 28,409.53
Additions - 3,632.58 60.57 9.67 1.36 - 0.62 3,704.80
Disposals - 478.38 16.46 3.80 - - 0.71 499.35
Balance at 31 March 2020 251.64 29,683.37 568.33 327.90 528.78 162.69 92.27 31,614.98

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2018 106.55 7,610.25 201.31 125.48 173.86 53.24 34.79 8,305.48
Depreciation for the year 72.31 4,117.70 120.54 57.91 87.40 26.99 16.99 4,499.84
Disposals - 573.21 2.80 - - - - 576.01
Balance at 31 March 2019 178.86 11,154.74 319.05 183.39 261.26 80.23 51.78 12,229.31

Balance at 1 April 2019 178.86 11,154.74 319.05 183.39 261.26 80.23 51.78 12,229.31
Depreciation for the year 57.49 4,025.60 121.12 54.32 83.97 26.86 14.40 4,383.76
Disposals - 331.08 15.73 3.64 - - 0.67 351.12
Balance at 31 March 2020 236.35 14,849.26 424.44 234.07 345.23 107.09 65.51 16,261.95

Carrying amount (net)
As at 31 March 2019 72.78 15,374.43 205.17 138.64 266.16 82.46 40.58 16,180.22
As at 31 March 2020 15.29 14,834.11 143.89 93.83 183.55 55.60 26.76 15,353.03

a) Security
As at 31 March 2020, properties with a carrying amount of INR 3,679.41 lakhs  (31 March 2019: INR 4,055.21 lakhs) are subject to first charge to secure bank loans (see Note 20).

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
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5 Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Amount 
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 64.71
Additions 3,530.19
Capitalised during the year 3,445.70
Balance at 31 March 2019 149.20

Balance at 1 April 2019 149.20
Additions 3,802.64
Capitalised during the year 3,704.80
Balance at 31 March 2020 247.04

6 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings 
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (refer note i ) 2,005.78
Additions 12.59
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,018.37

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year 433.66
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 433.66

Net block as at 31 March 2020 1,584.71

7 Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount
Particulars Right to use intellectual 

property right # 
Software * Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 450.15 92.74 542.89
Additions - 2,102.73 2,102.73
Disposals - - -
Amortised cost transferred to propery, plant and equipments and inventory 450.15 - 450.15
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 2,195.47 2,195.47

Balance as at 1 April 2019 - 2,195.47 2,195.47
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Amortised cost transferred to propery, plant and equipments and inventory - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 2,195.47 2,195.47

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance as at 1 April 2018 42.88 42.88
Amortisation for the year - 413.16 413.16
Reversal of impairment loss - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 456.04 456.04

Balance as at 1 April 2019 456.04 456.04
Amortisation for the year - 414.18 414.18
Reversal of impairment loss - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 870.22 870.22

Carrying  amount (net)
As at 31 March 2019 - 1,739.43 1,739.43
As at 31 March 2020 - 1,325.25 1,325.25

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

# Company had purchased the license to develop Qube Xi Integrated media block units to equip the projectors. The license cost has been amortised based on the
units developed in each year. License was fully utilised to develop integrated units during the previous financial year.

* Software consists of capitalised development cost being an internally generated intangible asset.

i) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective 01 April 2019, using modified retrospective method. Accordingly previous period information has not been
restated.

This has resulted in recognising a right-of-use asset at an amount equal to lease liability amounting to INR 1,994.80 lakhs, adjusted by the amount of prepaid lease
payments amounting to INR 81.90 lakhs and accrued lease payments amounting to INR 102.10 as at 01 April 2019.

In the statement of profit and loss for the current year, operating lease expenses which were recognised as other expenses in previous periods is now recognised as
depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. The adoption of this standard did not have any significant
impact on the profit for the year and earnings per share. 

ii)  The Company leases comprise of only buildings. The Company entered into  agreements with owners of the building for taking office premises on lease.
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8 Intangible asset under development

Particulars Amount 
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 2,102.73
Additions 446.96
Capitalised during the year 2,102.73
Balance at 31 March 2019 446.96

Balance at 1 April 2019 446.96
Additions 604.63
Capitalised during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,051.59

As at As at
9 Investments 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Non-current investments

Unquoted equity shares

Equity shares of subsidiary at cost
64,750,000 (31 March 2019: 64,750,000) equity shares of $ 0.1 each fully paid up in Qube Cinema Inc 3,341.41 3,341.41
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1,847.75) (1,847.75)

1,493.66 1,493.66
Equity shares of joint venture at cost
8,058,162 (31 March 2019 : 8,058,162) equity shares of INR 10 each of Justickets Private Limited 1,164.95 1,164.95
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments # (1,164.95) -

1,493.66 2,658.61

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 4,506.36 4,506.36
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (3,012.70) (1,847.75)

1,493.66 2,658.61

10 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 6,675.69 9,381.24
Doubtful 2,340.84 1,211.28

9,016.53 10,592.52
Allowance for doubtful debt (2,340.84) (1,211.28)

Net trade receivables 6,675.69 9,381.24

Non-current 427.13 514.03
Current 6,248.56 8,867.21

6,675.69 9,381.24
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties 710.31 579.20
Allowance for doubtful debt # (710.31) -

- 579.20

11 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 371.63 373.81
Loans to employees 13.62 16.61
Loans to related parties 20.00 20.00

405.25 410.42

Loss allowance * (20.00) -

Net loans 385.25 410.42

Non-current 325.73 327.08
Current 59.52 83.34

385.25 410.42

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

a) The Company is in the process of developing a web-based platform (an advertising marketplace) that is intended for the Company's use. As at 31 March
2020 cost incurred amounts to INR 294.63 lakhs. 

b) The Company is in the process of developing a next-gen digital cinema server that are seen as the future of theatrical exhibition. As at 31 March 2020
cost incurred amounts to INR 756.96 lakhs.

# The Company performed impairment assessment on its non-current investments as at 31 March 2020, basis their assessment, the Company has impaired
its investements in Justickets private limited.

The Company has performed an impairment assessment on its trade receivables as a result of the impact of COVID-19. Management believes that the
provision recorded is sufficient and adequate and the carrying amount of receivables reflects its recoverable value. The Company’s exposure to credit and
loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 37.

# The Company, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from the related party (Justickets Private Limited) has provided for the entire receivables
as bad and doubtful debts. 

* The Company, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from the related party (Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited) has provided for the entire 
receivables as bad and doubtful debts. 
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Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

As at As at
12 Other financial assets 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Bank deposits under lien 42.00 42.00
Dues from related party 469.33 322.14
Contract assets 514.96 557.36
Interest accrued on bank deposits 37.61 13.89
Interest accrued on loan to related parties 1.73 1.73

1,065.63 937.12

Loss allowance * (471.06) -

Net other financial assets 594.57 937.12

Non-current 42.00 42.00
Current 552.57 895.12

594.57 937.12

Of the above, contractually reimbursable expenses from related parties are as below:
Dues from related party 471.06 323.87
Loss allowance * (471.06) -

- 323.87

13 Income tax assets 

Advance tax recoverable (net of provision) 1,605.01 741.43
1,605.01 741.43

14 Other assets

Advances to suppliers 376.19 432.42
Prepaid expenses 589.34 864.90
Excess of planned assets towards gratuity obligations - 30.93
Balance with government authorities 1,634.19 1,402.65

2,599.72 2,730.90

Non-current 286.71 288.85
Current 2,313.01 2,442.05

2,599.72 2,730.90

15 Inventories

Stock in trade 3,145.05 4,077.29
3,145.05 4,077.29

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1.57 1.18
Bank balances 1,058.93 1,173.28

1,060.50 1,174.46

Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes (318.01) (1,250.34)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 742.49 (1,250.34)

17 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits* 1,831.58 1,231.58
1,831.58 1,231.58

* Of the above, Bank deposits under lien 231.58 231.58

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

* The Company, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from related party (Justickets Private Limited and Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited) 
has provided for a loss allowance against these dues. 

Due to outbreak of COVID-19, Management has performed impairment assessment of inventory as at 31 March 2020. Management believes that the
provision recorded is sufficient and adequate and the carrying amount of inventory reflects its recoverable value.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

18 Equity share capital

Authorised
20,000,000 (31 March 2019: 20,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each. 2,000.00 2,000.00
7,500,000 (31 March 2019 : 7,500,000) Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each. 750.00 750.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
9,940,858 (31 March 2019: 9,940,858) equity shares of INR 10 994.09 994.09

7,443,611 (31 March 2019: 7,443,611) Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each. 744.36 744.36

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number of shares Amount 1XPEHU�RI� VKDUHV Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement and at the end of the year 9,940,858 994.09 9,940,858 994.09

At the commencement and at the end of the year 7,443,611 744.36 7,443,611 744.36

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

c) Employee stock options

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

Number of shares % of equity shares Number of 
shares

% of equity 
shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid, held by
Real Image LLP 2,462,225 25% 2,462,225 25%
Street Edge Capital L.P.USA 1,597,302 16% 1,597,302 16%
RIMT Employees Trust 808,308 8% 808,308 8%
Nomura Asia Investment (MB) Pte Ltd 625,747 6% 625,747 6%
V. Senthil Kumar 553,100 6% 553,100 6%
Canara Bank Ltd. 531,567 5% 531,567 5%
Meena Veerappan 506,800 5% 506,800 5%

7,085,049 71% 7,085,049 71%
Compulsory convertible cummulative preference shares

Nomura Asia Investment (MB) Pte Ltd - Series C 3,095,160 42% 3,095,160 42%
Intel (Capital) Mauritius Limited - Series A and Series C 2,768,569 37% 2,768,569 37%
CSI BD (Mauritius) - Series B 789,941 11% 789,941 11%
Payone Enterprises Pvt. Ltd - Series B 789,941 11% 789,941 11%

7,443,611 100% 7,443,611 100%

As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

- - - - -

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

As at 31 March 2020

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company’s residual assets on
winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, subject to preferential right of preference shareholders to payment of
dividend. The voting rights of an equity shareholder  are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the company.

As at 31 March 2019

The Company has only one class of compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares having a par value of INR.10. The compulsorily convertible preference shares
were convertible based on the terms and conditions contained in the shareholders agreement dated 24 May 2006, 29 June 2007 and 18 July 2008, at any time after the
initial investment closing date (as defined in the agreement) but before 31 March 2013. Each preference share will be converted into a fixed no.of equity shares. As per
the amendment agreement between the shareholders dated 16 January 2013, the compulsorily convertible preference shares are convertible at any time after the initial
investment closing date but before 31 March 2016. The agreement was amended in May 2016 by extending the date of conversion to 31 March 2018. In March 2018,
the agreement was again amended by extending the date of conversion to 31 March 2019. During the previous year, at the board meeting held on 28 March 2019, the
board of directors have decided to extend the date of conversion by another 2 year, i.e., 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of cumulative
preference shares, the entitlement for that year lapses. The preference shares holder shall have one vote for each Equity Share into which the Preferred Shares held by
him of record could be converted (as provided in these articles), on every resolution, without regard to whether the vote thereon is conducted by a show of hands, by
written ballot or by any other means, and would be entitled to notice of and the right to vote together with the equity shares on all matters submitted to a vote of the
company's shareholder. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity shareholders to be repaid to the extent of capital paid-up
and dividend in arrears on such shares.

Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in Note 40 regarding share-based payments.

Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares

On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, remaining after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
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19 Other equity

Capital redemption reserve

Securities premium

Share options outstanding account

20 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Term loans

Secured loans from bank (refer note (i) & (ii) below) 2,905.65 2,505.70
Unsecured loans from others 911.50 548.69

Total non-current borrowings 3,817.15 3,054.40

Current borrowings
Bank overdraft 2,818.01 3,750.34
Current portion of term loans (refer note (i) & (ii) below) 969.60 1,912.38

3,787.61 5,662.72

Less: Amount included under ‘Other financial liabilities’ (969.60) (1,912.38)
2,818.01 3,750.34

A. Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

Particulars Year of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 31-Mar-20 - 249.36
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 03-Sep-19 - 235.45
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 04-Nov-20 168.52 457.43
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 25-Oct-22 857.25 1,189.09
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 04-Jul-23 1,479.94 1,923.87
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 07-Aug-24 1,173.70 -
Unsecured Loan from Belfius Bank USD 31-Mar-21 598.05 911.58
Unsecured Loan from Belfius Bank USD 6 Month LIBOR + 1.6% 30-Jun-26 509.29 -
Cash credit INR On demand 2,818.01 3,750.34

              7,604.76               8,717.12 
B. Secured bank loans

Particulars
Non-current borrowings               3,817.15               3,054.40 
Current borrowings                  969.60               1,912.38 
Bank overdrafts               2,818.01               3,750.34 

              7,604.76               8,717.11 

Particulars  Bank overdraft  Term loans  Total 

Balance as at 1 April 2018               3,213.70               5,476.46               8,690.16 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings                          -               2,811.96               2,811.96 
Repayment of borrowings                          - (3,382.07)             (3,382.07)
Change in bank overdraft and working capital loan                  536.63                          -                  536.63 

Non-cash changes
- Impact of effective interest amortisation                          -                      5.78                      5.78 
- Unrealised exchange loss on restatement of borrowings                          -                    54.65                    54.65 

Balance as at 31 March 2019               3,750.33               4,966.78               8,717.11 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings                          -               1,701.72               1,701.72 
Repayment of borrowings                          -             (1,958.17)             (1,958.17)
Change in bank overdraft and working capital loan                (932.32)

-
               (932.32)

Non-cash changes                          -                          -                          -   
- Impact of effective interest amortisation                          -                    10.72                    10.72 
- Unrealised exchange loss on restatement of borrowings - 65.70                    65.70 

Balance as at 31 March 2020               2,818.01               4,786.75 7,604.76

C. Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
As at 

31 March 2020
As at 

31 March 2019

The secured term loans from banks are secured by exclusive charge on fixed assets including plant and equipment created out of term loans with a carrying
amount of INR 3,679.41 lakhs (31 March 2019 : 4,055.20 lakhs)

Carrying Amount as at

Nominal interest rate

3 year MCLR  + 2.10% 
3 year MCLR  + 2.10%
3 year MCLR + 1.80% 
1 year MCLR + 1.65%
1 year MCLR + 1.20%
1 year MCLR + 1.80%
6 Month LIBOR + 1.7%

Currenc
y

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Capital Redemption reserve was created on account of buy back of entire shares held by Kotak Mahindra Venture Capital Fund in March 2005 (596,000
shares) and June 2005 (715,904 shares).

1 year MCLR

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Company. Refer to Note 40 for
further details on these plans.

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019
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20 Borrowings (continued)

(ii) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities with HDFC Bank, the Company is required to comply with the following financial covenants :
- the adjusted tangible net worth must be more than 19,000 lakhs
- the ratio of total outstanding liabilities to adjusted tangible net worth must be less than 1.5
- the debt service coverage ratio must be more than 2

21 Lease liabilities

Particulars Buildings 
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (refer note 6 (i) ) 2,025.98
Additions -
Deletions -
Finance cost accrued during the period 186.30
Discharge of lease liabilities 522.39
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,689.89

Non-current             1,356.61 
Current                333.28 

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

22 Other financial Liabilities

Deposits received 3,052.43 2,723.01
Current maturities of long term borrowings 969.60 1,912.38
Interest accrued on borrowings 95.12 77.46

4,117.15 4,712.85

Non-current 1,478.77 1,401.05
Current 2,638.38 3,311.80

4,117.15 4,712.85

The Company's exposure to liquidity and currency risks related to the above financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 37.

23 Other liabilities

Billing in advance of work completed 596.25 486.49
Advance payments from customers 3,249.77 3,084.47
Employees benefits payable 790.99 613.40
Statutory dues payables 274.42 705.86
Deferred rent - 102.34
Deferred revenue 399.50 333.42

5,310.93 5,325.98

Non-current 372.47 311.65
Current 4,938.46 5,014.33

5,310.93 5,325.98

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

(i)   The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has permitted banks and financial institutions to offer a moratorium of six months on payment of instalments of all 
term loans falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 August 2020. This includes all Term Loans and Cash Credit/Overdraft facilities. The Company had
considered to avail the loan moratorium and all installments due from 1 March 2020 to 31 August 2020 stand deferred. The RBI has further clarified
that deferment of loan payments shall not be considered as default by lenders. 

As at 31 March 2020, the Company has failed to comply with adjusted tangible net woth and debt service coverage ratio as per above crtieria. However, 
the Company has obtained waiver of the breah of above covenants from banks.

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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24 Provisions

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Provision for employee benefits (see note 36)
Liability for gratuity 71.02 - 55.02 -
Liability for compensated absences 220.17 178.60 28.12 13.70
Total provision for employee benefits 291.19 178.60 83.14 13.70

Other provisions
Provision for tax 12.02                107.54 - -
Total other provisions 12.02 107.54 - -

Total provisions 303.21 286.14 83.14 13.70

25 Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade payables to related parties
     total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
     total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,975.51 3,446.42

3,975.51 3,446.42
Of the above, trade payables from related parties are as below:

Total trade payables from related parties 180.94 178.05

The Company's exposure to liquidity and currency risks related to the above trade payables are disclosed in Note 37.

Non-current Current

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

26 Revenue from operations

Sale of services 
Advertisement income 9,750.68 13,086.25
Virtual print fees 11,602.60 11,338.52
Service income 2,485.97 2,041.88
Lease rental income 1,764.62 1,505.37
Other revenue 883.95 1,192.56

26,487.82 29,164.58

Sale of products
Sale of digital cinema equipments 7,301.07 9,813.17

Other operating income
Royalty 25.14 37.35

Total revenue from operations 33,814.03 39,015.10

27 Other income

Interest income on
Cash and cash equivalents 134.84 5.19
Security deposit paid 21.59 24.99

Insurance claim received 7.52 35.07
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 121.62 23.87
Notional rental income on security deposit received 144.19 13.56

429.76 102.68

28 Purchases of stock in trade

Cost of stock in trade consumed 5,865.31 7,656.04
Less: Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 4,077.29 3,041.87
Add: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 3,145.05 4,077.29
Purchases during the year 4,933.07 8,691.46

29 Changes in inventories of stock in trade 

Opening 
Inventory

Closing 
Inventory

 Increase in 
inventory

Opening 
Inventory

Closing 
Inventory

 Decrease in 
inventory

Stock in trade             4,077.29               3,145.05                     932.24               3,041.87               4,077.29              (1,035.42)
4,077.29 3,145.05 932.24 3,041.87 4,077.29 (1,035.42)

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

30 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 6,939.81 6,674.08
Contribution to provident and other funds 334.55 276.81
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 53.30 61.59
Expenses related to compensated absences 83.06 9.30
Equity-settled shared-based payments - 6.04
Staff welfare expenses 364.38 356.34

7,775.10 7,384.16

31 Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 980.22 766.71
Interest expenses on lease liability 186.3 -

1,166.52 766.71

32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,383.77 4,499.84
Amortisation of intangible assets 414.18 413.16
Depreciation expenses (ROU assets) 433.66 -

5,231.61 4,913.00

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

33 Other expenses
Advertisement revenue share 5,027.98 5,877.00
Virtual print fee revenue share 4,006.62 3,762.73
Freight and handling charges 396.24 534.33
Digitising, censor, theatre advertisement and VSAT charges 1,061.74 1,363.21
Consumption of packing material and spares 289.36 393.20
Power and fuel 244.94 243.80
Rent 76.00 601.47

   - Buildings - -
906.10 943.69

   - Others 666.71 501.79
Service charges 282.82 131.87
Insurance 119.02 263.68
Rates and taxes 89.48 113.56
Communication 316.96 468.76
Traveling and conveyance 421.38 574.55
Printing and stationery 28.13 34.94
Software expenses 73.57 128.22
Sales discount and commission 210.16 188.06
Advertisement and business promotion 339.52 373.96
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note (ii) below) 25.75 76.40
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note (i) below) 646.58 639.10
Bad debts written off 77.50 38.94
Allowance for doubtful debt 419.24 -
Bank charges 24.57 46.86
Net loss on foreign currency transactions 280.38 312.37
Miscellaneous expenses 65.12 88.44

16,095.87 17,700.93

(i) Payment to auditors (excluding tax)
As auditor

Statutory audit 19.00 19.00
Reimbursement of expenses 1.97 3.63

20.97 22.63

(ii) Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
(a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 47.81 75.86
(b) Amount spent during the year ( in cash)
      (i) Construction / acquisition of any assets -
      (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 25.00 76.40

34 Exceptional items

Impairment loss on investment in Justickets Pvt.Ltd ( Jointly controlled entity)(refer note 9) 1,164.95 -
Impairment of receivables from Justickets Pvt.Ltd ( Jointly controlled entity) (refer note 10 & 12) 1,179.64 -

2,344.59 -

Repairs and maintenance

<This space has been intentionally left blank>

   - Plant & machinery
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

35 Income tax

A. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax
Current period (a) 16.73 628.50

Deferred tax (b)
Attributable to -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (389.08) (342.52)

Tax expense for current period (a)+(b) (372.35) 285.98

B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Before tax Tax (expense) 
benefit

Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) 
benefit

Net of tax

(179.43) 52.25 (127.18) 29.90 (10.45) 19.45

(179.43) 52.25 (127.18) 29.90 (10.45) 19.45

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax (1,890.62) 696.94

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 29.120% (550.55) 34.944% 243.54
Effect of non-deductible expenses -9.43% 178.20 6.09% 42.44

Effective tax rate 19.695% (372.35) 41.034% 285.98

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment 1,262.00 1,257.66 - - 1,262.00 1,257.66
Provisions:

Employee benefit provisions 141.14 123.77 - - 141.14 123.77
Trade receivables 818.32 423.27 - - 818.32 423.27

ROU asset and lease liability 51.84 51.84
Other items - 10.67 (16.60) - (16.60) 10.67
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 2,273.30 1,815.37 (16.60) - 2,256.70 1,815.37

(16.60) - 16.60 - - -

2,256.70 1,815.37 - - 2,256.70 1,815.37

Movement in temporary differences

Balance as at 
1 April 2018

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance as at 
31 March 2019

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI during 

Balance as at 
31 March 2020

877.33 380.33 - 1,257.66 4.34 - 1,262.00

Provisions: -
170.62 (36.40) (10.45) 123.77 (34.88) 52.25 141.14
423.27 - - 423.27 395.05 - 818.32

- - - - 51.84 - 51.84

Other items 12.08 (1.41) - 10.67 (27.27) - (16.60)
1,483.30 342.52 (10.45) 1,815.37 389.08 52.25 2,256.70

ROU asset and lease 
liability

Trade receivables
Employee benefit 

Property, plant and 
equipment

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Offsetting of deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Year ended 31 March 2019Year ended 31 March 2020

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) Deferred tax (liabilities)Deferred tax assets

Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019

Remeasurement of defined benefit 
liability (assets)
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36 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

- (30.93)
Total Employee benefit asset (current) - (30.93)
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity plan 126.04 -
Liability for compensated absences 248.29 192.30
Total employee benefit liabilities 374.33 192.30

Non-current 291.19 178.60
Current 83.14 13.70

374.33 192.30
For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 30.

The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans.

A. Funding

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

518.42                      494.03 
Benefits paid (117.41)                      (47.95)
Current service cost 58.60                        60.41 
Interest cost 35.40                        36.24 
Past service cost -                              -   
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

Changes in demographic assumptions -                              -   
Changes in financial assumptions 84.59                          0.68 
Experience adjustments 97.62                      (24.99)

                     677.22                      518.42 

Reconciliation of  the present value of plan assets
                     549.35                      400.82 
                       75.76                      155.83 

Benefits paid                    (117.41)                      (47.95)
Interest income                        40.70                        35.06 
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income                          2.78                          5.59 

                     551.18                      549.35 

                     126.04                      (30.93)

Plan is fully funded by the Company. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding of plan is based on a separate actuarial valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the
assumptions set out in (E). Employees do not contribute to the plan.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Contributions paid into the plan

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered
at least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six
months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Net defined benefit liability / (asset) - Gratuity plan
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36 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)
 Year ended

31 March 2020 
 Year ended

31 March 2019 

Current service cost                        58.60                        60.41 
Interest cost                        35.40                        36.24 
Interest income                      (40.70)                      (35.06)
Past service cost                              -                                -   

                       53.30                        61.59 

ii. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation                      182.21                      (24.31)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income                        (2.78)                        (5.59)

                     179.43                      (29.90)
D. Plan assets
Plan assets were primarily invested in LIC fund.

i. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
 Year ended

31 March 2020 
 Year ended

31 March 2019 
Discount rate 6.67% 7.70%
Future salary growth 5% 5.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
634.04 724.95 485.88 554.28
722.03 636.08 552.56 487.13
678.11 676.35 519.56 517.29
677.51 676.96 518.76 518.10

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

C. i. Expense recognised in profit or loss 

Discount rate (0.5% movement)
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)
Attrition rate (5% movement)
Mortality  (5% movement)

Year ended  31 March 2020 Year ended  31 March 2019

E. Defined benefit obligations
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2020

Note Other financial assets -
amortised cost

Other financial 
liabilities

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)

Investments 9 1,493.66 - 1,493.66
Loans 11 385.25 - 385.25
Trade receivables 10 6,675.69 - 6,675.69
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,060.50 - 1,060.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,831.58 - 1,831.58
Other financial assets 12 594.57 - 594.57

12,041.25 - 12,041.25
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)
Borrowings 20 - 6,635.16 6,635.16
Trade payables 25 - 3,975.51 3,975.51
Other financial liabilities 22 - 4,117.15 4,117.15

- 14,727.82 14,727.82

As at 31 March 2019

Note Other financial assets -
amortised cost

Other financial 
liabilities

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)

Investments 9 2,658.61                                - 2,658.61
Loans 11 410.42                                - 410.42
Trade receivables 10 9,381.24                                - 9,381.24
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,174.46                                - 1,174.46
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,231.58                                - 1,231.58
Other financial assets 12 937.12 937.12

15,793.43                                -                  15,793.43 
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)
Borrowings 20 - 6,804.74 6,804.74
Trade payables 25 - 3,446.42 3,446.42
Other financial liabilities 22 - 4,712.85 4,712.85

- 14,964.01 14,964.01

Note 1: The Company has not disclosed fair values of financial instruments such as investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other
bank balances, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities, since their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of
fair values.

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount

Carrying amount
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management

i. Risk management framework

ii. Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Trade receivables 6,675.69 9,381.24
Loans 385.25 410.42
Cash and cash equivalents 1,060.50 1,174.46
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,831.58 1,231.58
Other financial assets 594.57 937.12

10,547.59 13,134.82

Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to  credit risk for trade receivables by relationship is as follows:
As at 

31 March 2020
As at 

31 March 2019
Third party customers 6,675.69 8,802.04
Related parties - 579.20

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

India 6,541.38 9,255.12
Rest of the world 134.31 126.12

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company's board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets.

Trade receivables are amount billed to customers for the sale of goods and services, and represent the maximum exposure to credit risk of those financial
assets , exclusive of the allowance for doubtful debts. Normal credit terms are in line with Industry practice.

The Company does not require collateral or other security from customers; however credit evaluations are performed prior to the initial granting of credit
when warranted and periodically thereafter. Based on policy, the Company records a reserve for estimated uncollectible amounts, which management
believes reduce credit risk. Management assesses the adequacy of reserve quarterly, taking into account historical experience, current collection trend, the
age of the receivables and, when warranted and available, the financial condition of specific counterparties. The Company follows "simplified approach"
for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
a) credit risk
b) liquidity risk and
c) market risk.

The Company’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The
board of directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Carrying amount
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

ii. Credit risk (continued)

The following tables provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables:

As at 31 March 2020
Gross carrying 
amount

Weighted-
average loss rate

Loss allowance

1-240 days past due 5,576.37 2.13% 118.53
241-365 days past due 557.27 49.79% 277.48
More than 365 days past due 2,882.89 67.46% 1,944.83

9,016.53 2,340.84

As at 31 March 2019
Gross carrying 

amount
Weighted-

average loss rate Loss allowance

1-240 days past due 7,559.70 0.00% -
241-365 days past due 622.36 32.08% 199.68
More than 365 days past due 2,410.46 41.97% 1,011.60

10,592.52 1,211.28

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows: 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances at 1 April 2019 1,211.29 1,211.29
Provision for the year 1,129.55 -
Balance at 31 March 2020                2,340.84                 1,211.29 

Cash and bank balances (includes amounts classified under bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents)

Other financial assets
a. Security deposits

b. Loan to employees

The Company holds cash and bank balances of INR 2,892.0.8 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: INR 2,406.04 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such
banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

These fixed deposits are held with credit worthy banks and financial institutions. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

Total

Total

The Company uses Expected Credit Loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company has used simplified approach for its trade receivables
and other receivables to compute loss allowance.

This balance is primarily constituted by deposit given in relation to leasehold premises occupied by the Company for carrying out its operations. The
Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties.

d. Contract assets
This balance is primarily constituted by services but not billed yet. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-
parties as the amounts are recoverable. 

e. Interest accrued on bank deposit

This balance is constituted by loans given to the employees. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties as
the amounts are recoverable by salary deductions.

c. Contractally reimburable expenses
This balance is primarily constituted by reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of Justickets Private Limited. The Company does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counter-parties as the amounts are recoverable. 
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

iii. Liquidity risks

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying 
amount

Total 6 months 
or less

6-12 
months

1-2 
years

More than 
2 years

Borrowings 6,635.16 6,746.55 - 2,818.01 1470.16 2458.38
Trade payables 3,975.51 3,975.51 3,975.51 - - -
Lease liabilities 1,689.89 1,689.89 182.64 150.64 316.89 1039.72
Other financial liabilities 4,117.15 4,117.15 1,443.90 1,194.30 560.93 918.02

16,417.71 16,529.10 5,602.05 4,162.95 2,347.98 4,416.12

As at 31 March 2019
Carrying 
amount

Total 6 months 
or less

6-12 
months

1-2 
years

More than 
2 years

Borrowings                6,804.74 6,804.74 3,163.06 - 1,561.29 2,080.39
Trade payables                3,446.42 3,446.42 3,446.42 - - -
Other financial liabilities                4,712.85 4,712.85 2,353.59 958.21 300.07 1,100.98

14,964.01 14,964.01 8,963.08 958.21 1,861.36 3,181.36

iv. Market risks

Currency risk

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets/ (liabilities) USD EURO Total
Trade receivables 134.31 - 134.31
Cash and cash equivalents 106.18 - 106.18
Borrowings (including interest accured) (1,168.92) - (1,168.92)
Trade payables (865.41) (55.42) (920.83)
Net assets / (liabilities) (1,793.84) (55.42) (1,849.26)

As at 31 March 2019

Financial assets/ (liabilities) USD EURO Total
Trade receivables 126.12 - 126.12
Cash and cash equivalents 26.74 - 26.74
Borrowings (including interest accured) (935.33) - (935.33)
Trade payables (1,156.84) (78.62) (1,235.46)
Net assets / (liabilities) (1,939.31) (78.62) (2,017.93)

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The
value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market
risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables.
The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its
investments. Thus the Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating
activities in foreign currencies.

The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management is as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation. 

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities
(excluding trade payables).

Contractual cash flows
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
As at 31 March 2020
USD (1% movement) (17.94) 17.94 (13.27) 13.27
EURO (1% movement) (0.55) 0.55 (0.41) 0.41

As at 31 March 2019
USD (1% movement) (19.39) 19.39 (12.68) 12.68
EURO (1% movement) (0.79) 0.79 (0.51) 0.51

c. Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Fixed rate borrowings - -
Variable rate borrowings 7,639.79 8,736.90

7,639.79 8,736.90
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
As at 31 March 2020
Variable rate instrument (76.40) 76.40 (56.53) 56.53
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (76.40) 76.40 (56.53) 56.53

As at 31 March 2019
Variable rate instrument (87.37) 87.37 (57.13) 57.13
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (87.37) 87.37 (57.13) 57.13

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

Equity, net of tax

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR against US dollar and EURO at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

The Company has only variable rate instruments i.e. term loan and supplier credit.

Profit / (loss)

A reasonable possible change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Profit / (loss)

Equity, net of tax
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38 Capital management

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Total liabilities                 7,604.76                8,717.11 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents               (1,060.50)               (1,174.46)
Adjusted net debt 6,544.26 7,542.65
Total equity 19,094.36 23,084.40
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.34 0.33

39 Earnings per share (EPS)

See accounting policy in note 3.15

a) Basic earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders (3,862.86) 410.96
Weighted average number of equity shares 9,940,858 9,940,858
Basic earnings per share (In INR) (38.86) 4.13

b) Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders (3,862.86) 410.96

Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) 9,940,858 9,940,858
Effect of conversion of compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares * - 9,546,407
Effect of exercise of share options * - 322,888
Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted) for the year 9,940,858 19,810,153

Diluted earnings per share (In INR) (38.86) 2.07

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. It sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic
investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity and other borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use short-term and long-
term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company monitors capital using a ratio of net debt to equity. For this purpose, net debt is
defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, , less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The calculations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of basic earnings per 
share calculation are as follows:

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding, after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares as follows:

The Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00. 

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

* The Company has compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares and share options which could potentially dilute basis earnings per share in the
future, but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are antidilutive for the FY 2019-20.
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40 Operating leases

(i) As Lessor

(ii) As Lessee

i. Future minimum lease payments

At 31 March 2020, the future minimum lease payments to be made under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

Payable in less than one year 48.65
Payable between one and five years -
Payable after more than five years -

ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
As at 

31 March 2020
Lease expense – minimum lease payments 76.00

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(to the extent not provided for)

As at As at
Contingent liabilities 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Counter Guarantees issued to banks 45.97                     52.12 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Excise duty, service tax and customs duty, VAT matters (see Note (i) and (ii) below) 827.58 844.74
Other matters

93.81 93.81

Note:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 281.72 34.24

Bonus (see Note (iii))

The Company has leased out digital cinema equipment to theatres on operating lease arrangement. The lease term is generally for 5 to 10 years. The
Company as well as the theatres have an option of terminating this lease arrangement any time during the tenure of the lease as per the provisions of the
lease agreement. Based on the management assumptions there is a reasonable certainty that the lease will continue for the lease term of 5 to 10 years.

Lease income recognised from the above lease arrangement (included under sale of services under Note 26 - INR 1,764.62 lakhs (Previous year - INR
1,505.37 lakhs)

Lease commitments are the future cash out flows from the lease contracts which are not recorded in the measurement of lease liabilities. These include
potential future payments related to short-term leases as the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where it is not acknowledged as debt, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to
have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(iii) Bonus provision financial year 2014-15 pursuant to retrospective amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act" for which an interim stay has been granted
by the High Court of Madras.

(iv) Supreme Court vide their judgement dated 28 February 2019 clarified that Provident fund deduction is to be made on basic salary and on other salary
components which are universally made available to all employees. The Company, based on external advice, believes that there are interpretative
challenges and significant uncertainties surrounding the determination of liability including period of assessment, application for present and past
employees, liability towards employees' contribution and assessment of interest and penalties. The amount of obligation, therefore, cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability for past periods and hence, disclosed as contingent liability.

(ii) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the 
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
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42 Related parties

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
Subsidiary Company Qube Cinema Inc, USA
Jointly controlled entity Justickets Private Limited
Enterprises having Significant Influence

M/s Nomura Asia Investment (MB)  Pte. Ltd , Singapore
Key Management Personnel Mr. V. Senthil Kumar

Mr. P.Jayendra
Mr. Arvind Ranganathan (until 31 May 2019)
Mr. Harsh Krishna Rohatgi

Relative of Key Management Personnel Mr.Arun Veerappan
Mrs. Vee. Vijayalakshmi
Mr. V. Sivakumar
Mrs. Meena Veerappan
Mrs. Sudha Panchapakesan
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind

Entities in which Relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

B. Transaction with key managerial personnel (KMP)

 For the year ended
31 March 2020 

 For the year ended
31 March 2019 

Short term employee benefits 789.86 624.31
Post-employment defined benefits * *
Compensated absences * *
Total 789.86 624.31

C. Related party transactions

 For the year ended
31 March 2020 

 For the year ended
31 March 2019 

Sale of goods
Subsidiary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, USA 261.27 36.30
261.27 36.30

Sale of services
Jointly controlled entity

Justickets Private Limited 116.46 191.41
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Digital Film Technologies Private Limited 217.33 144.70
333.79 336.11

Other operating income
Subsidiary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, USA 25.14 37.35
25.14 37.35

Vehicle hire charges
Key Management Personnel
Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 10.80 10.80
Mr. P.Jayendra 10.80 10.80
Mrs. Vee. Vijayalakshmi 3.60 3.60
Mrs. Meena Veerappan 7.80 7.80
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind 1.00 6.00

34.00 39.00

Nature of transactions

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Digital Film Technologies Private. Limited., in which Mrs. Sudha
Panchapakesan wife of Director Mr. P.Jayendra and Mrs. Vandana
Gopikumar wife of Director Mr.V. Senthil Kumar are interested.

Transaction value

Key management personnel of the Company comprise of the board of directors and key members of management having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The key management personnel compensation during the year are as follows:

Compensation of the Company's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-employment defined benefit plan.

* Amount attributable to post employment benefits and compensated absences have not been disclosed as the same cannot be identified distinctly in the
actuarial valuation.

M/s. StreetEdge Capital L.P, USA 

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited., in which Mrs. Vandana
Gopikumar wife of Director Mr.V. Senthil Kumar are interested.
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42 Related parties (continued)

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2019 

Reimbursement of expenses
Subsidiary Company
Qube Cinema Inc, USA 750.37 475.00
Jointly controlled entity
Justickets Private Limited 150.79 168.50

901.16 643.50
Loans
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited 20.00 20.00
Loss allowance (20.00) -

- 20.00

Interest accrued on loan
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited 1.73 1.73
Loss allowance (1.73) -

- 1.73

Outstanding receivables
Jointly controlled entity

Justickets Private Limited 710.31 579.20
Loss allowance (710.31) -

- 579.20

Contract assets
Subsidiary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, USA 25.14 37.35
25.14 37.35

Advance from customers
Subsidiary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, USA 39.61 -
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Digital Film Technologies Private Limited 4.52 5.90
44.13 5.90

Outstanding payables
Subsidiary Company

Qube Cinema Inc, USA 180.94 178.05
180.94 178.05

Employee benefits payables
Key Management Personnel

Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 130.64 72.78
Mr. P.Jayendra 130.64 72.78
Mr. Arvind Ranganathan 25.28 42.00
Mr. Harsh Krishna Rohatgi 66.18 -

352.74 187.56

Security deposits received
Key Management Personnel

Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 8.00 8.00
Mr. P.Jayendra 8.00 8.00
Mrs. Meena Veerappan 2.00 2.00
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind - 8.00

18.00 26.00

Contractually reimbursable expenses
Jointly controlled entity

Justickets Private Limited 469.33 322.14
Loss allowance (469.33)

- 322.14

Investments
Subsidiary Company
Qube Cinema Inc, USA 1,493.66 1,493.66
Jointly controlled entity
Justickets Private Limited 1,164.95 1,164.95
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (1,164.95) -

1,493.66 2,658.61

Nature of transactions
Balance outstanding 
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43 Share-based payments

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

Share option plans (equity-settled)

i) ESOP 2006 Plan

Grant Date Number of 
instruments

Contractual life of
options

 1 April 2012                 300,000 6 years

ii) ESOP 2012 Plan

Grant Date Number of 
instruments

Contractual life of
options

18 May 2017                   25,000 6 years

10 January 2013 50,000 6 years

B. Measurement of fair values

C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Weighted average 
exercise price

Number of options
Weighted average 

exercise price

Number of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - -
Granted during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Weighted average 
exercise price

Number of options
Weighted average 

exercise price

Number of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - -
Granted during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000

D. Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Employee Option plan
          - Equity-settled shared-based payments (Refer note 28) - 6.04

The 2012 plan was approved by the Board of Directors on July 19, 2012 and by shareholders on October 25, 2012. The plan entities employees in full time
service to purchase shares of the company at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with the vesting conditions; all exercises options shall be
settled by physical delivery of shares. As per the plan, holders of vested option are entitled to purchase one equity shares for every option at the exercise
price of  INR 130.

Senior management personnel

Vesting conditions

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense are as follows:

The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans (see (A)(i) and (ii)) are as follows.

ESOP Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012

ESOP Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012

Employees entitled

The 2006 plan was approved by the Board of Directors in 6 May 2006 and by shareholders on 31 May 2006. The plan entitles employees in full time service
to purchase shares of the company at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with the vesting conditions; all exercises options shall be settled by
physical delivery of shares. As per the plan, holders of vested option are entitled to purchase one equity shares for every option at the exercise price of INR
10. The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows.

Vesting conditions

1/3 of options will vest after
completion of each year from the date
of grant.

Completion of service of 1 year from
grant date

The fair value of employee share options (see (A)(i) and (A)(ii)) has been measured using Black -Scholes model as at the grant date.

Senior management personnel

Employees entitled

1/3 of options will vest after
completion of each year from the date
of grant.
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44 Contract balances

(i) Contract assets Amount

Opening balance 1 April 2019 557.36
Less: Invoiced during the year (557.36)
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 514.96
Closing balance 31 March 2020 514.96

(ii) Contract liabilities (Billing in advance of work completed) Amount

Opening balance 1 April 2019 486.49
Less: revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (486.49)
Add: invoices raised for which no revenue is recognised during the year 596.25
Closing balance 31 March 2020 596.25

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Amount

Revenue from contracts with customers (as per Statement of profit and loss) 33,814.03
Add: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions 270.01
Less: Contract assets adjustments (514.96)
Contracted price with the customers 33,569.08

45 Segment reporting

A. Geographic information : 

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

India 32,763.00 37,538.23
Rest of the world 1,051.03 1,476.87

33,814.03 39,015.10

46 Micro and small enterprises

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March  2019

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

B. Major Customers

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of digital cinema services and sale of digital cinema ancillary to sale of services. The entity’s chief
operating decision maker considers the Company as a whole to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.
Accordingly, the Company does not have multiple segments and these financial statements are reflective of the information required by the Ind AS 108. The
chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the entity’s business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocations and
performance assessment. 

The geographic information analyses the Company's revenue by the Company's country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been determined based on the geographic location of the customers. 

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). The disclosure in respect of the amounts
payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company.
Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the end of each accounting year

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realised with the associated revenue recognised under
the contract.

Revenue from top customer of the Company is INR 3,580.54 lakhs which is more than 10% of the Company's total revenue. However, during the year 2018-
19, no single external customer has generated revenue of 10% or more of the Company's total revenue.
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Re-opening of the Company’s operations fully depends on the reopening of cinemas. The Government vide its Order [Guidelines for Phased Re-opening
(Unlock 1) [As per Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) Order No. 40-3/2020-DM-1(A) dated 30th May 2020] has stated that Cinemas will be allowed to open
in the third phase of re-opening but the date of cinemas reopening is uncertain at this point in time and will be decided based on the assessment of the
situation. Given this uncertainty, these cost optimization measures will help the Company to conserve cash to sustain this phase until cinemas re-open.

Basis the cash flow projections for the next 12 months and financial and support letter from promotor investors, the Company believes that it would be able
to meet its financial requirements and no adjustments would be required in respect of the carrying values of assets/liabilities. Also, the Company has an
existing line of credit and is in touch with banks for enhancing the credit limits. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis.  

The management believes that COVID-19 will severely impact the business in the short-term but it does not anticipate material risk to its business
prospects over the medium to long term. Management has carried out an assessment of the appropriateness of going-concern, impairment of assets and
other related aspects as on the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will continue to monitor the impact on account of changes in future
economic conditions. The outcome of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may differ from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial
results. On account of COVID-19, the management has taken measures to mitigate any adverse impact on the business, which inter alia includes: a)
Reduction in fixed overheads for the period of the lockdown, b) Reduction in salaries at various levels across the organization and c) discussing with
existing lenders for extending existing line of credits.

The disclosure regarding details of Specified bank notes held and transacted during 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made since the 
requirements does not pertain to financials year ended 31 March 2020

There have been no material events since the end of the reporting period which would require disclosures or adjustments to these financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020. As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the COVID-19 crisis is still un-folding, and there will be some
uncertainty remaining around the accurate assessment of the full impact of COVID-19 crisis or any prediction regarding the future course of events that
would arise due to the COVID-19 crisis. 

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The Company has entered into transactions with certain related parties. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company obtained an Accountant's report
from a Chartered Accountant in respect of international transactions with related parties as required by the relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961
and the same has been filed with the income tax authorities. 

For the current year, the company confirms that it maintains documentation as prescribed by the Income-tax Act, 1961 and to prove that the international
transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the standalone financial statements, particularly on the amount of
tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company has export receivables amounting to INR.2.09 lakhs which are due for a period more than 270 days, which is the
maximum permissible period for realization and repatriation of export proceeds into India as per the master circular issued by Reserve Bank of India.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company has not yet realized this amount, however it is in the process of obtaining necessary consent of the
Authorized Dealer for delay in receipts and obtain relevant approvals/condonation for the delayed realization as per the requirements of exchange
regulation.

The management of the Company has carried out a financial review of the COVID-19 impact on the business and financial risks based on information
available in the public domain on the economic outlook, Governments measures and GDP growth estimates. Since cinemas have remained shut and the
Company is in the business of monetizing in-cinema advertising inventory and providing digital cinema services to cinemas, the operations of the Company
have remained shut since the mid of March 2020, severely impacting its revenues and profitability. 

The Company is primarily in the business of digital cinema distribution network and related activities. With outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in India, a
nationwide lockdown was announced since mid of March 2020. The operations of the Company are severely impacted due to economic uncertainty and
disruption created by closure of cinema halls and this necessitates the evaluation of the Company’s ability to continue as a Going concern and meeting its
obligations to the stakeholders, creditors, employees and lenders.



















Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 15,790.37 16,455.77 
Capital work-in-progress 5 247.04 149.20 
Right-of-use assets 6 1,715.10 - 
Intangible assets 7 1,344.27 1,739.55 
Intangible asset under development 8 1,051.59 446.96 
Equity accounted investee 9 - - 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 427.13 514.03 
Loans 11 335.70 336.23 
Other financial assets 12 42.00 42.00 

Deferred tax assets (net) 35 2,256.70 1,815.37 
Income tax assets 13 1,615.54 750.51 
Other assets 14 286.71 288.85 
Total non-current assets 25,112.15 22,538.47 

Current assets
Inventories 15 3,333.32 4,267.78 
Financial assets

Trade receivables 10 6,520.95 9,233.53 
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,106.82 1,420.25 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,831.58 1,231.58 
Loans 11 59.52 83.34 
Other financial assets 12 552.57 895.12 

Other assets 14 2,322.75 2,518.32 
Total current assets 15,727.51 19,649.92 

Total assets 40,839.66 42,188.39 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 994.09 994.09 
Other equity

Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares classified as equity 18 744.36 744.36 
Others (including items of other comprehensive income) 19 16,504.74 19,739.38 

Total equity 18,243.19 21,477.83 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 20 3,817.15 3,054.40 
Lease liabilities 21 1,475.02 - 
Other financial liabilities 22 1,488.95 1,410.39 

Provisions 24 303.21 286.14 
Other liabilities 23 372.47 311.65 
Total non-current liabilities 7,456.80 5,062.58 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Other bank borrowings 20 2,818.01 3,750.34 
Lease liabilities 21 356.18 - 
Trade payables

total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 25 4,292.26 3,547.65 

22 2,638.38 3,311.80 
24 83.14 13.70 
23 4,951.70 5,024.49 

15,139.67 15,647.98 
22,596.47 20,710.56 
40,839.66 42,188.39 
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Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue
Revenue from operations 26 35,996.64 40,678.99 
Other income 27 429.78 114.06 
Total revenue 36,426.42 40,793.05 

Expenses
Purchases of stock in trade 28 4,916.88 8,761.76 
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 29 934.46 (1,093.23) 
Employee benefits expense 30 7,926.25 7,529.29 
Finance costs 31 1,170.34 766.71 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 5,346.75 4,962.10 
Other expenses 33 18,495.23 19,125.34 
Total expenses 38,789.91 40,051.97 

(Loss) / profit before exceptional items, share of net profit of investment accounted for using equity 
method and tax

(2,363.49) 741.08 

Share of net loss of joint venture accounted for using the equity method - (220.66) 

(Loss) / profit before exceptional items and tax (2,363.49) 520.42 

Exceptional items 34 1,179.64 - 

(Loss) / profit before and tax (3,543.13) 520.42 

Income tax
Current tax 17.86 628.50 
Deferred tax benefit (389.08) (342.52) 
Income tax expense 35 (371.22) 285.98 

(3,171.91) 234.44 

(179.43) 29.90 
52.25 (10.45) 

(127.18) 19.45 

(3,299.09) 253.89 

64.45 58.78
- -

64.45 58.78
(3,234.64) 312.67

39
(31.91) 2.36 
(31.91) 1.18 
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(Loss) / profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability/ (assets)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences in translating consolidated financial statements of foreign operations�
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss�
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (INR)
Diluted earnings per share (INR)

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital
Note Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2018 994.09
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 18 - 
Balance as at 31 March 2019 994.09
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 18 - 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 994.09

b. Other equity

Items of OCI Total
Capital 

redemption 
reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Share options 
outstanding 

account

* Equity shares held
by ESOP trust

(including securities 
premium)

General reserve Retained 
earnings

Exchange 
difference on 
translation of 

foreign operations

Remeasurement of 
defined benefit 

liability

Balance at 1 April 2018 744.36 131.19 7,994.89 167.44 (243.07) 14.90 11,379.28 (24.54) - 19,420.09
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018
Profit for the year - - - - - - 234.44 - - 234.44
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - - - - - 58.78 19.45 78.23
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 234.44 58.78 19.45 312.67
Transferred to retained earnings - - - - - 19.45 (19.45) - 
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions to owners
Share-based options - - - 6.04 - - - - - 6.04
Share options exercised - - 0.39 - - - - - - 0.39
Shares issued by trust - - - - 0.19 - - - - 0.19
Balance at 31 March 2019 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 11,633.17 34.24 - 19,739.38

Balance at 1 April 2019 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 11,633.17 34.24 - 19,739.38
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
Loss for the year - - - - - - (3,171.91) - - (3,171.91)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - - - - - - - 64.45 (127.18) (62.73)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - (3,171.91) 64.45 (127.18) (3,234.64)
Transferred to retained earnings - - - - - - (127.18) - 127.18 - 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions to owners
Share-based options - - - - - - - - - 
Share options exercised - - - - - - - - - 
Balance at 31 March 2020 744.36 131.19 7,995.28 173.48 (242.88) 14.90 8,334.08 98.69 - 16,504.74

3

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited 
CIN : U92490TN1986PTC012536

Sri Varshini
Company Secretary

*�During the current year, the Company has changed presentaion for equity shares held by ESOP trust (including securities premium).

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report attached

for B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: ����������

P Jayendra�
Wholetime Director�
DIN : 00320286

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

V Senthil Kumar�
Wholetime Director�
DIN : 00320535

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Place: Chennai�
Date������������

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Compulsory 
convertible 

cummulative 
preference shares

Attributable to the owners of the Group
Reserves and surplus



Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss) / profit before tax (3,543.13) 520.43
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32 5,346.75 4,962.10
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 27 (121.62) (33.32)
Bad debts written off 33 77.50 38.94
Allowance for doubtful debt 33 1,677.65 3.56
Finance costs 31 1,170.34 766.71
Interest income 27 (134.84) (5.32)
Share of loss of equity acounted investees (net of income tax) 9 - 220.66
Equity-settled shared-based payments 30 - 6.04
Straighlined rent - 33.84
Interest income on security deposit paid 27 (21.59) (24.99)
Notional rental income on security deposit received 27 (144.19) (13.56)
Unrealised loss / (gain)  on foreign exchange (net) 91.26 46.97

4,398.13 6,522.06
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 950.41 (1,085.37)
Decrease in trade receivables 1,293.91 (167.28)
Decrease / (increase) in loans and other financial assets 437.14 (218.15)
Decrease / (increase)decrease in other assets 163.67 (810.29)
Increase in trade payable and other financial liabilities 771.44 600.85
Increase in provisions and other liabilities (105.92) 1,108.65

Cash generated from operating activities 7,908.78 5,950.47
Income tax paid (net) (882.04) (991.85)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 7,026.74 4,958.62

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 111.12 2.34
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (4,035.73) (3,633.41)
Expenditure on internally generated intangible assets (604.63) (81.25)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 269.85 186.26
Investments in jointly controlled entity - (100.00)
Investments in bank deposits (net) (600.00) (981.96)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (4,859.39) (4,608.02)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 1,701.72 2,811.96
Repayments of borrowings (1,932.22) (2,882.06)
Payment of transaction cost relating to the borrowings (25.95) -
Repayment of lease liabilities (544.57) -
Interest paid (756.30) (747.10)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1,557.32) (817.20)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 610.03 (466.60)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 169.91 590.44
Net foreign exchange difference 8.87 46.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 788.81 169.91

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Note



Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprises of the following

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2019 

Cash on hand 1.57 1.18
Bank balances 1,105.25 1,419.07
Bank overdrafts (318.01) (1,250.34)
Balances as per statement of cash flows 788.81 169.91

* Also refer note 20 for disclosure on changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Significant accounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of consolidated financial statements

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

P Jayendra V Senthil Kumar Sri Varshini
Wholetime Director Wholetime Director Company Secretary
DIN : 00320286 DIN : 00320535

for B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number : 101248W/ W-100022

Satish Vaidyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: �����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Place: Chennai�
Date: ����������

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited             
CIN: U92490TN1986PTC012536



Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Qube Cinema Inc United states of America Subsidiary 100% 100%
Justickets Private Limited India Jointly controlled 

entity
43.4% 43.4%

2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Items

2.4 Current / Non-current classification

2.5

Judgements

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

2.6

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Background

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited (Formerly Real Image Media Technologies Private Limited) (" the Group") was incorporated on 1 January
1986. the Group is domiciled and incorporated in India with its registered address situated at No. 42, Dr. Ranga Road, Mylapore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu -
600004 . The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service. The Group also provides other services such as content
mastering, managed services and in-theater advertising.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 4 August 2020.

Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group's functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Tthe Group, its subsidiary and its joint controlled entity (jointly referred to as the 'Group' herein under) considered in these consolidated financial
statements are:

Name of the Group Country of Incorporation Type of 
Investment

Proportion of equity investment

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair values of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

the Group recognises transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the note 37 – financial instruments.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

the Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. the Group regularly reviews significant unobservable
inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the Group assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Measurement basis

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e.,
derived from prices).

Use of estimates and judgements

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 40 – lease classification

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March
2020 is included in the following notes:
Note 9 - Impairment test of non-financial assets; key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of expenditure on
internally generated intangible asset.
Note 35 - recognition of deferred tax assets; 
Note 36 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 37 - impairment of financial assets;
Note 6 & 21 -  Measurment of lease liablities and Right of Use Asset
Note 41 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments and share based payments) Fair value
- Net defined benefit assets/(liability) Fair value of plan assets, less present value 

of defined benefit obligations

- Note 37 – fair valuation of financial assets

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.



Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

3

3.1 i. Foreign currency transactions

ii. Foreign operations

3.2 Basis of consolidation 

i. Subsidiary

ii. Equity accounted investees 

iii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation

3.3

i. Recognition and initial measurement

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

- amortised cost;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

Significant accounting policies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an
average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except exchange differences arising on qualifying
cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into
presentation currency as follows;
 - Assets and Liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of balance sheet.
 - Income and Expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
 - All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Subsidiary are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The consolidated financial statements of subsidiary are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. 

The Group’s interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in joint venture. 

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets
and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interests in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and OCI of equity-accounted investees until the date
on which significant influence or joint control cease.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
í���WKH�DVVHW�LV�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�D�EXVLQHVV�PRGHO�ZKRVH�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�KROG�DVVHWV�WR�FROOHFW�FRQWUDFWXDO�FDVK�IORZV��DQG
í the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

the Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 

í the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration
of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.
– how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;
– the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;



Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Equity investments at FVOCI

Financial assets at amortised cost

iii. Derecognition

iv. Offsetting

3.4

3.5

Asset Useful life as per 
Schedule II

Plant and machinery 15 years
Computer Systems 3 - 6 years
Office equipments 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Electrical equipments and installation 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income
in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to statement of profit and loss.
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
KHOGဩIRUဩWUDGLQJ� or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

– how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash 
flows collected; and

– the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

the Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the  transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

the Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

the Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

5 years
3 - 6 years

6 years

5 years

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Management estimate of useful life

3 - 10 Years

6 years
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold improvements are written off over the period of lease or over a period of 4 years whichever is lower.

3.6

Asset
Software (including internally generated software)

3.7

3.8

3.9

Internally generated: Research and Development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

iv. Amortization

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Management estimate of useful life

Employee benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term bonus, if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount 
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Right to use the intellectual property is amortised using unit of production method. (Product of each unit then are transferred to inventory and 
subsequently accounted for under cost of stock-in-trade consumed if the unit is sold or considered as property, plant and equipment if the unit is leased.)

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount in the statement of profit and loss.

the Group’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or groups of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior
periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

i. Recognition and measurement

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation
and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.

Intangible assets

ii. Others

Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Group are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

iii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial
assets.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For all
other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets.

5 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The net
realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.9 Employee benefits (continued)

3.10

3.11

ii. Contract cost

Advertisement income is recognised in the period during which advertisements are displayed.

Revenue from maintenance service fees is recognised on time proportion basis for the period falling in the reporting period.

the Group recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The actual
return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Provident fund

Eligible employees of the Group receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employees and the Group
make monthly contributions to the Government administered provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary.
Amounts collected under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. the Group has no further obligation
to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

iv. Compensated absences

the Group has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using the projected unit
credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.
Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised is the period in which the absences occur.

the Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

the Group does not incur any cost to obtain or fulfill the contracts with customers.

ii. Gratuity

the Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan”) covering the eligible employees of the Group. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of the employment with the Group.

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense
is based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the
vesting date.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from commission and technical service income is recognised in period in which services are rendered.

Virtual print fees (VPF) received from distributors of the films is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using
the projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the Group gratuity scheme.

Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period and none of the contracts include a financing element.

v. Share-based compensation

i. Income from services and sale of goods

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. the Group reviews modification to contract in
conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation or transaction price of an
existing obligation could undergo a change.

Royalty income on licenses of IP is recognised when the customer’s subsequent sales or usage occurs.

Lease rental income on equipment is recognised as mentioned in note 3.11 (ii) below

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of control to buyers and when no uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration that
will be derived from sale of goods.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, if any. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.
the Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers based on nature of services.

Contract assets includes amounts related to Company’s contractual right to consideration for completed performance objectives not yet invoiced.
Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables
(only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.12

ii. Company as a lessor

3.13

3.14

Recognition of interest income or expense

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Income tax

- the amortized cost of the financial liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

i. Company as a lessee

At the inception of the lease the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. the Group recognises lease payments
received under operating leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Group is an intermediate
lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

At inception of the contract, the Group determines whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease arrangement. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: 
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 
(iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

the Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of
the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-ofuse assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-ofuse assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful
life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-ofuse assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed
payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

the Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in consolidated statement of profit and loss.

the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and 
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

the Group has adopted Ind AS 116-Leases effective 1st April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method. the Group has applied the standard to its
leases with the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (1st April, 2019). Accordingly, previous period information has not been
restated. 

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115 Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Leases
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.14 Income tax (continued)

3.15 Borrowing cost

3.16 Earnings per share

3.17 Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There are no such notifications that are
applicable for the Group from 1 April 2020.

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;
- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred
tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for treasury shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period,
using the treasury stock method for options and warrants, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

ii. Deferred tax
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Leasehold 
improvements 

Plant and 
machinery 

Computer
Systems 

Office 
equipments 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

Electrical 
Equipments & 

Installation 

Vehicles Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 251.64 24,098.26 430.26 315.80 526.30 160.87 92.36 25,875.49
Additions - 3,534.13 97.28 6.24 3.19 1.82 - 3,642.66
Disposals - 758.09 3.32 - - - - 761.41
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - (19.23) - - - - - (19.23)
Balance at 31 March 2019 251.64 26,855.07 524.22 322.04 529.49 162.69 92.36 28,737.51

Balance at 1 April 2019 251.64 26,855.07 524.22 322.04 529.49 162.69 92.36 28,737.51
Additions - 3,836.93 67.97 9.67 1.36 - 0.62 3,916.55
Disposals - 478.38 16.46 3.80 - - 0.71 499.35
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - 44.45 - - 0.67 - - 45.12
Balance at 31 March 2020 251.64 30,258.07 575.73 327.91 531.52 162.69 92.27 32,199.83

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2018 106.55 7,657.17 201.31 125.48 174.41 53.24 34.79 8,352.95
Depreciation for the year 72.31 4,166.26 120.54 57.91 87.90 26.99 17.03 4,548.94
Disposals - 596.64 2.80 - - - - 599.44
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - (20.73) - 0.02 - - - (20.71)
Balance at 31 March 2019 178.86 11,206.06 319.05 183.41 262.31 80.23 51.82 12,281.74

Balance at 1 April 2019 178.86 11,206.06 319.05 183.41 262.31 80.23 51.82 12,281.74
Depreciation for the year 57.49 4,107.82 121.12 54.32 84.74 26.86 14.40 4,466.75
Disposals - 331.08 15.73 3.64 - - 0.67 351.12
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - 11.96 - - 0.13 - - 12.09
Balance at 31 March 2020 236.35 14,994.76 424.44 234.09 347.18 107.09 65.55 16,409.46

Carrying amount (net)
As at 31 March 2019 72.78 15,649.01 205.17 138.63 267.18 82.46 40.54 16,455.77
As at 31 March 2020 15.29 15,263.31 151.29 93.82 184.34 55.60 26.72 15,790.37

a) Security
As at 31 March 2020, properties with a carrying amount of INR 3,679.41 lakhs  (31 March 2019: INR 4,055.21 lakhs) are subject to first charge to secure bank loans (see Note 20).

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited
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5 Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Amount 
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 64.71
Additions 3,791.86
Capitalised during the year 3,707.37
Balance at 31 March 2019 149.20

Balance at 1 April 2019 149.20
Additions 3,802.64
Capitalised during the year 3,704.80
Balance at 31 March 2020 247.04

6 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings 
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (refer note i ) 2,005.78
Additions 163.80
Deletions -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 9.61
Balance as at 31 March 2020 2,179.19

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year 462.27
Deletions -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 1.82
Balance as at 31 March 2020 464.09

Net block as at 31 March 2020 1,715.10

7 Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount
Particulars Right to use intellectual 

property right # 
Software * Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at 1 April 2018 450.15 101.04 551.19
Additions - 2,102.73 2,102.73
Disposals - - -
Amortised cost transferred to propery, plant and equipments and inventory 450.15 - 450.15
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 2,203.77 2,203.77

Balance as at 1 April 2019 - 2,203.77 2,203.77
Additions - 21.33 21.33
Disposals - - -
Amortised cost transferred to propery, plant and equipments and inventory - - -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - 2.15 2.15
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 2,227.25 2,227.25

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
Balance as at 1 April 2018 51.06 51.06
Amortisation for the year - 413.16 413.16
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - 464.22 464.22

Balance as at 1 April 2019 464.22 464.22
Amortisation for the year - 417.74 417.74
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations - 1.02 1.02
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 882.98 882.98

Carrying  amount (net)
As at 31 March 2019 - 1,739.55 1,739.55
As at 31 March 2020 - 1,344.27 1,344.27

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

# Company had purchased the license to develop Qube Xi Integrated media block units to equip the projectors. The license cost has been amortised based on the
units developed in each year. License were fully utilised to develop integrated units during the previous financial year.

* Software consists of capitalised development cost being an internally generated intangible asset.

i) the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 effective 01 April 2019, using modified retrospective method. Accordingly previous period information has not been 
restated.

This has resulted in recognising a right-of-use asset at an amount equal to lease liability amounting to INR 1,994.80 lakhs, adjusted by the amount of prepaid
lease payments amounting to INR 81.90 lakhs and accrued lease payments amounting to INR 102.10 as at 31 March 2019.

In the statement of profit and loss for the current year, operating lease expenses which were recognised as other expenses in previous periods is now recognised
as depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. The adoption of this standard did not have any
significant impact on the profit for the year and earnings per share. 

ii)  the Group leases comprise of only buildings. the Group entered into  agreements with owners of the building for taking office premises on lease.
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8 Intangible asset under development

Particulars Amount 
Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance at 1 April 2018 2,102.73
Additions 446.96
Capitalised during the year 2,102.73
Balance at 31 March 2019 446.96

Balance at 1 April 2019 446.96
Additions 604.63
Capitalised during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,051.59

As at As at
9 Equity accounted investee 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Interest in joint venture (Refer note below) - -

- -

Summarised financial information for joint venture As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Non-current assets                       373.48                   675.13 
Current assets (including cash and cash equivalents – 31 March 2020: INR
214.57 lakhs 31 March 2019: INR 224.01 lakhs )

                      426.60                   437.09 

Non-current liabilities                                -                           -
Current liabilities                   (1,650.33)               (1,467.66)

                     (850.25)                  (355.44)

Reconciliation to Carrying amounts
Operating net assets                      (355.44)                     94.91 
Capital raised                                -                   100.00 
Loss for the year                      (494.81)                  (550.35)
Other comprehensive income                                -                           -
Closing net assets                      (850.25)                  (355.44)

Group's share in % 43.44% 43.44%
Group's share in INR                                -                           -
Goodwill                                -                           -
Carrying amount                                -                           -

Summarised statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Revenue                       669.57                   800.83 
Employee benefit expenses                        (70.20)                    (62.89)
Depreciation and amortisation                      (139.06)                  (163.27)
Finance costs                        (24.05)                      (8.24)
Other expenses                      (931.07)               (1,116.78)
Profit/(Loss)                      (494.81)                  (550.35)
Other comprehensive income                                -                           -
Total comprehensive income                      (494.81)                  (550.35)
Group’s share of loss (restricted to investment value)                                -                  (220.66)
Group’s share of OCI                                -                           -
Group’s share of total comprehensive income                               -                  (220.66)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

a) the Group is in the process of developing a web-based platform (an advertising marketplace) that is intended for the Group's use. As at 31 March 2020 cost
incurred amounts to INR 294.63 lakhs. 

b) the Group is in the process of developing a next-gen digital cinema server that are seen as the future of theatrical exhibition. As at 31 March 2020 cost
incurred amounts to INR 756.96 lakhs.

Justickets Private Limited (Justickets) is a joint arrangement in which the Group has joint control and a 43.44% (31 March 2019 - 43.44%) ownership interest. 
Justickets is engaged in providing platform for online movie ticketing and it is not publicly listed.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

10 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 6,948.08 9,747.56
Doubtful 2,430.17 1,216.24

9,378.25 10,963.80
Allowance for doubtful debt (2,430.17) (1,216.24)

Net trade receivables 6,948.08 9,747.56

Non-current 427.13 514.03
Current 6,520.95 9,233.53

6,948.08 9,747.56
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties 710.31 579.20
Allowance for doubtful debt # (710.31) -

- 579.20

11 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 381.60 382.96
Loans to employees 13.62 16.61
Loans to related parties 20.00 20.00

415.22 419.57

Loss allowance * (20.00) -

Net loans 395.22 419.57

Non-current 335.70 336.23
Current 59.52 83.34

395.22 419.57

12 Other financial assets

Bank deposits under lien 42.00 42.00
Contractually reimbursable expenses 469.33 322.14
Unbilled revenue 514.96 557.36
Interest accrued on bank deposits 37.61 13.89
Interest accrued on loan to related parties 1.73 1.73

1,065.63 937.12

Loss allowance * (471.06) -

Net other financial assets 594.57 937.12

Non-current 42.00 42.00
Current 552.57 895.12

594.57 937.12

13 Income tax assets 

Advance tax recoverable (net of provision) 1,615.54 750.51
1,615.54 750.51

14 Other assets

Advances to suppliers 376.19 487.76
Prepaid expenses 599.08 885.83
Excess of planned assets towards gratuity obligations - 30.93
Balance with government authorities 1,634.19 1,402.65

2,609.46 2,807.17

Non-current 286.71 288.85
Current 2,322.75 2,518.32

2,609.46 2,807.17

* The Company, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from related party (Justickets Private Limited and Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited) has 
provided for a loss allowance against these dues. 

The Group has performed an impairment analysis on its trade receivables as a result of the impact of COVID-19. Management believes that the provision
recorded is sufficient and adequate and the carrying amount of receivables reflects its recoverable value. the Group’s exposure to credit and loss allowances
related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 35.

# The Group, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from the related party (Justickets Private Limited) has provided for the entire receivables as bad
and doubtful debts. 

* The Company, basis its evaluation of recoverability of the dues from the related party (Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited) has provided for the entire 
receivables as bad and doubtful debts. 
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15 Inventories

Stock in trade 3,333.32 4,267.78
3,333.32 4,267.78

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1.57 1.18
Bank balances 1,105.25 1,419.07

1,106.82 1,420.25

17 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits* 1,831.58 1,231.58
1,831.58 1,231.58

* Of the above, Bank deposits under lien 231.58 231.58

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

Due to outbreak of COVID-19, Management has performed impairment assessment of all inventory as at 31 March 2020. Management believes that the
provision recorded is sufficient and adequate and the carrying amount of inventory reflects its recoverable value.
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As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

18 Equity share capital

Authorised
20,000,000 (31 March 2019: 20,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each. 2,000.00 2,000.00
7,500,000 (31 March 2019 : 7,500,000) Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each. 750.00 750.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
9,940,858 (31 March 2019: 9,940,858) equity shares of INR 10 994.09 994.09

7,443,611 (31 March 2019: 7,443,611) Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares of INR 10 each. 744.36 744.36

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Number of shares Amount 1XPEHU�RI� VKDUHV Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement and at the end of the year 9,940,858 994.09 9,940,858 994.09

At the commencement and at the end of the year 7,443,611 744.36 7,443,611 744.36

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares

c) Employee stock options

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

Number of shares % of equity shares Number of 
shares

% of equity 
shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid, held by
Real Image LLP 2,462,225 25% 2,462,225 25%
Street Edge Capital L.P.USA 1,597,302 16% 1,597,302 16%
RIMT Employees Trust 808,308 8% 808,308 8%
Nomura Asia Investment (MB) Pte Ltd 625,747 6% 625,747 6%
V. Senthil Kumar 553,100 6% 553,100 6%
Canara Bank 531,567 5% 531,567 5%
Meena Veerappan 506,800 5% 506,800 5%

7,085,049 71% 7,085,049 71%
Compulsory convertible cummulative preference shares

Nomura Asia Investment (MB) Pte Ltd - Series C 3,095,160 42% 3,095,160 42%
Intel (Capital) Mauritius Limited - Series A and Series C 2,768,569 37% 2,768,569 37%
CSI BD (Mauritius) - Series B 789,941 11% 789,941 11%
Payone Enterprises Pvt. Ltd - Series B 789,941 11% 789,941 11%

7,443,611 100% 7,443,611 100%

As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

- - - - -

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

As at 31 March 2020

the Group has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Group’s residual assets on winding up. 
The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time, subject to preferential right of preference shareholders to payment of dividend. The
voting rights of an equity shareholder  are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2019

the Group has only one class of compulsorily convertible cumulative preference shares having a par value of INR.10. The compulsorily convertible preference shares
were convertible based on the terms and conditions contained in the shareholders agreement dated 24 May 2006, 29 June 2007 and 18 July 2008, at any time after the
initial investment closing date (as defined in the agreement) but before 31 March 2013. Each preference share will be converted into a fixed no.of equity shares. As per
the amendment agreement between the shareholders dated 16 January 2013, the compulsorily convertible preference shares are convertible at any time after the initial
investment closing date but before 31 March 2016. The agreement was amended in May 2016 by extending the date of conversion to 31 March 2018. In March 2018,
the agreement was again amended by extending the date of conversion to 31 March 2019. During the previous year, at the board meeting held on 28 March 2019, the
board of directors have decided to extend the date of conversion by another 2 year, i.e., 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over equity shareholders. Where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of cumulative
preference shares, the entitlement for that year lapses. The preference shares holder shall have one vote for each Equity Share into which the Preferred Shares held by
him of record could be converted (as provided in these articles), on every resolution, without regard to whether the vote thereon is conducted by a show of hands, by
written ballot or by any other means, and would be entitled to notice of and the right to vote together with the equity shares on all matters submitted to a vote of the
Group's shareholder. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity shareholders to be repaid to the extent of capital paid-up
and dividend in arrears on such shares.

Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are described in Note 40 regarding share-based payments.

Compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares

On winding up of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Group, remaining after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
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19 Other equity

Capital redemption reserve

Securities premium

Share options outstanding account

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

20 Borrowings

Non-current borrowings
Term loans

Secured loans from bank (refer note (i) & (ii) below) 2,905.65 2,505.70
Unsecured loans from others 911.50 548.69

Total non-current borrowings 3,817.15 3,054.40

Current borrowings
Bank overdraft 2,818.01 3,750.34
Current portion of term loans (refer note (i) & (ii) below) 969.60 1,912.38

3,787.61 5,662.72

Less: Amount included under ‘Other financial liabilities’ (969.60) (1,912.38)
2,818.01 3,750.34

A. Terms and repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings are as follows:

Particulars Year of maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 31-Mar-20 - 249.36
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 03-Sep-19 - 235.45
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 04-Nov-20 168.52 457.43
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 25-Oct-22 857.25 1,189.09
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 04-Jul-23 1,479.94 1,923.87
Secured Loan from HDFC Bank Limited INR 07-Aug-24 1,173.70 -
Unsecured Loan from Belfius Bank USD 25-May-20 598.05 911.58
Unsecured Loan from Belfius Bank USD 6 Month LIBOR + 1.6% 30-Jun-26 509.29 -
Cash credit INR On demand 2,818.01 3,750.34

              7,604.76               8,717.12 

B. Secured bank loans

C. Reconciliation of movement of liabilities
to cash flows arising from financing

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2019 

Particulars
Non-current borrowings               3,817.15               3,054.40 
Current borrowings                  969.60               1,912.38 
Bank overdrafts               2,818.01               3,750.34 

              7,604.76               8,717.11 

Particulars  Bank overdraft  Term loans  Total 
Balance as at 1 April 2018               3,213.70               5,476.46               8,690.16 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings                          -               2,811.96               2,811.96 
Repayment of borrowings                          - (3,382.07)             (3,382.07)
Change in bank overdraft and working capital
loan

                 536.63                          -                  536.63 

Non-cash changes
- Impact of effective interest amortisation                          -                      5.78                      5.78 
- Unrealised exchange loss on restatement of borrowings                          -                    54.65                    54.65 

Balance as at 31 March 2019               3,750.33               4,966.78               8,717.11 
Proceeds from loans and borrowings                          -               1,701.72               1,701.72 
Repayment of borrowings                          -             (1,958.17)             (1,958.17)
Change in bank overdraft and working capital
loan

               (932.32)
-

               (932.32)

Non-cash changes                          -                          -                          -
- Impact of effective interest amortisation                          -                    10.72                    10.72 
- Unrealised exchange loss on restatement of borrowings - 65.70                    65.70 

Balance as at 31 March 2020               2,818.01               4,786.75 7,604.76

The secured term loans from banks are secured by exclusive charge on fixed assets including plant and equipment created out of term loans with a carrying
amount of INR 3,679.41 lakhs (31 March 2019 : 4,055.20 lakhs)

Carrying Amount as at

Nominal interest rate

3 year MCLR  + 2.10% 
3 year MCLR  + 2.10%
3 year MCLR + 1.80% 
1 year MCLR + 1.65%
1 year MCLR + 1.20%
1 year MCLR + 1.80%
6 Month LIBOR + 1.7%

Currency

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Capital Redemption reserve was created on account of buy back of entire shares held by Kotak Mahindra Venture Capital Fund in March 2005 (596,000
shares) and June 2005 (715,904 shares).

1 year MCLR

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

the Group has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Group. Refer to Note 40 for further
details on these plans.
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20 Borrowings (continued)

(ii) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities with HDFC Bank, the Company is required to comply with the following financial covenants :
- the adjusted tangible net worth must be more than 19,000 lakhs
- the ratio of total outstanding liabilities to adjusted tangible net worth must be less than 1.5
- the debt service coverage ratio must be more than 2

21 Lease liabilities

Particulars Buildings 
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (refer note 6 (i)) 2,025.98
Additions 151.21
Deletions -
Finance cost accrued during the period 190.12
Discharge of lease liabilities 544.56
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 8.45
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,831.20

Non-current             1,475.02 
Current                356.18 

22 Other financial Liabilities

Deposits received 3,062.61 2,732.35
Current maturities of long term borrowings 969.60 1,912.38
Interest accrued on borrowings 95.12 77.46

4,127.33 4,722.19

Non-current 1,488.95 1,410.39
Current 2,638.38 3,311.80

the Group's exposure to liquidity and currency risks related to the above financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 35.

23 Other liabilities

Billing in advance of work completed 598.36 486.49
Advance payments from customers 3,249.77 3,084.47
Employees benefits payable 802.12 622.29
Statutory dues payables 274.42 705.86
Deferred rent - 103.61
Deferred revenue 399.50 333.42

5,324.17 5,336.14

Non-current 372.47 311.65
Current 4,951.70 5,024.49

24 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (see note 33)
Liability for gratuity 71.02 - 55.02 -
Liability for compensated absences 220.17 178.60 28.12 13.70
Total provision for employee benefits 291.19 178.60 83.14 13.70

Other provisions
Provision for tax 12.02                107.54 - -
Total other provisions 12.02 107.54 - -

Total provisions 303.21 286.14 83.14 13.70

25 Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties
     total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
     total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,292.26 3,547.65

4,292.26 3,547.65
Of the above, trade payables from related parties are as below:

Total trade payables from related parties #REF! #REF!

Tthe Group's exposure to liquidity and currency risks related to the above trade payables are disclosed in Note 34.

Non-current Current

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

(i)   The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has permitted banks and financial institutions to offer a moratorium of six months on payment of instalments of all 
term loans falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 August 2020. This includes all Term Loans and Cash Credit/Overdraft facilities. The Company had 
considered to avail the loan moratorium and all installments due from 1 March  2020 to 31 August 2020 stand deferred. The RBI has further clarified that 
deferment of loan payments shall not be considered as default by lenders. 

As at 31 March 2020, the Company has failed to comply with adjusted tangible net woth and debt service coverage ratio as per above crtieria. However, the
Company has obtained waiver of the breah of above covenants from banks.

 As at 
31 March 2019 

 As at 
31 March 2020 
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

26 Revenue from operations

Sale of services 
Advertisement income 9,750.68 13,086.25
Virtual print fees 13,768.07 13,017.46
Service income 2,485.97 2,041.88
Lease rental income 1,764.62 1,505.37
Other revenue 883.95 1,192.56

28,653.29 30,843.52

Sale of products
Sale of digital cinema equipments 7,343.35 9,835.47

Total revenue from operations 35,996.64 40,678.99

27 Other income

Interest income on
Cash and cash equivalents 134.84 5.32
Security deposit paid 21.59 24.99

Insurance claim received 7.54 36.87
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 121.62 33.32
Notional rental income on security deposit received 144.19 13.56

429.78 114.06

28 Purchases of stock in trade

Cost of stock in trade consumed 5,851.34 7,668.53
Less: Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 4,267.78 3,174.55
Add: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 3,333.32 4,267.78
Purchases during the year 4,916.88 8,761.76

29 Changes in inventories of stock in trade 

Opening 
Inventory

Closing 
Inventory

 Increase in 
inventory

Opening 
Inventory

Closing 
Inventory

 Decrease in 
inventory

Stock in trade             4,267.78               3,333.32                     934.46               3,174.55               4,267.78              (1,093.23)
4,267.78 3,333.32 934.46 3,174.55 4,267.78 (1,093.23)

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

30 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 7,087.17 6,816.46
Contribution to provident and other funds 334.55 486.14
Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 53.30 (147.74)
Expenses related to compensated absences 83.06 9.30
Equity-settled shared-based payments - 6.04
Staff welfare expenses 368.17 359.09

7,926.25 7,529.29

31 Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 980.22 766.71
Interest expenses on lease liability 190.12 -

1,170.34 766.71

32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,466.74 4,548.94
Amortisation of intangible assets 417.74 413.16
Depreciation expenses (ROU assets) 462.27 -

5,346.75 4,962.10

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

33 Other expenses
Advertisement revenue share 5,027.98 5,877.00
Virtual print fee revenue share 4,006.62 3,762.73
Freight and handling charges 1,782.71 1,422.56
Digitising, censor, theatre advertisement and VSAT charges 1,293.25 1,397.27
Consumption of packing material and spares 382.42 446.44
Power and fuel 244.94 243.80
Rent 98.69 639.00

   - Buildings - -
906.10 943.69

   - Others 674.31 528.41
Service charges 282.82 131.87
Insurance 120.55 264.81
Rates and taxes 91.86 115.66
Communication 405.13 491.68
Traveling and conveyance 421.68 576.31
Printing and stationery 28.13 34.94
Software expenses 73.57 128.22
Sales discount and commission 210.16 188.06
Advertisement and business promotion 339.77 377.47
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (Refer Note (ii) below) 25.87 76.40
Legal and professional fees (Refer Note (i) below) 1,076.59 933.42
Bad debts written off 77.50 38.94
Allowance for doubtful debt 498.01 3.56
Bank charges 64.49 81.76
Net loss on foreign currency transactions 278.77 314.04
Miscellaneous expenses 83.31 107.30

18,495.23 19,125.34

(i) Payment to auditors (excluding tax)
As auditor

Statutory audit 19.00 19.00
Reimbursement of expenses 1.97 1.93

20.97 20.93

(ii) Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
(a) Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 47.81 75.86
(b) Amount spent during the year ( in cash)
      (i) Construction / acquisition of any assets -
      (ii) On purposes other than (i) above 25.00 76.40

34 Exceptional items

Impairment of receivables from Justickets Pvt.Ltd ( Jointly controlled entity) (refer note 10 & 12) 1,179.64 -
1,179.64 -

Repairs and maintenance

<This space has been intentionally left blank>

   - Plant & machinery
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 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

35 Income tax

A. Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax
Current period (a) 17.86 628.50

Deferred tax (b)
Attributable to -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (389.08) (342.52)

Tax expense for current period (a)+(b) (371.22) 285.98

B. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Before tax Tax (expense) 
benefit

Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) 
benefit

Net of tax

(179.43) 52.25 (127.18) 29.90 (10.45) 19.45

(179.43) 52.25 (127.18) 29.90 (10.45) 19.45

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax (2,363.49) 741.08

Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 29.120% (688.25) 34.944% 258.96
Effect of non-deductible expenses -13.41% 317.03 3.65% 27.02

Effective tax rate 15.706% (371.22) 38.590% 285.98

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

Property, plant and equipment 1,262.00 1,257.66 - - 1,262.00 1,257.66
Provisions:

Employee benefit provisions 141.14 123.77 - - 141.14 123.77
Trade receivables 818.32 423.27 - - 818.32 423.27

ROU asset and lease liability 51.84 51.84
Other items - 10.67 (16.60) - (16.60) 10.67
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 2,273.30 1,815.37 (16.60) - 2,256.70 1,815.37

(16.60) - 16.60 - - -

2,256.70 1,815.37 - - 2,256.70 1,815.37

Movement in temporary differences

Balance as at 
1 April 2018

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance as at 
31 March 2019

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance as at 
31 March 2020

877.33 380.33 - 1,257.66 4.34 - 1,262.00

Provisions: -
170.62 (36.40) (10.45) 123.77 (34.88) 52.25 141.14
423.27 - - 423.27 395.05 - 818.32

ROU asset and lease liabil - - - - 51.84 - 51.84
Borrowings 12.08 (1.41) - 10.67 (27.27) - (16.60)

1,483.30 342.52 (10.45) 1,815.37 389.08 52.25 2,256.70

Trade receivables
Employee benefit 

Property, plant and 
equipment

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Offsetting of deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Year ended 31 March 2019Year ended 31 March 2020

D. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) Deferred tax (liabilities)Deferred tax assets

Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019

Remeasurement of defined benefit 
liability (assets)
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36 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

- (30.93)
Total Employee benefit asset (current) - (30.93)
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity plan 126.04 -
Liability for compensated absences 248.29 192.30
Total employee benefit liabilities 374.33 192.30

Non-current 291.19 178.60
Current 83.14 13.70

374.33 192.30
For details about the related employee benefit expenses, see Note 29.

the Group operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans.

A. Funding

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

518.42                      494.03 
Benefits paid (117.41)                      (47.95)
Current service cost 58.60                        60.41 
Interest cost 35.40                        36.24 
Past service cost -                              -   
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income

Changes in demographic assumptions -                              -   
Changes in financial assumptions 84.59                          0.68 
Experience adjustments 97.62                      (24.99)

                     677.22                      518.42 

Reconciliation of  the present value of plan assets
                     549.35                      400.82 
                       75.75                      155.83 

Benefits paid                    (117.41)                      (47.95)
Interest income                        40.70                        35.06 
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income                          2.78                          5.59 

                     551.18                      549.35 

                     126.04                      (30.93)

Plan is fully funded by the Group. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s actuarial measurement framework set out in the funding
policies of the plan. The funding of plan is based on a separate actuarial valuation for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the
assumptions set out in (E). Employees do not contribute to the plan.

B. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Contributions paid into the plan

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset)

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

the Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at
least five years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six
months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

Net defined benefit liability / (asset) - Gratuity plan
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36 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)
 Year ended

31 March 2020 
 Year ended

31 March 2019 

Current service cost                        58.60                        60.41 
Interest cost                        35.40                        36.24 
Interest income                      (40.70)                      (35.06)
Past service cost                              -                                -   

                       53.30                        61.59 

ii. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income 
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation                      182.21                      (24.31)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income                        (2.78)                        (5.59)

                     179.43                      (29.90)
D. Plan assets
Plan assets were primarily invested in LIC fund.

i. Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
 Year ended

31 March 2020 
 Year ended

31 March 2019 
Discount rate 6.67% 7.70%
Future salary growth 5% 5.00%
Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00%

ii. Sensitivity analysis

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
634.04 724.95 485.88 554.28
722.03 636.08 552.56 487.13
678.11 676.35 519.56 517.29
677.51 676.96 518.76 518.10

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

C. i. Expense recognised in profit or loss 

Discount rate (0.5% movement)
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)
Attrition rate (5% movement)
Mortality  (5% movement)

Year ended  31 March 2020 Year ended  31 March 2019

E. Defined benefit obligations
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2020

Note Other financial assets -
amortised cost

Other financial 
liabilities

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)

Loans 11 395.22 - 395.22
Trade receivables 10 6,948.08 - 6,948.08
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,106.82 - 1,106.82
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,831.58 - 1,831.58
Other financial assets 12 594.57 - 594.57

10,876.27 - 10,876.27
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)
Borrowings 20 - 6,635.16 6,635.16
Trade payables 25 - 4,292.26 4,292.26
Other financial liabilities 22 - 4,127.33 4,127.33

- 15,054.75 15,054.75

As at 31 March 2019

Note Other financial assets -
amortised cost

Other financial 
liabilities

Total carrying 
amount

Financial assets not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)

Loans 11 419.57                                - 419.57
Trade receivables 10 9,747.56                                - 9,747.56
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,420.25                                - 1,420.25
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 1,231.58                                - 1,231.58
Other financial assets 12 937.12 937.12

13,756.08                                -                  13,756.08 
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value (refer note 1 below)
Borrowings 20 - 6,804.74 6,804.74
Trade payables 25 - 3,547.65 3,547.65
Other financial liabilities 22 - 4,722.19 4,722.19

- 15,074.57 15,074.57

Note 1: the Group has not disclosed fair values of financial instruments such as investments, loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities, since their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
values.

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying amount

Carrying amount



Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management

i. Risk management framework

ii. Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Trade receivables 6,948.08 9,747.56
Loans 395.22 419.57
Cash and cash equivalents 1,106.82 1,420.25
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,831.58 1,231.58
Other financial assets 594.57 937.12

10,876.27 13,756.08

Trade receivables

the Group's exposure to  credit risk for trade receivables by relationship is as follows:
As at 

31 March 2020
As at 

31 March 2019
Third party customers 6,948.08 9,168.36
Related parties - 579.20

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

India 6,541.38 9,621.44
Rest of the world 406.70 126.12

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

the Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group's activities. the Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

the Company's board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Group's trade receivables, certain loans and advances and other financial assets.

Trade receivables are amount billed to customers for the sale of goods and services, and represent the maximum exposure to credit risk of those financial
assets , exclusive of the allowance for doubtful debts. Normal credit terms are in line with Industry practice.

the Group does not require collateral or other security from customers; however credit evaluations are performed prior to the initial granting of credit when
warranted and periodically thereafter. Based on policy, the Group records a reserve for estimated uncollectible amounts, which management believes
reduce credit risk. Management assesses the adequacy of reserve quarterly, taking into account historical experience, current collection trend, the age of the
receivables and, when warranted and available, the financial condition of specific counterparties. The Group follows "simplified approach" for recognition
of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

the Group's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows:

the Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
a) credit risk
b) liquidity risk and
c) market risk.

the Group’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The board of
directors along with the top management are responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies.

Carrying amount
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

ii. Credit risk (continued)

The following tables provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables:

As at 31 March 2020
Gross carrying 
amount

Weighted-
average loss rate

Loss allowance

1-240 days past due 5,759.43 2.06% 118.53
241-365 days past due 735.93 49.84% 366.81
More than 365 days past due 2,882.89 67.46% 1,944.83

9,378.25 2,430.17

As at 31 March 2019
Gross carrying 

amount
Weighted-

average loss rate Loss allowance

1-240 days past due 7,930.98 0.06% 4.96
241-365 days past due 622.36 32.08% 199.68
More than 365 days past due 2,410.46 41.97% 1,011.60

10,963.80 1,216.24

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows: 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances at 1 April 1,216.24 1,212.63
Provision for the year 1,206.57 3.56
Add: Effect of Exchange rate translation 7.36 0.05
Balance at 31 March                2,430.17                 1,216.24 

Cash and bank balances (includes amounts classified under bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents)

Other financial assets
a. Security deposits

b. Loan to employees

the Group holds cash and bank balances of INR 2,938.40 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: INR 2,651.83 lakhs). The credit worthiness of such banks
and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

These fixed deposits are held with credit worthy banks and financial institutions. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk.

Total

Total

the Group uses Expected Credit Loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. the Group has used simplified approach for its trade receivables and
other receivables to compute loss allowance.

This balance is primarily constituted by deposit given in relation to leasehold premises occupied by the Group for carrying out its operations. the Group
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties.

d. Unbilled revenue
This balance is primarily constituted by services but not billed yet. the Group does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties as
the amounts are recoverable. 

e. Interest accrued on bank deposit

This balance is constituted by loans given to the employees. the Group does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties as the
amounts are recoverable by salary deductions.

c. Contractally reimburable expenses
This balance is primarily constituted by reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of Justickets Private Limited. the Group does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counter-parties as the amounts are recoverable. 
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

iii. Liquidity risks

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying 
amount

Total 6 months 
or less

6-12 
months

1-2 
years

More than 
2 years

Borrowings 6,635.16 6,635.16 - 2,818.01 1470.16 2346.99
Trade payables 4,292.26 4,292.26 4,292.26 - - -
Lease liabilities 1,831.20 1,831.20 207.48 181.46 372.99 1069.27
Other financial liabilities 4,127.33 4,117.15 2,508.62 129.58 560.93 918.02

16,885.95 16,875.77 7,008.36 3,129.05 2,404.08 4,334.28

As at 31 March 2019
Carrying 
amount

Total 6 months 
or less

6-12 
months

1-2 
years

More than 
2 years

Borrowings                6,804.74 8,096.56 4,454.88 - 1,561.29 2,080.39
Trade payables                3,547.65 3,547.65 3,547.65 - - -
Other financial liabilities                4,722.19 5,134.08 2,410.29 963.21 344.41 1,416.18

15,074.58 16,778.29 10,412.82 963.21 1,905.70 3,496.57

iv. Market risks

Currency risk

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets/ (liabilities) USD EURO GBP Total
Trade receivables 406.70 - - 406.70
Cash and cash equivalents 106.18 - - 106.18
Borrowings (including interest accured) (1,122.83) - - (1,122.83)
Trade payables (684.47) (89.95) (23.49) (797.91)
Net assets / (liabilities) (1,294.42) (89.95) (23.49) (1,407.86)

As at 31 March 2019

Financial assets/ (liabilities) USD EURO EURO Total
Trade receivables 126.12 - - 126.12
Cash and cash equivalents 26.74 - - 26.74
Borrowings (including interest accured) (935.33) - - (935.33)
Trade payables (978.79) (48.37) (21.15) (1,048.31)
Net assets / (liabilities) (1,761.26) (48.37) (21.15) (1,830.78)

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
contractual interest payments.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The
value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market
risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables.
the Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk (currency risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its investments.
Thus the Group’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign
currencies.

The summary quantitative data about the Group's exposure to currency risk as reported to the management is as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. the Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation. 

the Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (excluding
trade payables).

Contractual cash flows
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37 Financial instruments - Fair value and risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
As at 31 March 2020
USD (1% movement) (12.94) 12.94 (9.58) 9.58
EURO (1% movement) (0.90) 0.90 (0.67) 0.67

As at 31 March 2019
USD (1% movement) (17.61) 17.61 (11.52) 11.52
EURO (1% movement) (0.48) 0.48 (0.32) 0.32

c. Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Fixed rate borrowings - -
Variable rate borrowings 7,639.79 8,736.90

7,639.79 8,736.90
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
As at 31 March 2020
Variable rate instrument (76.40) 76.40 (56.53) 56.53
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (76.40) 76.40 (56.53) 56.53

As at 31 March 2019
Variable rate instrument (87.37) 87.37 (57.13) 57.13
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (87.37) 87.37 (57.13) 57.13

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

Equity, net of tax

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR against US dollar and EURO at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

the Group has only variable rate instruments i.e. term loan and supplier credit.

Profit / (loss)

A reasonable possible change of 100 basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Profit / (loss)

Equity, net of tax
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38 Capital management

As at 
31 March 2020

As at 
31 March 2019

Total liabilities                 7,604.76                8,717.12 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents               (1,105.25)               (1,419.07)
Adjusted net debt 6,499.51 7,298.05
Total equity 18,243.19 21,477.83
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.36 0.34

39 Earnings per share (EPS)

See accounting policy in note 3.15

a) Basic earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders (3,171.91) 234.44
Weighted average number of equity shares 9,940,858 9,940,858
Basic earnings per share (In INR) (31.91) 2.36

b) Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders (3,171.91) 234.44

Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted)
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic) 9,940,858 9,940,858
Effect of conversion of compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares * - 9,546,407
Effect of exercise of share options  * - 322,888
Weighted average number of equity shares (diluted) for the year 9,940,858 19,810,153

Diluted earnings per share (In INR) (31.91) 1.18

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. It sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic
investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity and other borrowings. the Group’s policy is to use short-term and long-term
borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. the Group monitors capital using a ratio of  net debt to equity. For this purpose, net debt is defined as 
total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings, , less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The calculations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of basic earnings per 
share calculation are as follows:

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding, after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares as follows:

the Group's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00. the Group's net debt to equity ratio  is as follows. the Group is taking measures to bring debt equity ratio 
to below 1.00.

< This space has been intentionally left blank>

* The Group has compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares and share options which could potentially dilute basis earnings per share in the 
future, but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are antidilutive for the FY 2019-20.
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40 Operating leases

(i) As Lessor

(ii) As Lessee

i. Future minimum lease payments

At 31 March 2020, the future minimum lease payments to be made under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at 
31 March 2020

Payable in less than one year 48.65
Payable between one and five years -
Payable after more than five years -

ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
As at 

31 March 2020
Lease expense – minimum lease payments 98.69

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(to the extent not provided for)

As at As at
Contingent liabilities 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Counter Guarantees issued to banks 45.97                     52.12 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

Excise duty, service tax and customs duty,VAT matters (see Note (i) and (ii) below) 827.58 844.74
Other matters

93.81 93.81

Note:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 281.72 34.24

Bonus (see Note (iii))

the Group has leased out digital cinema equipment to theaters on operating lease arrangement. The lease term is generally for 5 to 10 years. the Group as
well as the theaters have an option of terminating this lease arrangement any time during the tenure of the lease as per the provisions of the lease
agreement. Based on the management assumptions there is a reasonable certainty that the lease will continue for the lease term of 5 to 10 years.

Lease income recognised from the above lease arrangement (included under sale of services under Note 26 - INR 1,764.62 lakhs (Previous year - INR
1,505.37 lakhs)

Lease commitments are the future cash out flows from the lease contracts which are not recorded in the measurement of lease liabilities. These include
potential future payments related to short-term leases as the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(iii) Bonus provision financial year 2014-15 pursuant to retrospective amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act" for which an interim stay has been granted
by the High Court of Madras.

(iv) Supreme Court vide their judgement dated 28 February 2019 clarified that Provident fund deduction is to be made on basic salary and on other salary
components which are universally made available to all employees. the Group, based on external advice, believes that there are interpretative challenges
and significant uncertainties surrounding the determination of liability including period of assessment, application for present and past employees, liability
towards employees' contribution and assessment of interest and penalties. The amount of obligation, therefore, cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability for past periods and hence, disclosed as contingent liability.

(i) the Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in its consolidated financial statements. the Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial position.

(i) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the 
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending with various forums/authorities.
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42 Related parties

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
Subsidiary Company Qube Cinema Inc, USA
Jointly controlled entity Justickets Private Limited
Enterprises having Significant Influence

M/s Nomura Asia Investment (MB)  Pte. Ltd , Singapore
Key Management Personnel Mr. V. Senthil Kumar

Mr. P.Jayendra
Mr. Arvind Ranganathan (until May 31, 2019)

Relative of Key Management Personnel Mr.Arun Veerappan
Mrs. Vee. Vijayalakshmi
Mr. V. Sivakumar
Mrs. Meena Veerappan
Mrs. Sudha Panchapakesan
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind

Entities in which Relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

B. Transaction with key managerial personnel (KMP)

 For the year ended
31 March 2020 

 For the year ended
31 March 2019 

Short term employee benefits 789.86 624.31
Post-employment defined benefits * *
Compensated absences * *
Total 789.86 624.31

C. Related party transactions

 For the year ended
31 March 2020 

 For the year ended
31 March 2019 

Sale of services
Jointly controlled entity

Justickets Private Limited 116.46 191.41
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Digital Film Technologies Private Limited 217.33 144.70
333.79 336.11

Vehicle hire charges
Key Management Personnel
Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 10.80 10.80
Mr. P.Jayendra 10.80 10.80
Mrs. Vee. Vijayalakshmi 3.60 3.60
Mrs. Meena Veerappan 7.80 7.80
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind 1.00 6.00

34.00 39.00

Nature of transactions

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Digital Film Technologies Private. Limited., in which Mrs. Sudha
Panchapakesan wife of Director Mr. P.Jayendra and Mrs. Vandana
Gopikumar wife of Director Mr.V. Senthil Kumar are interested.

Transaction value

Key management personnel of the Group comprise of the board of directors and key members of management having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. The key management personnel compensation during the year are as follows:

Compensation of the Group's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-employment defined benefit plan.

* Amount attributable to post employment benefits and compensated absences have not been disclosed as the same cannot be identified distinctly in the
actuarial valuation.

M/s. StreetEdge Capital L.P, USA 

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited., in which Mrs. Vandana
Gopikumar wife of Director Mr.V. Senthil Kumar are interested.
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42 Related parties (continued)

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2019 

Reimbursement of expenses
Jointly controlled entity
Justickets Private Limited 150.79 168.50

150.79 168.50
Loans
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited 20.00 20.00
Loss allowance (20.00) -

- 20.00

Interest accrued on loan
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Qube Digital Cinema Private Limited 1.73 1.73
Loss allowance (1.73) -

- 1.73

Jointly controlled entity
Justickets Private Limited 710.31 579.20
Loss allowance (710.31) -

- 579.20

Advance from customers
Entities in which relatives of KMP can exercise significant influence

Digital Film Technologies Private Limited 4.52 5.90
4.52 5.90

Employee benefits payables
Key Management Personnel

Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 130.64 72.78
Mr. P.Jayendra 130.64 72.78
Mr. Arvind Ranganathan 25.28 42.00
Harsh Krishna Rohatgi 66.18 -

352.75 187.56

Security deposits receivable
Key Management Personnel

Mr. V. Senthil Kumar 8.00 8.00
Mr. P.Jayendra 8.00 8.00
Mrs. Meena Veerappan 2.00 2.00
Mrs. Sujatha Arvind - 8.00

18.00 26.00

Contractually reimbursable expenses
Jointly controlled entity

Justickets Private Limited 469.33 322.14
Loss allowance (469.33) -

- 322.14

Nature of transactions
Balance outstanding 
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43 Share-based payments

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

Share option plans (equity-settled)

i) ESOP 2006 Plan

Grant Date Number of 
instruments

Contractual life of
options

 1 April 2012                 300,000 6 years

ii) ESOP 2012 Plan

Grant Date Number of 
instruments

Contractual life of
options

18 May 2017                   25,000 6 years

10 January 2013 50,000 6 years

B. Measurement of fair values

C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Weighted average 
exercise price

Number of options
Weighted average 

exercise price

Number of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - -
Granted during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Weighted average 
exercise price

Number of options
Weighted average 

exercise price

Number of options

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Forfeited during the period - - - -
Exercised during the period - - - -
Granted during the period - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000
Vested and Exercisable as at end of the year 10 300,000 130 75,000

D. Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Employee Option plan
          - Equity-settled shared-based payments (Refer note 28) - 6.04

The 2012 plan was approved by the Board of Directors on July 19, 2012 and by shareholders on October 25, 2012. The plan entities employees in full time
service to purchase shares of the Group at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with the vesting conditions; all exercises options shall be
settled by physical delivery of shares. As per the plan, holders of vested option are entitled to purchase one equity shares for every option at the exercise
price of  INR 130.

Senior management personnel

Vesting conditions

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense are as follows:

The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans (see (A)(i) and (ii)) are as follows.

ESOP Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012

ESOP Plan 2006 ESOP Plan 2012

Employees entitled

The 2006 plan was approved by the Board of Directors in 6 May 2006 and by shareholders on 31 May 2006. The plan entitles employees in full time service
to purchase shares of the Group at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with the vesting conditions; all exercises options shall be settled by
physical delivery of shares. As per the plan, holders of vested option are entitled to purchase one equity shares for every option at the exercise price of INR
10. The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows.

Vesting conditions

1/3 of options will vest after
completion of each year from the date
of grant.

Completion of service of 1 year from
grant date

The fair value of employee share options (see (A)(i) and (A)(ii)) has been measured using Black -Scholes model as at the grant date.

Senior management personnel

Employees entitled

1/3 of options will vest after
completion of each year from the date
of grant.
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44 Contract balances

(i) Contract assets Amount

Opening balance 1 April 2019 557.36
Less: Invoiced during the year (557.36)
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 514.96
Closing balance 31 March 2020 514.96

Contract liabilities (Billing in advance of work completed) Amount

Opening balance 1 April 2019 486.49
Less: revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (486.49)
Add: invoices raised for which no revenue is recognised during the year 598.36
Closing balance 31 March 2020 598.36

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the Statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Amount

Revenue from contracts with customers (as per Statement of profit and loss) 35,996.64
Add: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions 270.01
Less: Unbilled revenue adjustments (514.96)
Contracted price with the customers 35,751.69

45 Segment reporting

A. Geographic information : 

Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March 2019

India 33,066.56 37,500.88
Rest of the world 2,930.08 3,178.11

35,996.64 40,678.99

46 Micro and small enterprises

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2020

Year ended 
31 March  2019

- -

- -

- -

- -
- -

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Qube Cinema Technologies Private Limited

B. Major Customers

the Group is engaged primarily in the business of digital cinema services and sale of digital cinema ancillary to sale of services. The entity’s chief operating
decision maker considers the Group as a whole to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Accordingly,
the Group does not have multiple segments and these consolidated financial statements are reflective of the information required by the Ind AS 108. The
chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the entity’s business for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocations and
performance assessment. 

The geographic information analyses the Group's revenue by the Group's country of domicile and other countries. In presenting the geographical
information, segment revenue has been determined based on the geographic location of the customers. 

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of performance under the contract, and are realised with the associated revenue recognised under
the contract.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). The disclosure in respect of the amounts
payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2020 has been made in the consolidated financial statements based on information received and available with
the Group. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not
expected to be material. the Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

During the year 2019-20 and 2018-19, no single external customer has generated revenue of 10% or more of the Group total revenue.

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the end of each accounting year
(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;
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48 Transfer pricing

49 Specified Bank Notes Disclosure (SBN's)

50

51 Subsequent events
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The management of the Group has carried out a financial review of the COVID-19 impact on the business and financial risks based on information
available in the public domain on the economic outlook, Governments measures and GDP growth estimates. Since cinemas have remained shut and the
Group is in the business of monetizing in-cinema advertising inventory and providing digital cinema services to cinemas, the operations of the Group have
remained shut since the mid of March 2020, severely impacting its revenues and profitability. 

The Group is primarily in the business of digital cinema distribution network and related activities. With outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in India, a 
nationwide lockdown was announced since mid of March 2020. The operations of the Group are severely impacted due to economic uncertainty and 
disruption created by closure of cinema halls and this necessitates the evaluation of the Group’s ability to continue as a Going concern and meeting its 
obligations to the stakeholders, creditors, employees and lenders.

The management believes that COVID-19 will severely impact the business in the short-term but it does not anticipate material risk to its business
prospects over the medium to long term. Management has carried out an assessment of the appropriateness of going-concern, impairment of assets and
other related aspects as on the date of approval of these financial results. The Group will continue to monitor the impact on account of changes in future
economic conditions. The outcome of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may differ from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial
results. On account of COVID-19, the management has taken measures to mitigate any adverse impact on the business, which inter alia includes: a)
Reduction in fixed overheads for the period of the lockdown, b) Reduction in salaries at various levels across the organization and c) discussing with
existing lenders for extending existing line of credits.

Re-opening of the Group’s operations fully depends on the reopening of cinemas. The Government vide its Order [Guidelines for Phased Re-opening
(Unlock 1) [As per Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) Order No. 40-3/2020-DM-1(A) dated 30th May 2020] has stated that Cinemas will be allowed to open
in the third phase of re-opening but the date of cinemas reopening is uncertain at this point in time and will be decided based on the assessment of the
situation. Given this uncertainty, these cost optimization measures will help the Group to conserve cash to sustain this phase until cinemas re-open.

Basis the cash flow projections for the next 12 months and financial and support letter from promotor investors, the Group believes that it would be able to
meet its financial requirements and no adjustments would be required in respect of the carrying values of assets/liabilities. Also, the Group has an existing
line of credit and is in touch  with banks for enhancing the credit limits.  Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  

The disclosure regarding details of Specified bank notes held and transacted during 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made since the 
requirements does not pertain to financials year ended 31 March 2020

There have been no material events since the end of the reporting period which would require disclosures or adjustments to these financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020. As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the COVID-19 crisis is still un-folding, and there will be some
uncertainty remaining around the accurate assessment of the full impact of COVID-19 crisis or any prediction regarding the future course of events that
would arise due to the COVID-19 crisis. 

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has export receivables amounting to INR.2.09 lakhs which are due for a period more than 270 days, which is the maximum 
permissible period for realization and repatriation of export proceeds into India as per the master circular issued by Reserve Bank of India. Subsequent to
the balance sheet date, the Group has not yet realized this amount, however it is in the process of obtaining necessary consent of the Authorized Dealer for
delay in receipts and obtain relevant approvals/condonation for the delayed realization as per the requirements of exchange regulation.

the Company has entered into transactions with certain related parties. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group obtained an Accountant's report from a
Chartered Accountant in respect of international transactions with related parties as required by the relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the
same has been filed with the income tax authorities. 

For the current year, the Group confirms that it maintains documentation as prescribed by the Income-tax Act, 1961 and to prove that the international
transactions are at arm’s length and the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements, particularly on the amount of 
tax expense and that of provision for taxation.



ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

 

19-Aug-2020 

QUBE CINEMA TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD. 
CHENNAI 
 
 
Kind attention of Mr. Suresh Gopal, VP- Finance 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We write this letter ;͞Leƚƚer͟) to confirm the terms of engagement of Venkat and Associates LLP, 
Chartered Accountants ;͞Firm͟Ϳ to act for Qube Cinema Technologies Pvt. Ltd. ;͞CompanǇ ͞or ͞Clienƚ͟Ϳ 
as their Internal Auditor in connection with review of areas of operations at Head Office in Chennai and 
its branches as identified by the Company for the period October 2020 to June 2021. 
 
1. Firm͛Ɛ Role 

 
Our role in relation to the Engagement will be limited to the review of the following areas and to 
provide the services to the company stated in this letter. 
 

Head Office 7 areas 
IFC 5 key areas as decided by Management 
Branches 1 branch 

 
Specific coverage within these areas will be discussed with the management and mutually agreed 
upon from time to time. Our Reporting & Review Methodology is detailed in ANNEXURE A and 
detailed Internal Audit Schedule is given in ANNEXURE B. 
 
As part of the internal audit calendar, Venkat and Associates LLP will also assist Qube Cinema 
Technologies Private Limited with IFC Testing for the purpose of satisfying Statutory and Board 
Requirements. To enable a smooth testing procedure, Venkat and Associates LLP requests Qube 
Cinemas to provide the auditors with their updated RCMs (Risk-Control Matrices) which will indicate 
the list of controls that Qube Cinemas deems necessary for testing. Samples for the control testing 
will be chosen as appropriate.  
 
The internal audit engagement would, in general, involve 
� Discussion with the company and the management on specific issues. 
� Inclusive analysis of data to ascertain gaps in processes, patterns, inefficiencies and absence of 

controls. 
� Reporting and discussion with the company and management for closure of the issue or arriving 

at an action plan. 
  



 
 

We will, from time to time, discuss and seek validation of the company on the findings made and 
requirements. It is our understanding that we would have the access to the information/records/ 
documents required by us to pursue the analysis and review during the currency of this Engagement 
Letter. 
 
The engagement is, however, neither express nor implied commitment by the Firm to ensure 
closure of issues identified and reported. It is also not a re-engineering exercise. The company is 
looking for analytical inputs that will enable them to reduce costs, improve efficiency and improve 
profits in various operational and financial areas and this exercise is aimed at securing inputs on the 
defined areas. Our audit reports may act as a deterrent but owing to the inherent limitations of the 
audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material non-adherences & process lapses may still go 
unnoticed during the audit. Our Internal audit does not provide guarantee that all non-compliances 
and process non-adherences will be detected because of the factors such as non-availability of 
adequate documentation, time and the inherent limitations of internal controls. 

 
Boundaries for the Assignment 
The audit engagement will be carried out on-site and a significant part of the analysis may be carried 
out ex-our office. This exercise shall cover only Risk analysis and documentation of the findings. 
Possible enhancements to process will be recommended, but is not the primary objective of the 
exercise. The audit engagement will also specifically exclude any reconciliation work and 
mismatches if any between two or more sets of records compared will merely be reported. 

 
Fee 
� Our professional fee for the internal audit engagement per the plan will be Rs. 39,000/- per 

month plus applicable taxes. 
� Audit fees will be invoiced monthly and shall be paid on or within 10 days from the date of 

receipt of invoice. 
� Where applicable, our audit teams shall be accommodated at the respective locations during 

the audit dates and travel, stay, food, conveyance and other out-of-pocket expenses will be 
billed at actuals for any review carried out in locations outside the city limits of Chennai and 
Mumbai. 

� Any increase in fee will be based on mutual discussions. 
 
 

  



 
 

Requirements 
We would require the following from Qube Cinema Technologies Pvt Ltd.: 
� Access to all documents and files and the information without any restrictions 
� Copies of existing manuals and Standard Operating Procedures 
� Copies of Internal Inspection Reports, if any 
� Updated As- Is Risk-Control Matrices for Controls to be Tested for Management as part of IFC 
� One designated official of the client company to co-ordinate meetings and discussions with 

staff; and to clarify issues (as and when required) 
� Co-operation from all concerned staff/auditees 
� ID cards and other access rights to Qube Cinemas offices 
� Permission to connect our laptops to the company’s network 
� Exclusive login ID for auditors 

 
Period of Engagement 
The arrangements set out in this Letter will have immediate effect to remain in place from October 
2020 until June 2021 and may be extended by mutual consent. 

 
Note: Due to limitations owing to the COVID-19 pandemic, Qube Management expects the 
commencement of internal audits only after the resumption of operations, which is projected to be 
around October 2020. Billing will be initiated from the month of commencement of audit work. In 
case of any substantial delays in resumption, the audit scope may also have to be accordingly 
revisited in consultation with Management.     
 

2. Other Terms 
 

a) Provision of Information 
The company agrees to provide to us of all information concerning the business and in particular all 
the relevant information / data required for the validation, analysis, and compilation and all such 
further information as we reasonably request. 

 
The company will ensure that any information supplied to us, will be true, fair, complete and 
accurate and not misleading. The company agrees that, if anything occurs within a reasonable time 
thereafter to render any such information untrue, unfair or misleading, the company will promptly 
notify us and take all such steps as we may reasonably require to correct any statement based on 
such information. 
 

b) Confidentiality 
Each of us (Firm & Company) undertake to keep confidential any confidential information (i.e., any 
information not in the public domain and not otherwise obtained from any other party without 
restriction on disclosure) concerning the business, affairs, directors or employees of the other that 
comes into its possession in the course of the provision of the services and not to use any such 
information for any purpose other than for which it was provided. 
 

c) Authorisation 
We are entitled to assume that any instructions, notices or requests (Whether in writing or not and 
however communicated to us) have been properly authorised by the company if they are given or 
purported to be given by individual or person who is or purports to be and is reasonably believed by 
us to be an employee or your authorized person. 
 
 
 



 
 
d) No Liability 

We shall not have any liability (whether direct or indirect in contract, tort, or otherwise) to the 
company for or in connection with any of the services provided by us to you except to the extent 
that the liability has arisen from our wilful default. 
 
 

e) Indemnity 
You agree with us fully to indemnify us and keep us so indemnified against: 
(a) any and all claims, damages, demands or proceedings brought or made or alleged (or 

threatened to be brought or made or alleged) in any jurisdiction (whether or not successful, 
compromised or settled) (collectively “claims”Ϳ against us; and 

(b) any losses, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or incurred by us (collectively “losses”Ϳ 
(including, without limitation, all losses (including legal fees) suffered or incurred in connection 
with investigating, responding to, preparing for or defending any claim, whether or not in 
connection with pending or threatened litigation to which we are a party, or in enforcing any 
rights under the Letter) 
 

in connection with or arising directly from any services provided to the company or in respect of the 
transaction or matter to which such services relate provided that the company shall not be 
responsible for any such claims or losses if and to the extent that they result from our gross 
negligence or wilful default. This indemnity shall be in addition to any rights that we may have at 
common law or otherwise. 
 

f) Dispute Resolution 
Any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of, or in connection with, our services or the terms of 
business shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration as per the Indian Arbitration and 
Reconciliation Act, 1996 and rules there under in force at the time. 
 

g) Notices & Communications 
Any notice or consent to be given hereunder may be delivered in person by letter or be sent by 
facsimile transmission, telex or cable to the address of our registered office, for notices to us, and to 
the address last modified by you to us `for notices to you. Internal audit level communications will 
be as per the contact details provided in ANNEXURE C. 
 

 
h) Validation of contract provisions 

If any of these terms or the terms of the Letter shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, 
such term or terms be deemed not to form part of this agreement without prejudice to the 
enforceability of the remaining terms of our agreement, provided always that if any such deletion 
substantially effects or alters the commercial basis of our agreement, the parties shall negotiate in 
good faith to amend and modify them as may be necessary or desirable in the circumstances. 
 

i) Relationship between the Parties 
The parties hereunder shall be independent contractors with each other for all purposes at all times. 
 

j) Termination 
Either of us may terminate the arrangements between us by giving the other written notice of 90 
days which shall be effective upon receipt, or, if it is received on a day that is not a business day, 
then the next business day. 
 



 
 

All accrued rights and liabilities of the parties under the Letter (including, without limitation our 
rights to receive fees and expenses) shall survive and remain in full force and effect, notwithstanding 
any termination or expiry of these terms of business. 
 

k) Governing law 
These terms of business are governed by the laws of India and the parties irrevocably submit to the 
jurisdiction of the courts of Chennai, India. 
 
 

Yours truly 
For and on behalf of VENKAT AND ASSOCIATES LLP, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
SREENATH A 
PARTNER, VENKAT AND ASSOCIATES LLP ;͞FIRM͟Ϳ 
 
 
Agreed and accepted 
For and on behalf of QUBE CINEMA TECHNOLOGIES PVT. LTD. 
;͞CompanǇ͟Ϳ 
 
 
 
(Duly authorised by the Board of the company) 
 
Date:  
 
ENCLOSURES TO AND FORMING PART OF THIS AGREEMENT: 
1. ANNEXURE A ʹReporting and Review Methodology 
2. ANNEXURE B ʹInternal Audit Schedule for 2020-21 
3. ANNEXURE C- Contact and Other Details of the parties 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Annexures to Internal Audit Engagement Letter for 2020-21 

 
ANNEXURE A: Reporting & Review Methodology 

On completion of the audit assignment, the reports will be issued highlighting the following: 

1. The audit/review scope and extent 
2. All exceptions and deviations noticed. 
3. Control weaknesses observed during the course of audit. 
4. Recommendations for process rectification and/or improvements. 
5. Unit’s responses and Management comments. 
6. Assurances (for areas where processes and controls were found to be satisfactory) 

At the end of each quarter, a presentation will be made by the auditors to the Senior Management of 
Qube Cinema Technologies Pvt Ltd. on the key findings from audits conducted in that quarter.   

ANNEXURE B: Detailed Internal Audit Schedule- October 2020 to June 2021  
 

S. No Function Description 
1 Inventory and Sale of 

Equipment 
 

Process Review, Purchase and Sale Returns, Sale of Equipment, Physical 
verification of Inventory at Chennai Warehouse, Warranty/ AMCs 

2 Human Resources A walk through of the payroll process, review of deductions & settlements, 
review of recruitment & termination process, verification of payroll 
statements & scrutiny of extraordinary payments 
 

3 Statutory & Secretarial 
Compliance  

Verification of records required to be maintained under respective 
legislations, reconciliation of returns & remittances (both DT & IDT), review 
of secretarial records and Labour Law compliances. 
 

4 Purchases Vendor Selection, Vendor Creation, Requisitions, Purchase Orders, Review 
of Procurement Plan, Procurement Budgets, Verification of all the related 
documents & controls 
 

5 QCN and Ad Revenue 
Share 

To verify the agreements between clients and Qube Cinema and to verify 
payments/ sharing with theatres for screening of advertisements 
 

6 Revenue Audit QUBE- Virtual Print Fee (VPF), Mastering and RTU Billing 

7 Finance, Accounts and 
Treasury 

Covering Cash & Bank Payments, Receipts, Insurance, Loans, GL Review- 
Scrutiny of ledger accounts, treatment of extraordinary items in the books, 
& review of long pending dues  
 

8 IFC Testing IFC Testing for 5 Critical Areas as per the List of Controls and Key areas 
provided by Qube Cinema 
 

9 Branch  
(Hyderabad OR Mumbai) 

Branch Cash Receipts, Deposits, Travel Claims, Debtor and Creditor 
Analysis, Inventory Management, Attendance and Leave Records, Fixed 
Assets, Statutory Compliances 



 
 
 

ANNEXURE C: Contact & Other Details  
 
QUBE CINEMA TECHNOLOGIES PVT LTD. 
 

Particulars Name E-Mail Mobile Contact 
Number 

VP- FINANCE Suresh Gopal  Suresh.Gopal@qubecinema.com  +91 96001 55553 
 
 
VENKAT AND ASSOCIATES LLP 
 

Particulars Name E-Mail Mobile Contact Number 
Escalations Venkatakrishnan venkat@venkatassociates.com +91-98400 67188 
Reviews Sreenath sreenath@venkatassociates.com +91-98418 64264 
Audits Aparaajit V aparaajit@venkatassociates.com  +91-98846 35988 
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